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finance.mdgms.com/products/stp/service/emission/index.html). The final term sheet of each Derivatives Series issued
under this issuance program is also available at the freely accessible website of Ziircher Kantonalbank
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Derivatives Series issued under this issuance program are available free of charge at Zircher Kantonalbank,
Bahnhofstrasse 9, 8001 Zurich and via the email address documentation@zkb.ch.
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1. RISK FACTRORS

This section "Risk Factors", describes the economic and legal risks associated with an investment in Derivatives consid-
ered significant by the Issuer. The Issuer, however, gives no assurance that the following statements concerning the
risks associated with the securities is exhaustive.

Interested investors should carefully read and take into account the following risk factors, the other information in this
document and information incorporated by reference in this document about the Issuer and the Derivatives, as well as
the information contained in the brochure "Special Risks in Securities Trading" of the Swiss Bankers Association ("SBA")
in considering the purchase of Derivatives. Investors should only make an investment in the Derivatives if they have no
doubts about their understanding of the risks and are capable economically of bearing the risk of a loss in the value, or
even a total loss of the amount invested, including transaction costs. An investment decision should not be made only
on the basis of these risk factors and the other information contained in this document because considering this infor-
mation is not a substitute for personal advice and analysis by investment, legal, tax and other advisers which is tailored
to address the needs, goals, experience and knowledge of the investor. Potential investors are therefore advised to read
the entire document including all documents incorporated by reference and to review with their personal advisers (in-
cluding tax advisers) before investing in the Derivatives.

The order of the presentation of the risk factors is not an indication of the probability of occurrence and the scope of
their economic consequences in the event that one or more of these risks materializes. The occurrence of one or more
of these risks can have adverse effects on the performance under the Derivatives and/or the assets, financial condition
and income of the Issuer, which, in turn, also could have an adverse effect on the performance under the Derivatives.
In addition, the Issuer may not be in a position to make payments on or in connection with the Derivatives for reasons
other than the risk factors described in this section. This may occur, for example, if the Issuer has failed to recognize
significant risks as such or has not anticipated their occurrence.

A. Issuer-related Risk Factors

In the following, Issuer-related risk factors are described below. Among them are the risk in respect of the ability of the
Issuer to meet its obligations as the Issuer of the Derivatives and the risk of possible conflicts of interest resulting from
interests other than interests as the Issuer of the Derivatives.

a) Risks regarding the ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations

aa) Zircher Kantonalbank

An investment in Derivatives issued by Zircher Kantonalbank bears the risk that Zircher Kantonalbank fails to meet its
outstanding obligations, fails to meet them in full and/or fails to fulfill them when due.

The risk concerning the ability of a debtor to meet its obligations is described by the rating of independent rating agen-
cies. A rating is an assessment of the creditworthiness of debtors or bond issuers carried out on the basis of a standard-
ized evaluation of creditworthiness. A rating gives an indication of the probability of timely and full payment of interest
and principal or other amounts. The lower the assigned rating on the applicable scale, the higher is the risk estimate of
the rating agency that obligations will not be met, not be met in full and/or not paid when due. A rating is not a rec-
ommendation to buy or hold Derivatives, but only an assessment by the rating agency with respect to the credit quality
of the Issuer at a certain time and provides no assurance that losses will not occur.

On the date of the issue of this document, the ratings assigned to Zlrcher Kantonalbank by the rating agencies are as
follows:

Rating Agency Date Long-term
Standard & Poor's 2 December 2013 AAA
Moody's 16 September 2013 Aaa
Fitch Ratings 11 February 2014 AAA
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The main factors for this rating, each of which is consistent with the best-possible rating, are considered to be the gov-
ernmental guarantee of the Canton of Zurich (see Section Ill.E.a)kk) below) which also is rated AAA by Standard &
Poor's, as well as the capitalization of the bank, its market position in the Zurich economic area, the quality of the loan
portfolio and the system of risk management

The rating can, nevertheless, be changed at any time by the rating agency. The suspension, reduction or withdrawal of
the rating can negatively influence the market price of the securities of the Issuer. A reduction of the rating would
have, in addition, adverse effects on the borrowing costs of the Zircher Kantonalbank and could lead to the creation of
new obligations or the immediate repayment of existing obligations which are dependent on the maintenance of spe-
cific ratings. In addition, the situation could arise in which the Zircher Kantonalbank would have to provide additional
security for Derivatives transactions following the reduction of its rating pursuant to rating-dependent security agree-
ments.

bb) Ziircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited

Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited is an issuance vehicle (a corporation whose purpose is the issue of

Derivatives) and the Derivatives issued by it are currently acquired exclusively by its sole shareholder, the Zlrcher Kan-
tonalbank with its registered office in Zurich, Switzerland. The activities of Zlrcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey)

Limited and the aggregate principal amount [of the Derivatives] issued by it annually are therefore influenced by both
positive and negative developments in the markets in which it engages in its business activities.

Fundamentally, the risk exists that Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited cannot fulfill its obligations in full
or in part. Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited has, pursuant to its constitutional document, a capitaliza-
tion of only CHF 1,000,000.00. Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited has entered into a Keep-Well
Agreement (see Section lll.E.a)kk) with Zircher Kantonalbank which is supported by a governmental guarantee of the
Canton of Zurich. In this regard, investors should note that the Keep-Well Agreement has not been made in the form
of a guarantee for the benefit of third parties and it applies only to the internal relations of the member companies of
the Zurcher Kantonalbank Group.

Investors should, for these reasons, take into account the creditworthiness of Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey)
Limited, as well as the creditworthiness of Zurcher Kantonalbank, with which Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey)
Limited has entered into the Keep-Well Agreement, in their investment decisions.

In connection with the issue of the Derivatives, the Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited enters into money
market transactions and financial market transactions with various foreign banks which have their registered offices
outside Switzerland in order to invest the proceeds of the relevant issue of Structured Products. Zircher Kantonalbank
Finance (Guernsey) Limited is exposed to the potential counterparty risks of its counterparties. Further, Zircher Kanton-
albank Finance (Guernsey) Limited regularly enters into hedging transactions in order to hedge its obligations in respect
of a Structured Product issue. Because Zlrcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited effects these transactions
exclusively with Zircher Kantonalbank, it is, in comparison to other issuers with a more widely diversified selection of
counterparties, exposed to a so-called risk concentration. Consistent with an internal risk management concept, the
Zurcher Kantonalbank for its part, however, regularly enters into hedging transactions in respect of the risks of the
relevant transaction associated with an Underlying with a variety of counterparties in order that the economic risk re-
sulting from possible changes in value of the Underlying ultimately are not borne by the Ziircher Kantonalbank Group.
The Holders of the Issuer's securities do not have a direct claim on such hedging transactions.

b) Possible Conflicts of Interest

Conflicts of interest for Zircher Kantonalbank or the Zircher Kantonalbank Group may result from any transactions in
the Underlying and other possible functions or activities in respect of the Derivatives.

aa) Transactions in the Underlying

The Issuer and other companies of the Zircher Kantonalbank Group may, for its own account or the account of a cus-
tomer, participate in transactions, or engage in other activities or functions, which are related to the Derivatives or the
Underlyings. These transactions and activities are possibly not beneficial for investors in the Derivatives and may have
adverse effects on the value of an Underlying and therefore on the value of the Derivative.

bb) Engaging in other functions

The Issuer and other companies of the Zircher Kantonalbank Group may, in respect of the Derivatives, engage in other
functions, e.g., as calculation agent, paying agent and administrative agent or index sponsor. Such a function may
entitle the relevant company to determine the composition of the Underlying or to calculate its value, which may lead
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to conflicts of interest if securities issued by a company of the Zlrcher Kantonalbank Group or other assets may be
chosen as the Underlying, or if a company of the Zircher Kantonalbank Group has business relations with the issuer of
the relevant securities or assets.

The issuers or other companies of the Zircher Kantonalbank Group may moreover issue other derivative instruments in
connection with the respective Underlying; any introduction of such products may have an impact on the value of the
Structured Products. The issuers and other companies of the Zircher Kantonalbank Group may receive non-public in-
formation with respect to the Underlying and they are not required to disclose such information to the holders of the
securities unless there is a mandatory statutory requirement to do so. In addition, companies of the Zircher Kantonal-
bank Group may publish research reports in relation to the Underlying. Such actions may lead to conflicts of interest
both among the companies of the Zircher Kantonalbank Group concerned as well as between these companies and
the investors, and may have a negative impact on the value of the securities.

cc) Issue of other Derivatives in respect of an Underlying

Zurcher Kantonalbank Group companies may issue various Derivatives in respect of the same Underlying or the same
Underlyings. Such Derivatives may compete with already issued Derivatives which may adversely affect the value of the
already issued Derivatives.

dd) Execution of hedging transactions

The Issuer and other companies of the Zurcher Kantonalbank Group may apply a part or the entire amount of the pro-
ceeds from the sale of the Derivatives for hedging transactions, which may adversely affect the value of the Derivatives.
The value of the Derivatives may be affected, in particular, through the termination of a part or all of the hedging posi-
tions (hedging).

ee) Acting as market-maker for the Derivatives

A company of the Zircher Kantonalbank Group or a party acting on its behalf may act as market-maker for the Deriva-
tives in order to improve the market liquidity of the Derivatives and to equalize imbalances between supply and de-
mand. A company of the Zurcher Kantonalbank Group or a party acting on its behalf will, itself, through such "market-
making", materially determine the price of the Derivatives. As a result, the market prices determined by the market-
maker normally are not the same as those that would have resulted in a liquid market without market-making.

The market-maker determines the bid and asked prices in the secondary market, in particular by taking into account
the value of the Derivatives determined by the market-maker, which, among other things, is dependent on the value of
the Underlying, as well as the difference between bid and asked prices targeted by the market-maker. In addition, a
charge imposed upon issue and any compensation or costs to be deducted upon the maturity of the Derivative from its
redemption price (i.e., administrative, transaction or other charges in accordance with the product terms) will routinely
be taken into account. Further, a margin included in the issue price of a Derivative and dividends or similar income paid
or to be paid on the Underlying or its components have an influence on the determination of the price in the secondary
market if, based on the terms of the Derivative, a company of the Zircher Kantonalbank Group is economically entitled
to them. The spread between bid and asked prices is determined by the market-maker on the basis of supply and de-
mand for the Derivatives and certain income considerations.

In determining the price, certain costs, such as, for example, administration fees, will in many cases not be deducted in
equal amounts distributed over the term of the Derivatives and therefore in reduction of the price, but rather deducted
from the calculated value of the Derivatives already at an earlier point in time determined in the discretion of the mar-
ket-maker. The same applies for a margin included in the issue price of the Derivatives, as well as for dividends and
other distributions in respect of the Underlying, to the extent that the Issuer is economically entitled to receive them
pursuant to the terms of the Derivative. These are often not deducted in reduction of the price when the Underlying is
traded "ex-dividend", rather already at an earlier point in time during the term and on the basis of the dividends ex-
pected for the entire term or a certain part of the term. The timing of this deduction is dependent on, among other
things, the amount of any income received by the market-maker from the securities.

The prices provided by the market-maker may therefore deviate significantly from the calculated or economically ex-
pected value of the Derivatives at the relevant time based on the factors mentioned above. In addition, the market-
maker may change the method for the determination of the prices provided at any time, such as the increase or de-
crease of the spread between bid and asked prices. In particular, the spread between bid and asked prices may increase
if the liquidity and tradability of the Underlying deteriorates due to external conditions.
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In addition, the market-maker has the option of providing asked prices only for specific Derivatives, e.g. if the market-
maker is not able to issue additional securities of a Derivatives Series.

ff)  Acting as market-maker for the Underlying

Zurcher Kantonalbank Group companies may in certain cases act as market-maker for the Underlying, especially when
the company of the Zircher Kantonalbank Group also issued the Underlying. The price of the Underlying will be de-
termined to a significant degree by the Zlrcher Kantonalbank Group company and therefore influences the value of
the Derivatives. The prices provided by the market-maker will not always correspond to the prices that would have
developed in a liquid market with such market-making.

gg) Acting as a member of an underwriting syndicate or a similar function in respect of the issue of an
Underlying

ZUurcher Kantonalbank Group companies may, in connection with future offers of an Underlying, act as underwriter or
financial adviser to the Issuer. Activities of this type may entail certain conflicts of interest and affect the value of the
Derivatives.

hh) Receipt of nonpubic information

The Issuer and Zircher Kantonalbank Group companies may possibly receive nonpublic information about the Underly-
ing that they are not required to disclose to purchasers of the Derivatives. Such information may entail conflicts of in-
terest and affect the value of the Derivatives.

B. Product-specific risk factors in respect of the Derivatives

Because the development of the value of the Derivatives primarily depends on the value of the relevant Underlying,
potential investors should, in addition to the section "General Risk Factors in Respect of the Derivatives", carefully re-
view the descriptions in the sections "Product Terms" and "Information about the Underlying", as well as the other
information in this Document (including any additional risk factors).

a) The Derivatives are unsecured obligations

The Derivatives constitute direct, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer which rank equally with all
other current and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer except such obligations which rank
higher on the basis of mandatory provisions of law. The Derivatives are not protected by a deposit protection fund.

b) Capital protection

If and to the extent capital protection is specified in the relevant Final Terms, the relevant Derivatives will be redeemed
at an amount which is not less than the specified capital protection. The capital protection may be set both below or
above, as well as the same, as the principal amount or par value of the Derivative. Because the capital protection is
specified in relation to the principal amount or par value of the Derivative, the investor has the benefit of capital protec-
tion only in this amount, even if purchase price or issue price paid by the investor is greater than the principal amount
or par value. The protection for the invested capital is reduced accordingly. Capital protection is not provided if the
Derivatives are repaid before the agreed maturity date or in the event of the occurrence of a basis for termination or
early repayment for tax reasons or if the investor sells the Derivative before the maturity date.

If the Final Terms do not explicitly specify capital protection, then the fundamental risk exists that the investor will lose
entire amount of the funds invested by the investor. Even if capital protection applies, the risk exists that the capital
protected amount is less than the investment made by the investor. Further, the payment of the capital protected
amount is dependent on the financial condition of the Issuer or other circumstances related to it.

) Dependence of the value of the Derivatives on the value of the Underlying

Derivatives are financial instruments whose value is especially influenced by the value and volatility of the Underlying
and the remaining term of the Derivative, such that an investment in the Derivatives is subject to various risks.

Potential investors should have no doubts about their understanding that the return on their investment in the Deriva-
tives is dependent on the change in value of the Underlying. The change in value of the Underlying is influenced by
numerous market factors and risks. Among these are risks in respect of the stock, bond, foreign exchange, real estate,
precious metals and commodities markets, interest rates, exchange rates, market volatility, as well as general economic,
political, regulatory and other factors. These and further risk factors, individually or collectively, may significantly affect
the value of the Underlying. In addition, the value of the Underlying is influenced by, among other things, interest
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rates, potential dividend or interest payments in respect of the Underlying, changes in the method of calculating the
value of the Underlying and market expectations in respect of the future change in the price of the Underlying, its
composition and the Derivatives. An investment in the Derivatives should therefore only be made after an assessment
of the direction, timing and extent of potential, future changes in the value of the Underlying and/or changes in the
composition or the calculation method of the Underlying because the return from the relevant investment is depend-
ent, among other things, from fluctuations of this type.

Historical values provide no assurance for the future development of the value of the Underlying. Predictions concern-
ing the future change in the value of the Underlying on the basis of past changes in value cannot provide any infor-
mation about the future value of the Underlying or the investment return at the end of the term of the Derivative.

d) Market risks and market factors

The value of the Derivatives is determined by a series of factors. Among the factors that influence the value of the Un-
derlying are, among other things, the term of the Derivatives, dividend payments and dividend payment dates that
deviate from the market expectation, as well as, in the case of Derivatives whose Settlement Currency is not the same
as the Reference Currency, the change in the Exchange Rate of the Settlement Currency to the Reference Currency or
currencies.

At the same time, the frequency and intensity of the fluctuations of the Underlying or the individual components of the
Underlying (volatility) have an influence on the market value of the Derivative during its term. The degree of the volatili-
ty is not only a measure of the actual volatility, but will to a large degree be determined by the prices of the instru-
ments which offer investors protection against such market volatility. The prices of these instruments are generally de-
termined by supply and demand in the options and Derivatives markets. These forces of supply and demand are never-
theless in turn influenced by factors such as current volatility, economic factors and speculation.

In addition, the market value of the Derivatives is influenced by, among other things, interest rates, potential dividends
or interest payments and other events in respect of the future change in the value of the Underlying.

If after the purchase the market value of the Derivatives declines below the purchase price, investors should not expect
that the market value of the Derivatives will rise to or above the purchase price during the remaining term.

Investors should also be prepared to bear the total loss of their investment in the Derivatives, including transaction costs
paid. This risk exists regardless of the creditworthiness of the Issuer.

C. General Risk Factors in Respect of the Derivatives

In addition to the specific characteristics of the Derivatives which are shown under the section "Product-specific risk
factors in respect of the Derivatives", potential investors should also take into account the following general risks of an
investment in the Derivatives.

a) Issue price

Under certain circumstances, the issue price of the Derivatives may include, in addition to the specified issue charges,
administration or other fees, a charge on the mathematical value of the Derivatives which at the most is not apparent
to investors. This margin is determined by the Issuer in its unfettered discretion and can vary from the charges imposed
by other issuers of comparable Derivatives. This is subject to the proviso of the gradual introduction of the Total Ex-
pense Ratio [TER], which will be stated in the Final Terms of the individual products , specifying the fees. Zlrcher Kan-
tonalbank will not indicate the cost as a range but will state the specific cost for the product in question.

b) Risk of the limited term

To the extent not explicitly stated otherwise in the Final Terms, the Derivatives are rights limited by time. As a result,
there is no assurance that potential market losses will be recovered during the term of the Derivatives. In general, the
probability that losses sustained in the interim can be recovered declines during the course of the investment time line.
This applies, in particular, also in situations in which the Derivative is terminated by the Issuer (and without regard for
the relevant termination payment amount).

Q) No payments until settlement

During the terms of the Derivatives, no distributions or repayments are made, with the exception of the payment of
Coupons or other distributions, before the maturity date. Before the maturity date, investors may obtain potential re-
turns on the Derivatives only through a sale in the secondary market. Investors should in any case note the risk factors
under “Issue size" and "Potential illiquidity of the Derivatives".
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d) Exercise or delivery notices and evidence

If the Derivatives are subject to provisions in respect of the delivery of an exercise or delivery notice and a copy of such
notice is delivered to the Issuer via the Exercise Agent after the last specified exercise period in the Derivatives Terms,
then it is considered delivered only on the next Business Day. Such a late delivery can, in the case of cash settled Deriva-
tives, lead to an increase of reduction in the original amount of the Cash Settlement Amount. In the case of Derivatives
that can only be exercised on a specified date or only during an exercise period, each Exercise Notice that is not re-
ceived by the point in time specified in the Derivatives Terms is ineffective.

If necessary evidence is not provided in accordance with the Derivatives Terms, this can result in the loss of amounts
otherwise due on the basis of the Derivatives or the right to claim them. Potential purchasers should review the Deriva-
tives Terms in respect of whether, and in what manner, such provisions apply to the Derivatives.

Derivatives that are not exercised in accordance with the Derivatives Terms expire. Potential investors should review the
terms in respect of whether an automatic exercise has been specified or not for the Derivatives and when an Exercise
Notice is considered to be validly delivered.

e) Time delays after exercise

If the settlement of the Derivatives is made through Cash Settlement, then in the case of their exercise, time delays are
possible if the time of the exercise and the time of the determination of the relevant Cash Settlement Amount in re-
spect of such an exercise do not coincide. Each delay of this type between exercise and determination of the Cash Set-
tlement Amount is specified in the Derivatives Terms. Such a delay could, however, become significantly longer, espe-
cially in the case of a delay which occurs with respect to the exercise of Derivatives with Cash Settlement which use a
highest intra-day price for the exercise as described below or in the case of the determination of a Market Disruption at
the relevant time by the Calculation Agent as described below. The relevant Cash Settlement Amount could increase or
decrease as a result of this delay.

f) Extraordinary termination, violation of law and force majeure

If the Issuer determines that its obligations in respect of the Derivatives, for reasons for which it is not responsible, have
become for whatever reason, in whole or in part, contrary to law or impossible to perform of that the maintenance of
hedging transactions in respect of the Derivatives, for whatever reason, are contrary to law or impossible to perform,
the Issuer shall be entitled, but not required, in its own judgment, to terminate the Derivatives on an extraordinary
basis. In such a case, the Issuer shall, to the extent permitted by applicable law, pay to each Creditor for each relevant
Derivative an amount determined by the Calculation Agent in the amount of the determinable market price, without
regard for the violation of law or the impossibility of performance, less the costs of the issue for the termination of, for
example, the related hedging transactions.

g) Market disruptions, amendments and early termination of the Derivatives

The Issuer and the Calculation Agent may determine that a Market Disruption has occurred or is at the relevant point in
time continuing. Such a determination can delay the valuation in respect of the Underlying which can influence the
value of the Derivatives and/or delay their settlement. In addition, the Calculation Agent can, if permitted by the Deriva-
tives Terms, amend the terms in order to take into account relevant changes or events in respect of the Underlying and
therefore, among other things, determine a replacement for the Underlying or its Issuer or sponsor. Further, the Issuer
can, under certain conditions after such an event, terminate the Derivatives early. In this case, the Issuer shall pay in
respect of each of the Derivatives, as applicable, an amount determined in accordance with the provisions of the Deriv-
ative Terms. Potential purchasers should review the terms to determine whether and in what manner such provisions
for the Derivatives apply and what is considered a Market Disruption or relevant event permitting an amendment.

h) Interest rate risk

An investment in Derivatives is subject to interest rate risk on account of fluctuations in the interest to be paid on de-
posits in the currency of the Derivatives. This can have effects on the market value of the Derivatives. Interest rates are
determined by various factors of supply and demand in international money markets, which are influenced by econom-
ic factors, speculation and interventions by central banks and government authorities or other political factors. Fluctua-
tions in short- or long-term interest rates can influence the value of the Derivatives.

i) Potential illiquidity of the Derivatives

No prediction can be made as to whether and to what extent a secondary market for the Derivatives will develop, at
what price the Derivatives will be traded on this secondary market and whether this secondary market will be liquid or
not. To the extent specified in the Term Sheet or in the Final Terms, applications were made for the listing or admission
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to trading on the relevant securities exchange. If the Derivatives are listed on a securities exchange or are admitted to
trading, it cannot be assured that this listing or admission to trading will be maintained. It does not automatically fol-
low that on account of the fact that the Derivatives of the specified type are listed or admitted to trading that greater
liquidity is available than would be available if this were not the case.

If the Derivatives are not listed on a securities exchange or are not admitted to trading, information about prices is un-
der some circumstances more difficult to obtain and the liquidity of the Derivatives will be adversely affected. The li-
quidity of the Derivatives can also be influenced by limitations on the purchase and sale of Derivatives in certain coun-
tries.

i) Issue size

The issue size specified in the Final Terms (expressed as the number of Derivatives or as the aggregate principal amount
of the Derivatives) refers to the maximum amount of the offered Derivatives, but it gives no indication of the amount of
the Derivatives actually issued. This is determined by market conditions and can change during the term of the Deriva-
tives. No conclusion can be drawn about the liquidity of the Derivatives in the secondary market on the basis of the
specified issue size. For this reason, investors should also give attention to the risk factor "Potential llliquidity of the
Derivatives".

k) Issues in relation to hedging

Potential purchasers who wish to purchase the Derivatives for the purpose of hedging their risk in respect of the Under-
lying should be aware of the risks of such a use. No binding statements can be made about the correlation between
the change in value of the Derivatives and the change in value of the Underlying. In some circumstances, the composi-
tion of the Underlying can change. In addition, it may prove impossible to sell the Derivatives at a price which directly
corresponds to the price of the Underlying. Accordingly, no binding statement can be made in respect of the degree of
correlation between the return on an investment in the Derivatives and the return on a direct investment in the Under-
lying. Conversely, it is possible that the hedging transactions for the purpose of limiting risk in respect of the Derivatives
may not have the desired success.

1) Borrowing

If an investor finances the purchase of the Derivative with a loan, the risk exists that the investor must bear not only the
loss that occurs but also must expend additional funds for the payment of interest on the loan and the repayment of
the loan. As a result, the investors' risk of loss is increased significantly. An investor therefore should not finance the
acquisition of the Derivatives with a loan with the expectation of being able to pay the interest or to repay the loan
from profits in a Derivatives transaction. Further, the purchaser of Derivatives must evaluate his or her economic cir-
cumstances in order to determine whether he or she is able to pay interest and, under some circumstances, to repay
the loan on short notice if losses, instead of the expected profits, including a total loss of the investment in the Deriva-
tives, occur.

m) Taxation

Depending on the legal requirements in the country in which the Derivatives will be delivered or on the statutory provi-
sions of the country which then apply if the Underlying consists of equities, stamp tax, foreign transaction taxes and
other assessments may be imposed. The payment of the relevant amounts in respect of the Derivatives depends on the
payment of certain taxes, charges and/or costs as defined in the product terms. In the event of uncertainty of tax re-
quirements, potential investors should consult their own independent tax adviser. In addition, they should be aware
that tax law provisions and their application may be subject to changes by the relevant tax authorities. Accordingly, no
predictions can be made about the exact, applicable tax treatment at a given time.

n) Resale price

The Issuer can make distribution agreements with various financial institutions and other intermediaries chosen by the
Issuer (the "Dealers"). In this case, the dealers agree, subject to the performance of certain conditions, to subscribe for
the Derivatives at a price equal to or lower than the issue price. The Dealers agree to bear certain costs in connection
with the issue of the Derivatives. In respect of all issued and outstanding Derivatives, a regularly recurring fee, the
amount of which is determined by the Issuer, may be payable to the Dealers up to the maturity date. The amount of
the fee can change. The Dealers agree to comply with the sales restrictions that are set forth in this document and
which are supplemented by additional restrictions in the distribution agreement applicable to the relevant dealer.
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0) Changes in the conditions for subscription

The Issuer has the right in its own reasonable judgment to reduce the amount of the Derivatives offered for subscrip-
tion, to reduce or to extend the subscription period, to modify certain product parameters in accordance with market
conditions (e.g. changed volatility) or to refrain from issuing the Derivatives planned for subscription (e.g., if adverse
market conditions such as increased stock exchange and exchange rate volatility exist).

p)  Substitution of the Underlying

During the term of the Derivatives, changes in or substitution of the Underlying by the Calculation Agent can occur. In
this case, it cannot be ruled out that such changes or substitutions will negatively affect the value of the Derivatives.
Likewise, it cannot be ruled out that in the case of a Derivative based on an index that changes in the composition of
the index as a result of change or substitutions in respect of individual index components, for example, as a result of
the withdrawal or addition of individual securities, may negatively influence the price of the index and accordingly the
value of the Derivatives.

Il. INFORMATION ABOUT THE ISSUERS
A. Zircher Kantonalbank
a) General Information

aa) Name, registered office and principal place of business
Zircher Kantonalbank, Bahnhofstrasse 9, 8001 Zrich.

bb) Incorporation, duration

The formation of Zlrcher Kantonalbank is based on the Banking Act of 1869. The duration of the bank is unlimited.

cc) Legal authorization, legal form

Zurcher Kantonalbank is an independent institution under cantonal public law. Its current legal authorization is based
on the Law on the Zlrcher Kantonalbank of 28 September 1997, which entered into force on 1 January 1998. The
Canton of Zurich is liable for all of the obligations of the Zlrcher Kantonalbank to the extent its own funds are insuffi-
cient (§6 of the Law on the Zurcher Kantonalbank).

Zurcher Kantonalbank is subject to the Federal Law on Banks and Savings Institutions of 8 November 1934 and to su-
pervision by FINMA.

dd) Purpose

In accordance with the statutory purpose article (§2 of the Law on the Zlrcher Kantonalbank), the Zircher Kantonal-
bank contributes to the performance of economic and social tasks in the Canton of Zurich and supports environmental-
ly sustainable development. It pursues a business policy directed toward continuity and meets investment and financing
needs while taking into account the concerns of smaller and medium-sized businesses, employees, the agricultural
industry and commerce. In addition, Zircher Kantonalbank promotes home ownership, as well as the development of
affordable housing.

ee) Register

The initial registration in the Commercial Register of the Canton of Zurich was made on 24 April 1883.

ff)  Group

The consolidated financial accounts of the Ziircher Kantonalbank Group comprise the financial statements of the par-
ent company, Zlrcher Kantonalbank, as well as those of its directly and indirectly held essential subsidiaries, of which
Zircher Kantonalbank is holding of more than 50 Percent am stimmberechtigten Kapital halt oder die auf eine andere
Weise beherrscht werden. Die Behandlung von Beteiligungen kleiner als 50 Prozent wird im Abschnitt ,, Nicht konsoli-
dierte Beteiligungen” auf S. 71 des Geschaftsberichtes (Anlage 1B) erlautert.
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The presentation of the group financial statements is based on the economic view. The financial statements of the
group companies are based on uniform, group-wide accounting standards.

b) Information about the Board of Directors, management and auditors

aa) Board of Directors

Dr. Jorg Muller-Ganz

Chairman

Dr. Janos Blum

Deputy Chairman

Bruno Dobler

Deputy Chairman

Alfred Binder Member
Thomas Heilmann Member
Hans Kaufmann Member
Mark Roth Member
Peter Ruff Member
Anita Sigg Member
Prof. Dr. Hans Sigg Member
Liliane Waldner Member
Rolf Walther Member
Stefan Wirth Member
bb) Committee of the Board

Dr. Jorg Muller-Ganz Chairman

Dr. Janos Blum

Deputy Chairman

Bruno Dobler

Deputy Chairman

Alfred Binder

Substitute Member

Anita Sigg

Substitute Member

cc) Executive Board

Martin Scholl

CEO

Dr. Jirg Bihlmann

Head Logistics

Daniel Previdoli

Head Retail Banking

Markus Bachofen Rosner

Head Products & Services

Dr. Stephanino Isele

Head Investment Banking

Roger Miller

Head Credit Office
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Rudolf Sigg Head Finance

Heinz Kunz Head Corporate Banking

Christoph Weber Head Private Banking

dd) External auditors / group auditors

Ernst & Young AG, Maagplatz 1, 8005 Zurich serves as the external auditor under corporate law and banking law and
is the Group auditor.

Q) Business activities

aa) Core business

Zurcher Kantonalbank conducts the business of a universal bank. It does not enter into any transactions for its own
account which subject it to disproportionately large risks.

The field of business activities geographically comprises the Zurich economic area. Transactions in the rest of Switzer-
land and abroad are permitted to the extent the bank is not subject to any disproportionately large risks. The details of
the business activities are governed by the business regulation.

bb) Court, arbitration and administrative proceedings

On 29 August 2013, Switzerland signed a Joint Statement with the US to settle the longstanding tax dispute between
the banks and the US. The Program for Non-Prosecution Agreements or Non-Target Letters for Swiss Banks launched
by the US Ministry of Justice is aimed at those banks against which the US judicial authorities had not launched an
investigation by 29 August 2013. It does not therefore apply to Zircher Kantonalbank, against which an investigation
has been ongoing since September 2011. The Bank continues to cooperate with the competent authorities in these
proceedings.

A team of specialists analysed the consequences of the Swiss Federal Supreme Court ruling of 30 October 2012 with
regard to retrocessions for Zircher Kantonalbank and made selective adjustments to the contracts and the client infor-
mation. Zurcher Kantonalbank has given much attention to this matter in the past and already implemented appropri-
ate measures in 2001, 2008 and 2009 in line with the Supreme Court's rulings and the requirements of the supervisory
authorities.

In addition, Zircher Kantonalbank is not involved in any court, arbitration or administrative proceedings that could have
a material, adverse effect on its financial condition, nor to the best knowledge of the directors, officers and external
auditors of the Zlrcher Kantonalbank are any such proceedings threatened.

d) Capital

aa) Capital structure

The core capital of the Zircher Kantonalbank comprises the endowment capital and the participation capital. The en-
dowment capital is provided to the Zlrcher Kantonalbank by the Canton of Zurich. It is determined by the Kantonsrat
and as of 31 December 2013 amounts to CHF 1,925 million (2012: CHF 1,925 million) and is fully paid.

The Bank raises participation capital by issuing participation certificates. It may not exceed one half of the endowment
capital. The Basel lll rules have applied in Switzerland since 1 January 2013. This has resulted in additional capital re-
quirements, particularly for the risk of possible valuation adjustments due to the counterparty credit risk of derivatives
(CVA charge), which directly resulted in a 0.5 percentage point reduction in capital ratios. Zurcher Kantonalbank had a
Tier 1 capital ratio of 16.2 percent at the end of 2013 (previous year: 14.7 percent adjusted) and was thus able to
strengthen its capital base further. It achieved this mainly thanks to the profit retention from the 2013 annual result
coupled with lower credit risks.

As of the date of this issuance programme, there was no participation capital. The Bank obtains further equity capital
by accumulating reserves. As of 31 December 2013, retained earnings came to CHF 6,443 million before the appropria-
tion of profit (2012: CHF 6,250 million).
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bb) Outstanding conversion and option rights and bonds

As of the reporting date for the financial statements for the 2013 business year, there were no option rights outstand-
ing. Zlrcher Kantonalbank issued a subordinated Tier 1 bond with a conditional debt waiver in order to strengthen its
capital base further. In issuing this subordinated bond Zircher Kantonalbank is anticipating the stricter regulatory re-
quirements regarding capital over the next few years and is creating scope for further organic growth, especially in the
Bank's strategically important lending business.

As of the reporting date for the financial statements for the 2013 business year, the Zlrcher Kantonalbank had certifi-
cates of deposit (Kassenobligationen) outstanding of more than CHF 460 million (2012: CHF 642 million), bonds out-
standing of more than CHF 8,104 million (2012: CHF 7,558 million) and Pfandbrief bonds of CHF 6,212 million (2012:
CHF 5,082 million) outstanding. Interest rates, maturity dates and currencies for these bonds may be found on p. 85 ff.
of the Financial Report for the Business Year 2013 (Annex 1B) submitted herewith.

cc) Participation rights in its own capital
As of the date of this issuance program, Ziircher Kantonalbank held no participation rights in its own capital.

e) Rating
As of the date of this document, the ratings assigned by the rating agencies to Zircher Kantonalbank are as follows:

Rating Agency Date Long-term
Standard&Poor's 2 December 2013 AAA
Moody's 16 September 2013 Aaa
FitchRatings 11 February 2014 AAA

f) Financial reports

Annex 1 contains the financial reports for the business years 2012 (Annex 1A) and 2013 (Annex 1B, as audited by the
auditors). The reporting date for the last audited financial report is 31 December 2013 and is therefore not older than
18 months before the date of this issuance program.

The audit report of the auditors can be found on page 125 ff. of the financial report for the 2013 business year (Annex
1B) and on page 198 ff. of the financial report for the 2012 business year (Annex 1A).

g) Current business developments and business prospects

Political and regulatory changes will continue to affect the banking sector in 2014. Despite challenging competitive
conditions, Zurcher Kantonalbank is convinced that it is able to generate positive results. Over the coming years it aims
to expand its leading market position systematically, particularly in the economic area of Zurich but also in selected
segments in Switzerland and abroad. It will take account of the potential risks in all its business decisions and act in a
responsible manner in dealing with its owners and stakeholders.

h) No material adverse changes in assets, financial condition and income

There have been no material adverse changes in assets, financial condition and income since the reporting date of the
financial statements for the 2013 business year.

B. Ziircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited
a) General information
aa) Name, registered office and principal place of business

Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited, Regency Court, Glategny Esplanade, St. Peter Port, Guernsey GY'1
3AP, Channel Islands.
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bb) Incorporation, duration
Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited was incorporated on 17 November 2000. The duration is not limited.

cc) Legal authorization, legal form

Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited is a limited liability company in the form of a so-called "Non-Cellular
Company Limited by Shares" under the laws of Guernsey. The fully paid equity capital amounts to one million Swiss
francs (CHF 1,000,000).

dd) Purpose

The statutory purpose of the company is to engage in business as a finance company and in the borrowing of funds
through the issue of financial instruments of all types.

ee) Register

The first entry into the Commercial Registry in St. Peter Port was made on 17 November 2000.

ff)  Group

Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited is a 100-percent subsidiary of Zircher Kantonalbank.

b) Information about the board of directors, management and auditors

aa) Board of directors

The following persons are members of the board of directors

Felix Oegerli Chairman Employee of the Zircher Kan-
tonalbank

Beat Gabathuler Vice-Chairman Employee of the Zircher Kan-
tonalbank

John William Renouf Member Independent consultant, Guern-
sey

Paul Hodgson Member Managing Director of Butter-
field Trust (Guernsey) Limited

bb) Administration

The operative administration of Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited is performed by Butterfield Trust
(Guernsey) Limited, P.O. Box 25, Glategny Explanade, St. Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 3AG, Channel Islands.

cc) External audit firm
Ernst & Young LLP, 14 New Street, St. Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 4AF, Channel Islands acts as the external audit firm.

Q) Business activities

aa) Main activity

Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited issues structured financial products and sells these to Zircher Kan-
tonalbank which places them in the market.

bb) Court, arbitration and administrative procedures

Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey), Guernsey is not involved in any court, arbitration or administrative proceed-
ings which could have an adverse effect on its financial condition, nor to the best knowledge of the directors, officers
and external auditors of the Zircher Kantonalbank are any such proceedings threatened.
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d) Capital

aa) Capital structure

The issued share capital of Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited is one million Swiss francs (CHF
1,000,000) and is divided into one thousand (1,000) shares with a par value of one thousand Swiss francs (CHF 1,000)
each. The Zlrcher Kantonalbank is the owner of all of the shares of Zlrcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited.

bb) Outstanding conversion and option rights and bonds

As of the reporting date for the financial statements for the 2013 business year, there were no conversion or option
rights in respect of its own share capital outstanding.

cc) Participation rights in its own capital

As of the date of this issuance program, Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited held no participation rights
in its own share capital.

e) Annual financial statements

Annex 2 contains the financial reports for the business years 2012 (Annex 2A) and 2013 (Annex 2B), as audited by the
external auditors. The reporting date for the last audited financial report is 31 December 2013 and is therefore not
more than 18 months before the date of this issuance program.

The report of the auditors can be found on page 2 of financial report for the business year 2013 (Annex 2B) and on
page 2 of financial report for the business year 2012 (Annex 2A).

f) Current business developments and business prospects

Political and regulatory changes will continue to affect the banking sector in 2014. Despite challenging competitive
conditions, Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited is convinced that it is able to generate positive results.
Over the coming years it aims to expand its leading market position systematically, particularly in the economic area of
Zurich but also in selected segments in Switzerland and abroad. It will take account of the potential risks in all its busi-
ness decisions and act in a responsible manner in dealing with its owners and stakeholders.

g) No material adverse changes in assets, financial condition and income

There have been no material adverse changes in assets, financial condition and income since the reporting date of the
financial statements for the 2013 business year.

Emissionsprogramm 2014 22/53



lll.  INFORMATION ABOUT THE DERIVATIVES

A. Legal Basis

The purpose of this issuance program is the (public) offer of the Derivatives series issued from time to time by the rele-
vant Issuer on the basis of a resolution of the relevant corporate authority.

B. Statement respecting the CISA

Derivatives issued under this issuance program are not collective investments within the meaning of the
CISA. They are not subject to any approval requirement nor to supervision by FINMA, and investors do not
enjoy the specific investor protection provided under the CISA.

C. Covered categories of Derivatives and economic characteristics

The Derivatives covered by this issuance program are Structured Products issued by an Issuer the investment returns of
which are derived from one or more Underlyings. The value of the Derivatives is materially dependent on the positive
(so-called "bull derivatives") or negative (so-called "bear derivatives") change in value of one or more Underlyings. The
Underlyings for a Derivatives Series can be one or more completely different financial investments (see Section IV be-
low).

a) Categorization

The Derivatives issued under this Issuance program can be fundamentally allocated to the Derivatives categories below.
The Issuers are guided in this regard by the categorization used by the Swiss Structured Products Association ("SSPA")
which is also used by SIX Swiss Exchange and SIX Structured Products Exchange Ltd, respectively. The Issuer is free to
issue under this issuance program other Derivatives than those listed in the table below.

SSPA Derivative Map / Categorization Product Type Number
SIX Structured Product Exchange

Investment Products 1
Capital Protection 11
Capital Protection Certificate with Participation 1100
Convertible Certificate 1110
Capital Protection Certificate with Barrier 1130
Capital Protection Certificate with Coupon 1140
Referencedebtor-Certificate with caused 1410
Capital Protection

Yield Enhancement 12
Discount Certificate 1200
Discount Certificate with Barrier 1210
Reverse Convertible 1220
Barrier Reverse Convertible 1230
Express Certificate 1260
Referencedebtor-Certificate with Yield Enhancement 1420
Participation 13
Tracker Certificate 1300
Outperformance Certificate 1310
Bonus Certificate 1320
Bonus Outperformance Certificate 1330
Twin Win Certificate 1340
Referencedebtor-Certificate with Participation 1430
Leverage Products 2
Leverage without Knock-Out 21
Warrant 2100
Spread Warrant 2110
Leverage with Knock-Out 22
Warrant with Knock-Out 2200
Mini-Future 2210
Constant Leverage Certificate 2300
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b) IMPORTANT ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS OF THE INDIVIDUAL DERIVATIVES

Investors can obtain information about the important economic characteristics of the individual categories of Derivati-
ves in the following sections. Derivatives in the various categories may have characteristics which partially or significa-
ntly deviate from those of the described categories of Derivatives. Investors in such products will find the exact descrip-
tion of the economic characteristics in the relevant (indicative) terms sheets, as well as in the Final Terms.

aa) Capital protected products

Capital protected products are Derivatives with an asymmetrical risk profile, for which the Issuer usually guarantees a
specific or a minimal redemption amount. The level of the capital protection is set by the Issuer at the time of the issu-
ance and indicates the percentage of the nominal or par value that the investor will be assured on the Settlement Date,
regardless of the value of the Underlying. In general, capital protection applies only at the end of the term or at maturi-
ty and can be — depending on the terms of the issue — (far) below 100% of the Nominal Value. Capital protection
therefore does not mean that the full nominal or par value or the invested capital will be fully repaid at maturity in
every case. Pursuant to the provisions of the SSPA, there is capital protection in the event of any guaranteed redempti-
on of at least 90% of the Nominal Value.

Capital protected products consist, considered economically, of a bond and an option component. The option compo-
nent allows the investor to participate in the positive (bull derivatives) or negative (bear derivatives) performance of one
or more Underlyings. At the same time, the risk of loss is limited by the bond component through the assurance of a
minimum redemption amount. A return which exceeds the minimum redemption amount can, depending on the struc-
ture, be made as a one-time payment in connection the redemption and/or in the form of one or more payments
during the term (coupons). Additionally, the redemption amount can be set with or without a maximum amount (Cap).

It should be noted that in the case of a purchase of a Derivative in the capital protection category in the secondary
market that the capital protection in relation to the invested amount is reduced if the Derivative already trades above
the par or Nominal Value.

(i) Capital Protection Certificate with Participation (1100)

Derivatives in the category Capital Protection Certificate with Participation provide capital protection with simultaneous
participation in the positive (bull derivatives) or negative (bear derivatives) change in value of one or more Underlyings
above (bull derivatives) or below (bear derivatives) a predefined exercise price. The possible increase in value (potential
profit), depending on the product structure, is not limited (no Cap), or there is only a possibility of participation up to a
specific threshold (with Cap). If the product is one with a Cap, this will be set out in the Final Terms of the relevant
Derivatives Series.

If the value of the Underlying on the Final Fixing Date is below the exercise price (for bull derivatives) or above the exer-
cise price (for bear derivatives), the Issuer pays the investor the Minimum Redemption Amount on the maturity date.

(ii) Convertible Certificate (1110)

Derivatives in the Convertible Certificates category provide capital protection with simultaneous participation in the
positive (bull derivatives) or negative (bear derivatives) change in value of one or more Underlyings. The possible in-
crease in value (potential profit) is not limited (no Cap).

The investor has the right to exchange the Derivatives on the relevant conversion date (generally the Final Fixing Date)
into a number of Underlyings as defined by the exchange ratio. In the event of a conversion, the Issuer performs
through the delivery of the Underlying (physical delivery of the Underlying with cash settlement for fractions thereof
that cannot be delivered, not cumulative).

In the case of a non-deliverable Underlying (e.g., indexes), settlement is made through the payment of a corresponding
cash amount which is calculated generally by the Issuer or the Calculation Agent based on the closing prices of the
Derivatives on the Final Fixing Date.

The conversion of the Derivatives in this category is generally made automatically if the price of the Underlying on the
relevant conversion date exceeds the conversion price.

If the value of an Underlying on the Final Fixing Date is lower than the conversion price, the Issuer pays the Holder the
Minimum Redemption Amount on the maturity date.
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(iii) Capital Protection Certificate with Barrier (1130)

Derivatives in the category Capital Protection with Barrier provide capital protection with simultaneous participation in
the positive (bull derivatives) or negative (bear derivatives) change in value of one or more Underlyings; although the
possibility of participation lapses if the price of an Underlying reaches or exceeds a specified barrier within a specified
time frame. Depending on the structure of the product, it is possible to participate both in the positive as well as the
negative change in value of the Underlying or Underlyings. In this case, the product will have both an upper and a lo-
wer barrier.

If the price of the relevant Underlying touches or reaches or exceeds the specified barrier within the specified time fra-
me, the possibility of participation in the positive (bull derivatives) or negative (bear derivatives) performance of the
Underlying lapses and the investor receives the specified Minimum Redemption Amount on the maturity date. If the
product is one with an upper and a lower barrier, when there is a breach of the barrier, only the participation lapses on
the side in question. That means that if only the upper barrier is breached, participation in the negative change in value
continues; if only the lower barrier is breached, participation in the positive change in value remains. If both barriers are
breached, the investor receives the specified Minimum Redemption Amount on the maturity date. Depending on the
product structure, a rebate payment is made in addition following breach of the barrier or barriers, which payment is
generally set as a percentage of the par value or Nominal Value.

(iv) Capital Protection Certificate with Coupon (1140)

Derivatives in the category Capital Protection with Coupon provide capital protection with simultaneous participation in
the positive (bull derivatives) or the negative (bear derivatives) change in the value of one or more Underlyings, alt-
hough the profit from the change in value of the Underlying is paid by payment of one or more Coupons.

(v) Referencedebtor-Certificate with contingent Capital Protection (1410)

Compared to traditional Derivatives, reference debtor certificates (or structured products with a reference bond) also
relate to a reference bond as certain events (hereinafter referred to as credit events) in relation to the reference bond
(default or redemption event, as defined in the corresponding Final Terms) might have an adverse impact on the value
and result in the early redemption of the respective product. Providing that no default or redemption event occurs with
regard to the reference bond, reference debtor certificates normally work in the same way as a conventional structured
product.

Reference debtor certificates are highly sophisticated and complex financial products whose particular characteristic is
the fact that the investor not only assumes the usual risks such as market and currency risks and the risk of default by
the structured product issuer, but also a corresponding additional risk via the reference bond.

The reference debtor certificate with contingent capital protection may have one or more reference debtors. In addition
to the reference debtor's solvency (non-occurrence of a credit event), the redemption of the reference debtor certificate
with contingent capital protection is also dependent on the issuer risk. Redemption will take place at least in the
amount of the contingent capital protection on expiration provided that no credit event affecting the reference debtor
has occurred. If a credit event affecting the reference debtor has occurred during the term, the contingent capital pro-
tection no longer applies. Due to the credit event, the reference debtor certificate with contingent capital protection
will be redeemed early in an amount to be determined.

During its term the reference debtor certificate with contingent capital protection, which refers only to the nominal,
not to the purchase price, may fall under the contingent capital protection, for example as a result of a negative as-
sessment of the reference debtor's creditworthiness.

If during the term of the reference debtor certificate with contingent capital protection no credit event affecting the
reference debtor has occurred, the investor will participate in the performance of the price of the Underlying.

bb) Yield Enhancement Products

Yield enhancement products are derivatives, whose redemption amount is limited to a maximum amount and which
bear the risk of a total loss at redemption. They can be structured with or without (fix or variable) payments (coupon)
during the term.

(i) Discount Certificate (1200)

Derivatives in the category Discount Certificates, are issued at a discount, i.e., with a discount or rebate in relation to
the actual value of the Underlying. The determination of the redemption on the Final Fixing Date is made with refer-
ence to the final closing price of the relevant Underlying on the Final Fixing Date. The maximum redemption amount is
based on the Cap.

Emissionsprogramm 2014 25/53



The redemption of these Derivatives is made, subject to any provisions in the Final Terms specifying otherwise, as fol-
lows: if the final closing price of the Underlying on the Final Fixing Date is at or above the strike or the exercise price,
the maximum amount (Cap) is repaid. Generally, the exercise price or the strike corresponds to the Initial Fixing Value
of the Underlying or Underlyings unless otherwise specified in the Final Terms of the relevant Derivatives Series. If the
closing price of the relevant Underlying is below the strike or the exercise price on the Final Fixing Date, a physical de-
livery will be made on the redemption date for each Discount Certificate (if the conditions provide for physical delivery)
of a predefined number (ratio) of the relevant Underlyings (fractions thereof, even in the case of the purchase of several
Discount Certificates, may not be aggregated and will always be paid in cash) or a cash payment in an equivalent
amount. The amount of the cash payment is set on the basis of the closing price determined by the Relevant Exchange
for the Underlying and the ratio.

(ii) Discount Certificate with Barrier (1210)

Derivatives in the category Discount Certificate with Barrier are issued as discount certificates at a discount or with a
rebate from the actual value of the Underlying or Underlyings. The discount is lower than that of comparable discount
certificates because a barrier is specified in relation to the value of the Underlying or Underlyings and when this barrier
is reached or exceeded, depending on the specific terms of the Derivative, either the relevant Underlying is delivered or
a cash payment in the amount of the ratio multiplied by the closing price on the Final Fixing Date is paid.

(iii) Reverse Convertible (1220)

Derivatives in the category Reverse Convertibles distinguish themselves through payment of one or more Coupons. The
determination of the redemption amount on the Settlement Date depends on the closing price of the Underlying or
Underlyings on the Final Fixing Date.

The redemption of these Derivatives is typically made as follows: if the closing price of the relevant Underlying on the
Final Fixing Date is at or above the exercise price or strike, the par value or nominal amount is repaid. The exercise price
or the strike generally corresponds to the Initial Fixing Value of the Underlying or Underlyings unless otherwise specified
in the Final Terms of the relevant Derivatives Series. If the closing price of the relevant Underlying on the Final Fixing
Date is below the strike or exercise price, physical delivery of a predefined number of units (ratio) of the relevant Under-
lying (with fractions, even where there is a purchase of several Reverse Convertibles, not being cumulative and always
paid in cash) is made on the redemption date (if the terms provide for physical delivery) for each Reverse Convertible or
a cash payment in an equivalent amount. The cash payment is determined based on the relevant closing price of the
relevant Underlying specified at the Reference Exchange and the ratio. In every situation, a Coupon that is defined at
issuance as a percentage of the Nominal Value is paid on the Coupon Date or dates.

(iv) Barrier Reverse Convertible (1230)

Derivatives in the category Barrier Reverse Convertible are equivalent to those in the category Reverse Convertible, alt-
hough regardless of the closing price of the relevant Underlying the par value or Nominal Value is repaid if during the
Observation Period the relevant barrier was never reached or exceeded. If the barrier was reached or exceeded and the
relevant Underlying on the final valuation day is below the exercise price or the strike, then, analogously to the catego-
ry Reverse Convertible, a physical delivery of the number of the relevant Underlyings as determined by the ratio (if the
terms provide for physical delivery) or a cash payment in an equivalent amount is made. Generally, the exercise price or
the strike corresponds to the Initial Fixing Value of the Underlying or Underlyings unless otherwise specified in the Final
Terms of the relevant Derivatives Series. In this category of Derivatives, the Coupon is owed in every situation.

(v)  Express Certificate (1260)

Derivatives in the Express Certificate category are typically dependent for their term and redemption amount on the
closing price of the Underlying(s) on the observation dates specified for them or the Final Fixing Date. If the closing
price of the relevant Underlying is at or above the exercise price (call level) on an observation date, then these Deriva-
tives are redeemed immediately thereafter. At the same time, the investor receives, in addition to the par or Nominal
Value, a coupon, the amount of which was defined as of the Initial Fixing Date for each relevant observation date.
Depending on the product structure, a barrier may also be specified for the observation dates; if the closing price of the
relevant Underlying is below the exercise price on the observation date, but above the barrier, the product will not be
redeemed early, but the investor receives a coupon payment. If the closing price of the relevant Underlying is at or be-
low the barrier on the observation date, the product will not be redeemed early, nor will any coupon payment be
made. Depending on product structure, Express Certificates may have a so-called memory effect, which makes it possi-
ble to make up for coupon payments not made on a subsequent observation date, provided all the requirements for a
coupon payment on the observation date are met.
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If no early redemption has occurred, the following redemption conditions apply on the Settlement Date: If the relevant
Underlying on the Final Fixing Date is at or above the exercise price or strike, the redemption consists of the par or
Nominal Value, plus the maximum possible Coupon defined at issue. If the closing price of the relevant Underlying is
below the exercise or strike price, but above a predefined barrier, the Nominal Value without a Coupon will be repaid.
If the closing price of the relevant Underlying on the Final Fixing Date is at or below the barrier, a physical delivery of a
predefined number of units (ratio) of the relevant Underlying (with fractions, even where there is a purchase of several
Express Certificates, not being cumulative and always paid in cash) is made for each Express Certificate on the repay-
ment date (if the terms provide for physical delivery) or a cash payment in an equivalent amount is made. The cash
payment is determined based on the relevant closing price of the relevant Underlying specified at the Reference Ex-
change and the ratio.

(vi) Referencedebtor-Certificate with Yield Enhancement (1420)

Compared to traditional derivatives, reference debtor certificates (or structured products with a reference bond) also
relate to a reference bond as certain events (hereinafter referred to as credit events) in relation to the reference bond
(default or redemption event, as defined in the corresponding Final Terms) might have an adverse impact on the value
and result in the early redemption of the respective product. If no default or redemption event occurs with regard to
the reference bond, reference debtor certificates normally work in the same way as a conventional structured product.

Reference debtor certificates are highly sophisticated and complex financial products whose particular characteristic is
the fact that the investor not only assumes the usual risks such as market and currency risks and the risk of default by
the structured product issuer, but also a corresponding additional risk via the reference bond.

The reference debtor certificate with yield enhancement may have one or more reference debtors. In addition to the
reference debtor's solvency (non-occurrence of a credit event), the redemption of the reference debtor certificate with
yield enhancement is also dependent on the issuer risk, provided that no credit event affecting the reference debtor has
occurred. If a credit event affecting the reference debtor has occurred during the term, the reference debtor certificate
with yield enhancement will be redeemed early at an amount to be determined on account of the credit event.

The value of the reference debtor certificate with yield enhancement may fall during the term, for example as a result
of a negative assessment of the reference debtor's creditworthiness. If the Underlying is below the strike or exercise
price at expiration, the Underlying will be delivered to the investor and/or cash settlement will be made provided that
no credit event affecting the reference debtor has occurred. If the Underlying is above the strike or exercise price at
expiration, the nominal will be repaid, provided that no credit event affecting the reference debtor has occurred. The
opportunity to make gains is, however, limited to the amount of the strike or exercise price. Depending on the terms of
the reference debtor certificate with yield enhancement, either a coupon or discount on the Underlying may be grant-
ed.

A coupon will be paid irrespective of the performance of the Underlying provided that no credit event affecting the
reference debtor has occurred. The reference debtor certificate with yield enhancement may also include a barrier.
Several Underlyings permit higher coupons, higher discounts or lower barriers subject to greater risk.

cc) Participation Products

Participation products are derivatives with a payment profile that generally linearly reproduces the change in value of
the Underlying and so makes it possible for the investor to participate in the performance of the Underlying. Depending
on the structure of the product, a disproportionate participation in the positive performance of the Underlying is also
possible. The redemption amount is theoretically unlimited, but there is, however, the risk of a total loss. They can be
structured with or without payments during the term (coupon) and do not have, or only have a limited capital protec-
tion.

Participation products can, depending on their structure, have a limited capital protection. This limits the potential loss
in comparison to a direct investment in the Underlying so long as a certain threshold (a so-called barrier or knock-out) is
not reached during the Observation Period. If the barrier is reached or exceeded (either above or below), the investor
loses the (limited) capital protection. Derivatives in this category with limited capital protection may trade during the
term at prices well below the issuance price, even if the barrier has not been reached or exceed (either above or below).

The redemption in the case of Derivatives in this category can, depending on the structure or the Underlying, be made
by payment of a cash Settlement Amount or the physical delivery of the relevant Underlying, adjusted in accordance
with the ratio.

Participation products can be issued with a limited or unlimited term.
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(i) Tracker Certificate (1300)

Derivatives in the Tracker Certificate category permit an indirect investment in one or more Underlyings which are
equally or unequally weighted. The profit and loss potential of these Derivatives corresponds to a large extent to that of
the Underlying.

(i) Outperformance Certificate (1310)

Derivatives in the Outperformance Certificate category are typically characterized by a participation in the change in
value of the relevant Underlying that is increased by a specified participation factor, i.e. disproportional and unlimited if
the Underlying is above the exercise price or the strike on the Final Fixing Date. The participation factor, however, ceas-
es to apply if the closing price of the relevant Underlying on the Final Fixing Date is below the exercise price or strike. If
the closing price of the relevant Underlying on the Final Fixing Date is below the initial value, the potential return is
basically comparable with that of the Underlying on which it is based. Depending on the product structure, a limit on
profits (Cap) is also possible. Above the exercise price or the strike, the investor participates in the change in value of
the relevant Underlying up to the Cap in accordance with the participation factor, although the maximum return po-
tential is achieved at the Cap.

(iii) Bonus Certificate (1320)

Derivatives in the Bonus Certificate category are typically characterized by an unlimited participation in the performance
of the Underlying. They also offer a limited capital protection, i.e., a minimum redemption in the amount of the bonus
level. This limited capital protection and the minimum redemption cease to apply as soon as one or more of the Under-
lyings reaches or falls below the specified barrier during the Observation Period. The determination of the repayment
on the Final Fixing Date depends on the price history and the closing price of the relevant Underlying: if the Underlying
has not reached or has fallen below the barrier during the Observation Period or no Underlying has reached or fallen
below the barrier, the repayment is made at the closing price of the relevant Underlying multiplied by the ratio, but at
least, however, in the amount of the bonus level. If, however, the Underlying reached or fell below the barrier during
the Observation Period or at least one of the Underlyings reached its barrier or fell below it, this results in either a phys-
ical delivery of the Underlying or the payment of a Cash Settlement Amount equal to the closing price of the Underly-
ing multiplied by the ratio (physical delivery of the Underlying with cash settlement for fractions thereof that cannot be
delivered, not cumulative).

(iv) Bonus-Outperformance Certificate (1330)

Derivatives in the Bonus Outperformance Certificate category, are essentially similar to the Derivatives in the category
Bonus Certificate, with the difference that they allow for a disproportionate (i.e., leveraged) participation in the per-
formance of the relevant Underlying above the exercise price or the strike.

(v) Twin Win Certificate (1340)

Derivatives in the Twin Win Certificate category are generally suitable for investors who expect a certain price perfor-
mance of the Underlying, but also want to profit from the opposite performance up to a certain level (i.e., the barrier).
Even though protection for the invested capital is generally provided with this mechanism until the barrier is reached,
the investor in this Derivative bears the market risk of the relevant Underlying.

Typically, Derivatives in this category reflect the performance of the Underlying one-to-one or disproportionately. In
addition, they convert losses into profits on the maturity date, provided the Underlying does not touch or fall below the
barrier during the Observation Period. Three scenarios are possible on the Final Fixing Date: If the closing price of the
relevant Underlying exceeds the exercise price or strike, the investor participates one-to-one or disproportionately in the
performance of the Underlying. If the closing price of the relevant Underlying is below the exercise price or strike and
the Underlying did not touch or fall below the barrier during the Observation Period, then losses on the Underlying are
converted into profits. If the closing price of the relevant Underlying is below the exercise price or strike and the barrier
was reached during the Observation Period, either a Cash Settlement Amount is paid corresponding to the closing price
of the Underlying on the Final Fixing Date multiplied by the ratio or, if provided for, a physical delivery of the Underly-
ing is made.

(vi) Referencedebtor-Certificate with Participation (1430)

Compared to traditional derivatives, reference debtor certificates (or structured products with a reference bond) also
have a reference bond as certain events (hereinafter referred to as credit events) in relation to the reference bond (de-
fault or redemption event, as defined in the corresponding Final Terms) might have an adverse impact on the value and
lead to the early redemption of the product. Provided that no default or repayment event occurs with regard to the
reference bond, reference debtor certificates normally work in the same way as a conventional structured product.
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Reference debtor certificates are highly sophisticated and complex financial products whose particular characteristic is
the fact that the investor not only assumes the usual risks such as market and currency risks and the risk of default by
the structured product issuer, but also a corresponding additional risk via the reference bond.

The reference debtor certificate with participation may have one or more reference debtors. In addition to the refer-
ence debtor's solvency (non-occurrence of a credit event), the redemption of the reference debtor certificate with par-
ticipation is also dependent on issuer risk provided that no credit event affecting the reference debtor has occurred. If a
credit event affecting the reference debtor has occurred during the term, the reference debtor certificate with partici-
pation will be redeemed early at an amount to be determined on account of the credit event.

The value of the reference debtor certificate with participation may fall during the term, for example on account of a
negative assessment of the reference debtor's creditworthiness.

If during the term of the reference debtor certificate with participation no credit event affecting the reference debtor
has occurred, the investor will participate in the performance of the price of the Underlying.

dd) Leverage Products

Leverage products are Derivatives whose invested amount is subject to a leverage effect both in the direction of profits
and losses, i.e., changes in the value of the Underlying have a disproportionate effect on the value and/or the redemp-
tion amount than would be the case with a direct investment in the Underlying. The leverage effect permits the inves-
tor in a leveraged product to use less capital than if he or she would invest directly in the Underlying. As a result of the
leverage effect, higher profits are possible, on the one hand, than in the case of a direct investment in the Underlying,
but there is the risk of a total loss of the invested capital.

(i) Warrant (2100)

The essential attribute of Derivatives in the Warrant category is the so-called leverage effect. Changes in the market
value of the Underlying or even the absence of expected changes can have a disproportionate effect on the value of
the Derivative, up to a total loss.

Depending on the structure, investors profit from rising (call warrants) or falling (put warrants) market prices for the
Underlying. The leverage effect causes the value of the Derivatives to react proportionally more strongly to changes in
the market price of the Underlying. The leverage is the result of the fact that the invested capital in a warrant is smaller
than for a direct investment in the Underlying and indicates how many warrants or options the investor may purchase
for the current price of the Underlying.. The leverage effect acts in both directions — not only to the advantage of the
Holder of the warrants or the option Holder in the case of favorable developments in the market price of the Underly-
ing, but also to the disadvantage of the Holder of the warrants or the option Holder in the case of unfavorable devel-
opments in the market price of the Underlying. The risk with an investment in the warrant is therefore greater than
that of a direct investment in the Underlying. The potential for loss comprises the total of the invested capital (the so-
called option premium).

Considering the limited term of the warrant, the investor or purchaser cannot expect a timely recovery of a negative
performance of the Underlying for the investor. Warrants expire worthless if the market value of the Underlying is be-
low (call warrants) or above (put value) the exercise price or the strike. The loss equals the price paid for the warrant
(option premium).

In the case of warrants with physical delivery of securities, the investor acquires a claim on the delivery (call warrants) or
purchase (put warrants) of a quantity of the Underlying at a price specified in advance, the exercise price or strike.

In the case of warrants with Cash Settlement, the investor acquires a claim for the payment of a Cash Settlement
Amount which is the difference between the exercise or strike price and the market price of the Underlying when exer-
cised or on the expiration date.

(ii) Spread Warrant (2110)

Similar to products in the Warrants category, spread warrants are characterised by a leverage effect, resulting in a cor-
responding disproportionately large potential for gains or losses (including the total loss of the entire amount invested;
see the relevant explanations in section i “Warrants”).
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The risk of investing in spread warrants is greater than that of a direct investment in the Underlying. On expiration the
spread warrants allow their Intrinsic Value to be preserved. In contrast to conventional warrants, the Intrinsic Value and
the associated potential for gains are limited by a spread consisting of an Upper and Lower Exercise Price.

Call spread warrants enable investors to benefit from rising prices of the Underlying, while put spread warrants allow
them to benefit from falling prices; call spread warrants expire worthless, limited to the amount invested, if the Final
Fixing Value of the Underlying is below the Lower Exercise Price; by contrast, put spread warrants expire worthless,
limited to the amount invested, if the Final Fixing Value of the Underlying is above the Upper Exercise Price.

As mentioned above, the potential gains of an investment in spread warrants are limited, namely by the Upper Exercise
Prices in the case of call spread warrants and by the Lower Exercise Prices in the case of put spread warrants. This
means that an investor may benefit from rising (in the case of call spread warrants) or falling (in the case of put spread
warrants) prices of the individual Underlyings up to a maximum of these (price) thresholds or threshold values. Once
the said threshold values have been reached, the highest possible payout of a spread warrant has been reached. The
daily loss of time value, which increases towards the end of the term, requires regular monitoring of the spread war-
rants.

(iii) Warrant with Knock-Out (2200)

Derivatives in the Warrant with Knock category-Out are typically characterized by immediate expiration, without value,
if the price of the Underlying falls below a barrier (in the case of a "knock-out call", through which the investor profits
from a rising market price) or rises above a barrier (in the case of a "knock-out put”, through which the investor profits
from a falling market price). Generally, the closer the current market price is to the barrier, the greater the leverage
effect. The price of the Derivatives in this category is, in contrast to the price of warrants, only marginally influenced by
volatility or current market value. Upon expiration of the instrument, the repayment is based on the current market
price of the Underlying and the exercise price or strike.

(iv) Mini-Future (2210)

Derivatives in the Mini-Future category combine characteristics of futures contracts (i.e., contracts in which two parties
agree to settle a transaction at a later time) and those of leverage products. Because of the generally low capital re-
quirement, they permit a disproportional participation in the price change of the Underlying and may, therefore, be
used for speculation or to hedge positions. Derivatives in this category do not have a fixed term (open-ended), but
nevertheless expire immediately upon the market price falling below the barrier (Long Mini-Futures) or exceeding the
barrier (Short Mini-Futures), the so-called stop-loss levels, although in this case the repayment of the realized residual
value is made. Because of these characteristics, these Derivatives constitute an alternative to classic, exchange-traded
futures contracts. In contrast to Derivatives in the warrants category, these Derivatives do not have a time value (Zeit-
wert), accordingly the price of these Derivatives during their term approximates their intrinsic value, i.e., (in the case of
long mini-futures) the market price of the Underlying minus the current financing level or (in the case of short mini-
futures) the current financing level minus the market price of the Underlying.

(v) Constant-Leverage Certificate (2300)

Derivatives of the Constant Leverage Certificate category enable investors to make long-term leveraged investments in
an Underlying where the risk and the leverage are kept constant. Derivatives of this category do not have a fixed term
(they are open-ended).

The main characteristic of this derivative is the constant leverage. The amount invested by the investor is periodically
invested with the performance of the Underlying and the desired leverage. The leverage and the current price of the
Underlying provide the basis for recalculating the amount invested with the nearest price of the Underlying to ensure
that the leverage remains constant. The subscription ratio of the Constant Leverage Certificate is adjusted to reflect the
reallocation. If the stop-loss level is reached, the amount invested is lost; however, the loss is limited to the stop-loss
level. This prevents the value of this Derivative producing a negative performance.

D. Issuance and Sale of Derivatives

This section sets forth the conditions applicable to the procedures for the issuance of Derivatives. They apply to all De-
rivatives which are issued by the Issuer under this issuance program.

a) Terms and conditions

The terms of an offer are constituted by the relevant (indicative) term sheet for the individual Derivatives Series. The
(indicative) term sheet is merely a marketing document which contains the most important economic terms of the rele-
vant Derivatives Series (if marked as "indicative", merely in indicative form; see Section Ill.D.a)cc). It does not create any
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rights in relation to the Issuer and the Issuer can, in its sole discretion, change or supplement or even cancel it at any
time.

The rights and obligations of Holders of the Derivatives in relation to the Issuer are determined solely by the Derivatives
Terms specified in this issuance program, as well as the Final Terms.

aa) Subscription

Derivatives can, as specified in the relevant (indicative) term sheet for an individual Derivatives Series, be subscribed for
during the subscription period during normal banking business hours at the Issuer or any branch of the Zircher Kan-
tonalbank. Any minimum or maximum amounts for the subscription will be specified in the (indicative) term sheet for
an individual Derivatives Series.

The Issuer reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to shorten, lengthen or cancel the subscription period. The Issuer is
not obliged to accept subscriptions.

bb) Allocation

During the subscription period, all subscriptions will be received without any special subscription procedure until the
maximum issue size is reached. After the maximum issue size is reached, no further subscriptions will be accepted and
the subscription period will be closed without notice. The Issuer will decide, in its sole discretion, whether an allocation
will be made.

The results of the offer will not be disclosed. Persons who have subscribed will be informed about their allocation pur-
suant to the offer or about other matters in respect of the issue by SIX SIS AG and their own bank.

cc) Determination of the issue price

The issue price of a Derivatives Series will be determined by the Calculation Agent on the Initial Fixing Date on the basis
of the then current market situation and the price or level of the Underlying, consistent with the terms published in the
(indicative) term sheet. In the indicative term sheet, the issue may specify "indicative" issue prices which are based on
the fair values at the time of the publication of the relevant indicative term sheet. "Indicative" issue prices are not bind-
ing on the Issuer and the legally binding issue price will be specified in the final term sheet and in the Final Terms for a
Derivatives Series.

The determination [of the issue price] is made on the basis of the fair value of the components of the Derivatives in
accordance with financial mathematical methods. The issue price can include a surcharge that is not apparent to the
investor, the amount of which is determined in the discretion of the Issuer and that over time reduces the market price
set for the Derivative. Margins and fees can be included in the calculation of the issue price, which in part may be paid
as distribution fees to distribution companies. The Issuer is not required to disclose such margins and fees, provided
that the fees are not shown via the Total Expense Ratio (TER) described above.

No subscription or issue costs are imposed on the buyer or subscriber by the Issuer.

dd) Placement and Underwriting

If not specified otherwise in the (indicative) Term Sheet for a Derivatives Series, the placement will be made by the ZU-
rcher Kantonalbank (referred to in this capacity as the "Lead Manager").

A calculation agent serves only as service provider to the Issuer and does not assume any obligations or responsibility
towards the Holders of the Derivatives.

b) Listing and admission to trading

To the extent not otherwise specified in the (indicative) Term Sheet or the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series, a listing
on the SIX Swiss Exchange and trading through SIX Structured Products Exchange Ltd. will be applied for in respect of
all Derivatives issued under this issuance program. The Issuer gives no guarantee that a Derivatives Series will, in fact,
be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange and admitted to trading through SIX Structured Products Exchange Ltd.

There are no binding commitments from intermediaries in respect of secondary trading. Zircher Kantonalbank intends,

under customary market terms, to regularly provide ask and bid prices for the Derivatives, but it assumes no legal obli-
gation to do so to the extent not otherwise specified in the Final Terms.
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Q) Sales Restrictions

aa) Ingeneral

To the extent not explicitly specified in the Final Terms, the Issuer has not taken any action and will not take any action
to permit the public offer, the holding or the distribution of the offering documentation with respect to the Derivatives
in any jurisdiction outside Switzerland. The delivery of this issuance program or other issuance documentation and the
offer of the Derivatives may be restricted in certain countries by legal requirements. Persons to whom this issuance
program or other issue documentation, such as term sheets, Final Terms, promotional materials or other sales materials
are delivered are hereby requested by the Issuer to verify and adhere to the then applicable restrictions.

bb) European Economic Area ("EEA")

In a member state of the EEA which has implemented the directive 2003/71/EG (the "Prospectus Directive"), the Deriv-
atives, including the relevant documents may only be offered from (and including) the date of the entry into force of
this implementation if this is permitted pursuant to the applicable law and other regulations; and

(i) the public offer commences or is completed within twelve months after the publication of a prospectus in respect
of the Structured Products approved by the relevant supervisory authority pursuant to the regulations of the
member state where the offer originates and, to the extent a public offer is made in a different member state
than the member state where the offer originates, a certification or approval from the supervisory authority of the
member state where the offer originates has been issued; or

(i) an exception from the prospectus obligation exists, which is specified in the implementing legislation of the mem-
ber state where the offer originates.

"Public offer” means (i) a communication directed at the public in any form and in any manner which contains suffi-
cient information about the terms of the offer and the terms of the structured products to be offered to equip a person
to decide whether to purchase of subscribe for the structured products, as well as (i) any further specifications con-
tained in the implementing legislation of the relevant member state in which the offer is made.

In @ member state of the EEA which has not implemented the Prospectus Directive, a public offer in or from this juris-
diction can only be made if this is permitted under applicable law and other regulations and no obligations are imposed
on the Issuer. The Issuer has not and will not take action to make a public offer, the holding or the distribution of doc-
umentation with respect to the Derivatives permissible in this jurisdiction if special action must be taken for this pur-
pose.

cc) United Kingdom ("U.K.")

With respect to Derivatives with a term of less than one year, the following applies:

The Derivatives may only be sold by persons whose regular business activity, consistent with their business purpose, is
the acquisition, holding, management and sale of investments (as principal or as agent).

These persons have not offered or sold any Derivatives and will not offer or sell any Derivatives except to persons
whose regular business activity, consistent with their business purpose, is the acquisition, holding, management and
sale of investments (as principal or as agent) because the issue of Derivatives otherwise would constitute a violation by
the Issuer of Section 19 des Financial Services and Markets Act of 2000 (the "FSMA")

An invitation to take part in investment activities (as defined in Section 21 of the FSMA) was or will only be communi-
cated or made in connection with the issue or the sale of Derivatives under conditions under which Section 21(1) of the
FSMA does not apply to the Issuer and all applicable provisions of the FSMA in respect of all activities in relation to the
Derivatives which will be carried out in or from the United Kingdom or in this regard are otherwise involved are, were
or will be observed.

dd) United States of America ("U.S.A./U.S. persons")

The Derivatives have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act") in its
current form and trading in the Derivatives has not been and will not be approved by the United States Commodity
Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC") under the United States Commodity Exchange Act (the "Commodity Ex-
change Act"). The Derivatives may not, directly or indirectly, be offered, sold, resold, delivered or traded at any time in
the U.S.A. or to or for account of U.S. persons. Derivatives may not be exercised or redeemed for the benefit of a U.S.
person or a person in the U.S.A. In this context, "U.S.A." means the United States of America (the states and the Dis-
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trict of Columbia), its territories and possessions and other sovereign territory and "U.S. persons” means "U.S. per-
sons" as defined in Rule 902 of Regulation S under the Securities Act, as well as persons not falling under the definition
of “Non-United States Persons” in accordance with Section 4.7 of the CFTC regulations.

ee) Bailiwick of Guernsey ("Guernsey")

Derivatives issued by the Issuer Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited have not and will not be sold to per-
sons in the Bailiwick of Guernsey.

E. Derivative Terms

The following provisions set forth the general derivatives terms and conditions to be applied in respect of all Derivatives
which are issued by the Issuer under this issuance program. These comprise the general investment terms and condi-
tions in general form for all Derivatives issued under this issuance program (" General Derivative Terms and Conditions",
see Section lIl.E.a)), as well as the general special terms applicable to the individual categories of Derivatives (see Section
l.E.b) and they apply, subject to any contrary provisions in the specific terms for an individual series of Derivatives
which are included in the relevant Final Terms.

The general derivatives terms included in this issuance program and the general special conditions generally do not
include all of the information that is necessary for an investment decision because the structuring of the individual De-
rivatives Series is made immediately before the beginning of the offer and not already at the time of the publication of
this issuance program. The issuance program therefore provides a summary of the possible structure of the derivates,
which summary is not exhaustive.

The Final Terms for a specific Derivatives Series may in part deviate significantly from the following general derivatives
terms. The investor should, without fail, read and understand the Final Terms, in particular the differences from the
typical conditions described below, before he or she invests in a specific Derivative.

a) General derivatives terms

aa) Aggregate amount and further issuances

The aggregate amount of a Derivatives Series as well as the number of Derivatives or the nominal amount are indicated
in the relevant Final Terms. This statement does not give any information about the amount of a Derivatives Series that
was actually publicly placed in the market by the Issuer or the Lead Manager.

The Issuer is entitled to issue further Derivatives of the same kind at any time and without the consent of the Holders of
the Derivatives so that, with the previously issued Derivatives, they constitute a single issue and increase its size. Such
an increase will be published pursuant to Section IIl.G.

The Issuer or other Zircher Kantonalbank companies are entitled at any time during the term of the Derivatives to buy
and sell these. These companies have no obligation to inform the Holders of the Derivatives about such a purchase or
sale.

Derivatives which the Issuer did not place in the market or repurchased in the market may, without notice to the Hold-
ers of the Derivatives, be cancelled, held as trading assets, resold or used in another way.

bb) Currencies

Derivatives can be issued in Swiss francs (CHF) or another freely convertible currency. The currency of a Derivatives Se-
ries is specified in the Final Terms. To the extent not otherwise specified in the Final Terms, all payments from a Deriva-
tives Series are to be made in the specified currency of the relevant series.

cc) Issue price

The issue price is set on a binding basis in the relevant Final Terms. The price can be indicated as price per unit or as
nominal amount / par value, with a percentage increase or discount, expressed as a percentage of the nominal. Regard-
ing the specification of the issue price and indicative price information, reference is made to the provisions in Section
D.a)co).

Derivatives are transferable only in units of one Derivative or an integral multiple thereof to the extent the final terms
(Final Terms) of a Derivatives Series do not contain any contrary provisions.
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dd) Interest payments, dividends and other distributions

(i) General

To the extent not explicitly specified in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series, the Holder of the Derivatives has no right
to the payment of dividends, interest or other distributions in respect of dividends, interest or other distributions that
are paid in respect of the Underlying.

For Derivatives for which the Issuer has the obligation to pay interest, this will be specified as an annual interest rate (%
p.a.) in the relevant Final Terms.

The interest amount is calculated for each interest period on the basis of the actual number of days in the interest peri-
od, divided by 360 unless otherwise specified in the provisions of the Final Terms of a Derivatives Series.

(ii) Rights from Underlyings that are delivered

Underlyings acquired in connection with the redemption of the Derivatives give the right to all dividends payable (in the
case of shares) or any other rights linked to the Underlying after the redemption or Settlement Date or after the date of
exercise. If the redemption or Settlement Date or the Exercise Date occur on the same date as the loss of the right or
entitlement, the Underlying will be delivered ex-dividend or without the right or entitlement.

ee) Interest payment dates

The applicable interest payment dates for a Derivatives Series are specified as calendar days in the relevant Final Terms.
If such a specification is missing, interest and distributions are paid on the due date for redemption.

ff)  Term and Expiration

The term of the individual Derivatives Series is specified in the relevant Final Terms. The term can be unlimited (open-
end).

If the term for a Derivatives Series is limited, it begins on the Issue Date and ends on the Settlement Date, subject to an
early maturity date on account of a termination, exercise of an option or on account of a barrier being reached.

If the term for a Derivatives Series is unlimited, the conditions under which the Issuer or the Holder of a Derivative may
properly terminate the Derivative are specified in the Final Terms.

With the exception of Derivatives in the category Leveraged Products (see Section Ill.C.b)dd) and Section Ill.E.b)aa)) and
open-ended Derivatives, all Derivatives issued under this issuance program expire without special notice from the Issuer
or the Holder automatically on the date of redemption or the delivery of the security, as specified in the relevant Final
Terms.

The Final Terms for a Derivatives Series may provide that the term of the Derivatives is terminated immediately upon the
occurrence of certain events, e.qg., if a certain barrier is reached by the Underlying. In this case, the redemption date,
the redemption amount or the date of the delivery of the Underlying will be determined by the Issuer or the Calculation
Agent in accordance with the provisions in the Final Terms and published according to Section lll.G. The redemption
amount may also be zero.

gg) Redemption methods

The redemption methods for the individual Derivatives Series are specified in the relevant Final Terms and may provide
for a payment of a Cash Settlement Amount and/or the physical delivery of Underlyings.

The Final Terms for a Derivatives Series may provide that the term of the Derivatives is terminated immediately upon the
occurrence of certain events, e.g., an Underlying reaching a certain barrier. The Final Terms specify whether the Issuer
pays a Cash Settlement Amount in this situation (although the repayment amount paid may also be zero) or is required
to deliver Underlyings.

(i) Cash Settlement

If the Issuer is required to pay a redemption amount, such amount is specified in the Final Terms for the relevant Deriv-
atives Series, either as a fixed amount, as a percentage of the par value or nominal amount or as an amount deter-
mined by the Issuer or the Calculation Agent on the basis of a formula (with respect to Derivatives in the category War-
rants, see also section lII.E.b)aa)(iii))
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The payment of the Cash Settlement Amount is made in the currency specified in the Final Terms of the respective
Derivatives Series by a credit to the account of the relevant Clearing System for the account of the Holder of the Deriva-
tives.

(ii)  Physical delivery

To the extent the Issuer is required to physically deliver Underlyings, the number of Underlyings to be delivered is speci-
fied in the Final Terms for the relevant Derivatives Series, either as a fixed number or as number to be calculated by the
Issuer or the Calculation Agent on the basis of a formula (with respect to Derivatives in the category Warrants, see also
section IIl.E.b)aa)(iii)).

For each individual Derivative, any fractions [of an Underlying] are settled by a cash payment based on the closing price
of the Underlying on the date of the delivery. The aggregation of such fractions for all acquired Derivatives held by an
investor for the purpose of delivering an Underlying will not be made even if the fractions would, in pure mathematical
terms, result in delivery of more Underlyings. If the delivery of Underlyings is impossible on the delivery date, the Issuer
has the right to pay the equivalent cash value of the Underlying in the currency of the Derivatives Series. The equivalent
cash value will be calculated by the Issuer or the Calculation Agent on the basis of the closing price of the Underlying
on the delivery date.

hh) Termination / early redemption

(i) New taxes and laws or administrative measures

The Issuer reserves the right of early termination in respect of all Derivatives issued under this issuance program for tax
reasons (such as, e.g., in the situation in which the Issuer would be required on account of new tax laws to pay addi-
tional amounts which result from the withholding or deduction of current or future taxes, imposts, charges or fees,
regardless of type), as well as in the case of limitations in respect of its activities as Issuer through new laws or adminis-
trative measures (e.qg., if it is prohibited under supervisory law from issuing derivatives).

The right of early termination is also available to the Issuer upon the occurrence of an extraordinary event in accord-
ance with Section Illl.E.a)oo)(ii), to the extent that, in the opinion of the Issuer, an appropriate adjustment, for whatever
reason, is not possible.

An early termination is effected by a notice pursuant to Section IIl.G. The termination becomes effective at the time of
the notice to the extent that the notice does not specify a following Business Day. In this case, the term of the Deriva-
tives ends early. The Issuer pays a cash amount in the currency of the Derivative that is determined by the Issuer or the
Calculation Agent in its absolute discretion, if applicable, taking into account the relevant market price of the Underly-
ing and any costs incurred by the Issuer as a result of the termination (this amount also may be zero). The date for the
redemption will be specified in the notice.

(i) Negative interest

For Derivatives relating to a reference interest rate, the Issuer reserves the right of early termination at any time with
respect to all Derivatives issued under this issuance program in the event that the reference interest rate becomes a
negative value.

ii) Statute of limitation

Claims for payment in respect of the Derivatives lapse 10 years after their due date. Claims for the payment of interest
in respect of the Derivatives lapse 5 after their due date.

i Taxes

(i) General

Potential investors should be aware that they may be required to pay taxes or other charges any levy in accordance
with the laws and practice of the jurisdiction, in which the Derivatives issued under this issuance program are trans-
ferred, or follow the legal rules of the country, which will then be applicable if the Underlying is considered to be
shares and possibly the laws and practices of other jurisdictions. In certain jurisdictions there may not be any official
statements of tax authorities or court decisions in relation to derivatives. Potential investors should rely on the summa-
rized tax information contained in this issuance program or in the Final Terms, but should consult their own tax advisers
about the tax implications of purchasing, selling and performances of Derivatives. Only those advisers can advise on the
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individual tax implications for a potential investor. Such individual tax implications in relation to a potential investor may
have a negative impact on the returns, which a potential investor may receive under the Derivatives.

(ii) Guernsey

Transfers and payments or deliveries of such Derivatives are not subject to any withholding tax in Guernsey. Further-
more, Guernsey does not levy any capital gains tax upon any gains made by non-Guernsey resident investors on such
Derivatives.

(iii) Swiss taxes

On 7 February 2007, the Federal Tax Administration issued Circular Letter No. 15 concerning bonds and derivative fi-
nancial instruments under the direct federal tax, the withholding tax, as well as the stamp duty (issuance and transfer
tax). The Derivatives issued under this issuance program are categorized as derivative financial instruments as defined in
Circular Letter No. 15.

The Issuer will specify in the Final Terms for each Derivatives Series which taxes, in its opinion, the relevant Derivative is
subject to under the mentioned circular letter.

The Final Terms may include additional tax information, in particular about the then applicable EU taxation of interest.
The Swiss Federation has entered into an agreement on 26 October 2004 with the European Community providing for
measures equivalent to those laid down in the Council Directive 2003/48/EC on taxation of savings income of 3 June
2003 in the form of interest payments effective as of 1 July 2005. According to this agreement, certain specified inter-
est payments from a Swiss paying agent to a beneficial owner who is an individual with residence in an EU Member
State are subject to a withholding tax at the current rate of 35%.

The information set forth in the Final Terms concerning taxation is merely a summary of how the Issuer understands the
taxation of the relevant Derivatives Series under the then applicable law and current practice of the Federal Tax Admin-
istration in Switzerland. Because this summary does not take into account every aspect of Swiss tax law and, in particu-
lar, not the specific tax situation of an investor resident outside Switzerland, potential investors should obtain the ad-
vice of their personal tax adviser in respect of the tax consequences of the purchase, ownership, sale or redemption of
the Derivatives, in particular the tax consequences in a different jurisdiction. In addition, it should be noted that the
cantons may have a tax law system and practice that deviates from that of the Federal Tax Administration.

(iv) Taxes and fees applicable to a transfer of Underlyings

Any fees, costs and taxes that arise in connection with the exercise of the rights linked to the Derivatives and the trans-
fer of Underlyings (physical delivery) are to be borne by the Holder of Derivatives to the extent not otherwise specified
in the Final Terms for an individual Derivatives Series.

kk) Security

Subject to any provisions specifying otherwise in the Final Terms for a specific Derivatives Series, the Issuer's Derivatives
are not secured.

In any case, all claims for payment against the Zlrcher Kantonalbank are protected by the government guarantee of
the Canton of Zurich pursuant to § 6 para. 1 of the Law concerning the Zircher Kantonalbank, the text of which is:
"The canton is liable for all liabilities of the bank to the extent that its own funds are not sufficient".

A Keep-Well Agreement entered into between Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited and the Zircher Kan-
tonalbank provides an indirect protection in respect of the payment claims of Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey)
Limited's investors. In this Keep-Well Agreement, the Zircher Kantonalbank has agreed to capitalize Zircher Kantonal-
bank Finance (Guernsey) Limited so that investor and customer confidence in the Zircher Kantonalbank Group is not
endangered (the complete text of the Keep-Well Agreement is included in Annex 3). Investors should note that this
contractual relationship has not been made as a guarantee for the benefit of third parties.

)] Status of the derivatives

To the extent not provided otherwise by mandatory provisions of law, the Derivatives constitute unsecured and unsub-
ordinated liabilities of the Issuer which rank equally with each other and with all other unsubordinated liabilities of the
relevant Issuer.
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mm) APPLICABLE LAW AND JURISDICTION
The Derivatives issued under this issuance program are subject to Swiss law.

All disputes between the Holders of the Derivatives, on one hand, and the Issuer, on the other hand, are subject to the
jurisdiction of the ordinary courts of the Canton of Zurich, Switzerland, with the Jurisdiction in Zdrich 1, with the possi-
bility of an appeal to the Swiss Supreme Court in Lausanne, whose judgment is final. The Issuer Zlrcher Kantonalbank
Finance (Guernsey) Limited chooses for this purpose a legal and special domicile in Switzerland at Zircher Kantonal-
bank, Bahnhofstrasse 9, 8001 Zurich.

nn) Calculation agent, Paying Agent and Exercise Agent

(i Calculation Agent

Subject to any contrary provisions for a specific Derivatives Series in the relevant Final Terms, the Zircher Kantonalbank
acts as calculation agent for all Derivatives issued under this issuance program (in this capacity, identified as " Calcula-
tion Agent").

The Issuer is entitled at all times to replace the calculation agent, to appoint one or more additional calculation agents
and/or to revoke their appointment.

(i) Paying Agent

To the extent not otherwise specified in the (indicative) Term Sheet or the Final Terms of a Derivatives Series, the Ziirch-
er Kantonalbank acts as paying agent (in this capacity, identified as "Paying Agent").

The funds necessary for payments of principal, interest, costs and any delivery of Underlyings will be made available by
the Zlrcher Kantonalbank to the Issuer on a timely basis on the relevant due date in the relevant currency. The receipt
of such funds from Zircher Kantonalbank discharges the Issuer from its liabilities for payments on the relevant due
dates for principal, interest and costs or, if applicable, any delivery of securities.

The relevant Issuer is entitled at all times and without the consent of investors to replace the Paying Agent with one or
more Swiss or foreign banks (the “New Paying Agent”) as paying agent for the Derivatives (or to terminate their ap-
pointments, provided that (i) the New Paying Agent assumes all obligations of the former Paying Agent that the former
Paying Agent owed in respect of the Derivatives and (ii) the New Paying Agent has received all necessary approvals of
the authorities in its country of domicile.

Any such paying agent serves only as service provider to the Issuer and does not assume any obligations or responsibil-
ity towards the Holders of the Derivatives.

(iii) Exercise Agent

Subject to any contrary provisions for a specific Derivatives Series in the relevant Final Terms, the Zircher Kantonalbank
acts as exercise agent for all Derivatives issued under this issuance program (in this capacity, described as the "Exercise
Agent").

Especially in the case of certain Derivatives in the category Leverage Products, an Exercise Notice must be submitted to
the Exercise Agent (with a copy to the Issuer and the Clearing System) for the exercise of the option.

The Issuer is entitled at all times to replace the Exercise Agent with one or more additional exercise agents and or to
terminate their appointment.

0oo) Amendments

(i) Correction of typographical errors

The Issuer is also entitled in the Final Terms to change or supplement (i) obvious errors in the text or a calculation or
other obvious errors, as well as (i) contradictory or incomplete provisions without the consent of the Holders of the
Derivatives, provided that in the situations mentioned in (ii), only those changes or additions are permitted that, consid-
ering the interests of the Issuer, may be reasonably imposed on the Holders of the Derivatives, i.e., that do not signifi-
cantly impair the financial situation of the Holders of the Derivatives or the methods of exercise. Amendments of the
terms of the Derivatives are to be notified in accordance with Section lIl.G.a).
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(ii)  In case of the occurrence of extraordinary events

If during the term of a Derivatives Series (i) in respect of an Underlying or a component of an Underlying (a) an extraor-
dinary event described in Section IV occurs, (b) an extraordinary event described in the Final Terms for a Derivatives
Series occurs or (c) the Issuer or the Calculation Agent determines, in its absolute discretion, that an Underlying or
component of an Underlying - for whatever reason - is no longer comparable to the Underlying on the Issue Date or (ii)
any other exceptional event (force majeure) occurs which makes it unreasonably difficult or impossible for the Issuer to
fulfill the rights arising from the Derivatives or to determine the value of the Derivatives, the Issuer shall, in its absolute
discretion, select the appropriate measures and, if necessary, amend the terms of the Derivatives in such a way that the
economic value of the Derivative, to the fullest extent possible, is equal to the value of the Derivative prior the occur-
rence of the event.

The specific rules on amendments for the individual types of Underlyings in Section IV or in the Final Terms take prece-
dence over these provisions. Amendments of the terms of the Derivatives are to be notified in accordance with Section
l.G.a).

If the Issuer is of the opinion that, following the occurrence of an extraordinary event, an appropriate amendment, for
whatever reason, is not possible, the Issuer is entitled to cause the early termination of the Derivatives through a notice
in accordance with Section Ill.G.a) as contemplated by Section IIl.E.a)ff).

pp) Exercise methods

The exercise methods for Derivatives with exercise rights (option rights) in favor of the Holder of the Derivatives are
specified in the Section 'Special terms' (see Section IIl.E.a)tt)).

qq) Protection against dilution

In the case of Derivatives with equity securities as an Underlying, following the occurrence of a Corporate Action (see
the definition in the glossary) which in the determination of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent has a dilutive or con-
centrating effect on the market value of the Underlying, the Issuer or the Calculation Agent will, in its own discretion,
amend the terms of the Derivative so that the economic value of the Derivative before the occurrence of the event is
equal to the fullest extent possible to the value of the Derivative prior the occurrence of the event.

rr)  Change of the Underlying

The events which can lead to a change of the Underlying or a component of an Underlying, as well as the effects of the
occurrence of such an event on the terms of the Derivatives are governed by the Section "Information about the Un-
derlyings” (see. Section IV).

In addition, the Issuer is entitled to amend the terms of the Derivatives in its absolute discretion upon the occurrence of
an extraordinary event in accordance with Section IIl.E.a)oo).

ss)  Capital protection

In the case of Derivatives in the category Capital Protection, the Issuer is required to pay a minimum redemption
amount on the redemption date (see also, in respect of capital protected products, Section Ill.C.b)aa)). In the Final
Terms for this Derivatives Series, the Minimum Redemption Amount will, as a general rule, be specified as a percentage
of the Nominal Value or par value of the Derivative.

The Minimum Redemption Amount is not owed if the Derivatives are repaid before their maturity date, e.g., in the case
of an early redemption following the occurrence of a termination event (see Section Ill.E.a)ff). During the term, this
Derivatives Series may have an intrinsic value which is significantly lower than the Minimum Redemption Amount.

tt) Change of obligor

The Issuer is entitled at all times and without the consent of the investors to assign in whole (but not in part) the rights
and claims under individual Derivatives or all of them to a Swiss or foreign subsidiary, branch or holding company of
the Zurcher Kantonalbank (the "New Issuer") to the extent that (i) the New Issuer assumes all of the obligations arising
out of the assigned Derivatives which the previous Issuer owed in respect of these Derivatives, (ii) the Zircher Kanton-
albank enters into a keep-well agreement with the New Issuer with terms equivalent to the one between the Zlrcher
Kantonalbank and Zlrcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited, (iii) the New Issuer has received from the super-
visory authorities of the country in which it is domiciled all necessary approvals for the issue of Derivatives and the as-
sumption of the obligations under the assigned Derivatives. An assignment of Derivatives pursuant to this provision is
to be notified to the investors pursuant to Section Ill.G.
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Upon the fulfillment of the conditions mentioned above, the New Issuer assumes in every respect the role of the previ-
ous Issuer and the previous Issuer will be released from all of the obligations in relation to the Holders of the Derivatives
which were related to the function of the Issuer or related to the structured products.

In the event of such a replacement of the obligor, every reference in this issuance program and in the relevant issue
and listing prospectuses to the Issuer is deemed a reference to the New Issuer.

The Issuer bears no responsibility for the harm to individual investors caused by, or the consequences for individual
investors of, the exercise of the Issuer's right to substitute another obligor as Issuer. Accordingly, no investor is entitled
in this situation to assert legal claims or indemnity claims against the Issuer.

b) Special terms for individual categories of Derivatives (special terms)

aa) Special terms for Warrants

The following specific conditions apply for Derivatives in the category Warrants (see Section [Il.C.b)dd)(i) and
1.C.b)dd)(ii)) in addition to the general terms for all categories of Derivatives.

(i) Types of Warrants

American Style and European Style Warrants

In the case of warrants which are identified in accordance with the Final Terms as "American Style", the Holder of the
warrants may exercise his or her option on any Business Day during the option period until, at the latest, the maturity
date.

In the case of warrants which are identified in accordance with the Final Terms as "European Style", the Holder of the
warrants may only exercise his or her option right on the maturity date.

Warrants with Cash Settlement

Warrants with Cash Settlement grant the Holder the right to receive a Cash Settlement Amount if on the Exercise Date
(@) in the case of call warrants, the difference between the closing price of the Underlying on the maturity date or the
Exercise Date and the exercise price and (b) in the case of put warrants, the difference between the exercise price and
the closing price of the Underlying on the maturity date or the Exercise Date is a positive amount.

To the extent that nothing to the contrary is specified in the Final Terms, warrants on indexes, exchange rates, precious
metals, commodities and interest rates provide an entitlement to the payment of a Cash Settlement Amount.

Warrants with physical delivery

Warrants with physical delivery grant the Holder the right, but not the obligation, to buy (call warrant) or sell (put war-
rant) a specified number of an Underlying at a price specified in advance (exercise price) up to a date specified in ad-
vance (expiration date).

To the extent that the Final Terms do not provide to the contrary, Warrants on shares provide an entitlement to the
physical delivery of the shares.

(i) Methods of exercise

Option period
The option period is specified for each Derivatives Series in the Final Terms and specifies the period in which the option
must be exercised.

In the case of warrants on equity securities, the Issuer is entitled, to the extent that on a Business Day more than
100,000 warrants are exercised by a Holder or a group of Holders trading together, to defer the Exercise Date for war-
rants which exceed this number to the next following Business Day.

Automatic exercise and notice of exercise

To the extent that nothing to the contrary is specified in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series, all warrants with Cash
Settlement are deemed automatically exercised on the expiration date, to the extent that (a) in the case of call war-
rants, the difference between the closing price of the Underlying on the expiration date and the exercise price and (b)
in the case of put warrants the difference between the exercise price and the closing price of the Underlying is a posi-
tive amount. Otherwise, the warrants expire worthless.
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To the extent that the Holder of a warrant with Cash Settlement which is identified in the Final Terms as " American
Style" wants to exercise during the option period, but before the expiration date, the delivery of an Exercise Notice to
the Exercise Agent (see Section IIl.G.b)) with a copy to the Issuer and the Clearing System is necessary. The written no-
tice of exercise must be received by the Exercise Agent not later than 12:00 CET or a different time specified for a De-
rivatives Series in the relevant Final Terms and cannot be withdrawn in order for the warrant to be deemed exercised
on the relevant date. Any Exercise Notices received later are deemed delivered on the next following Business Day.

To the extent that nothing to the contrary is specified in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series, the delivery of an Exer-
cise Notice to the Exercise Agent (see Section Ill.G.b)) with a copy to the Issuer and the Clearing System is necessary for
the exercise of warrants with physical delivery. The written notice of exercise must be received by the Exercise
Agent not later than 12:00 CET or a different time specified for a series of Derivative in the relevant Final Terms and
cannot be withdrawn, in order that the warrant is considered exercised on the relevant date. Any Exercise Notices re-
ceived later are deemed exercised on the next following Business Day.

Accordingly, warrants with physical delivery, or other warrants for which an automatic exercise has not been specified
in accordance with the Final Terms, expire worthless if the Exercise Notice is not received by the Exercise Agent not
later than 12:00 CET on the expiration date (or a different time specified in the relevant Final Terms).

(iii) Effect of exercise

Cash Settlement
In the case of warrants with Cash Settlement (see Section Ill.E.b)aa)(i)), the Issuer or the Calculation Agent calculates
the amount of the Cash Settlement Amount on the Exercise Date and publishes it in accordance with Section IlII.G.

The Cash Settlement Amount will be paid, in the case of warrants on indexes, Exchange Rates, precious metals and
commodities, on the fourth Business Day after the Exercise Date.

Physical delivery

In the case of warrants with physical delivery (see Section lll.E.b)aa)(i)), the delivery of the number of Underlyings speci-
fied in the relevant Final Terms is made on the third Business Day after the Exercise Date against payment of the exer-
cise price.

(iv) Application for registration in the case of the physical delivery of registered shares

In the case of registered shares which are delivered following the exercise of call warrants, it is the responsibility of the
acquirer to submit an application for registration in the share register of the relevant company. The validity of the exer-
cise of the warrant is not affected by a refusal to confirm the status of a shareholder with voting rights.

(v) Early termination if amendments are not possible

If the Issuer or the Calculation Agent is of the opinion that following the occurrence of a Market Disruption (see Sec-
tion IV.A.b) or an extraordinary event (see Section Ill.E.a)oo)(ii)), which in the opinion of the Issuer or the Calculation
Agent would make an amendment of the terms of the warrant necessary, but a proper amendment of the terms of the
warrant, for whatever reason, is not possible, it is entitled, but not required, to terminate the warrants early.

The termination becomes effective on the date ("Termination Date") of the publication of the notice in accordance
with Section Ill.G. In this case the term of the warrants ends early. In the event of a termination, the Issuer will pay to
the relevant Holder of an affected warrant within five Bank Working Days after the Termination Date an amount per
warrant which, in its reasonable judgment, is determined to be the appropriate market price.

bb) Special terms for mini-futures

For Derivatives in the category mini-futures (see Section C.b)dd)iv)), the following specific terms apply in addition to the
general terms applicable to all categories of Derivatives.

(i) Term

Mini-futures have no fixed term (open ended). The maturity date may occur at any time (even on or immediately after
the Issue Date) and is set by (i) a termination by the Issuer, (ii) the occurrence of a stop-loss event or (jii) an Exercise
Notice from the Holder of the mini-futures.

Termination by the Issuer
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The Issuer is entitled at all times, without a specification of reasons, to terminate the mini-futures. The termination
becomes effective at the time of the publication of the notice in accordance with Section Ill.G.

Stop-loss event

A stop loss event occurs if the market price for an Underlying during the trading hours for the Underlying reaches the
stop loss level specified in the relevant Final Terms or exceeds it (in the case of short mini-futures) or falls below it (in
the case of long mini-futures).

Exercise Notice of the Holder

To the extent that the Holder of a mini-future wants to exercise during the term, he or she must do this through an
Exercise Notice to the Exercise Agent (see Section Ill.G.b)) with a copy to the Clearing System. The Exercise Notice must
be received by the Exercise Agent not later than 11.00 CET or a different time specified in the relevant Final Terms for a
Derivatives Series and cannot be withdrawn, in order for the mini-futures to be considered exercised on the relevant
date. An Exercise Notice received later is deemed exercised on the next following Business Day. After the delivery of an
effective Exercise Notice, an assignment of mini-futures is not permitted.

If a stop-loss event occurs on the date on which the Exercise Notice becomes effective, the Exercise Notice takes prece-
dence.

(ii) Effect of termination, Exercise Notice and automatic exercise

If mini-futures become due for redemption as a result of a termination, the occurrence of a stop loss event or an Exer-
cise Notice from the Holder of the mini-futures, a cash settlement will be paid in accordance with the specific provisions
of the relevant Final Terms. In this regard, it is to be noted that the relevant time for the calculation of the Cash Settle-
ment Amount is different depending on why it has become due. In the case of a termination or Exercise Notice, gener-
ally the closing price of the Underlying applies; in the case of a stop-loss event, the price of the Underlying during trad-
ing hours applies.

To the extent that nothing different is specified in the relevant Final Terms, the Cash Settlement Amount will be paid
on the fifth Bank Working Day after termination, occurrence of the stop-loss event or the effectiveness of the Exercise
Notice from the Holder of the mini futures.

F. Structure of the Derivatives

Derivatives are issued under this issuance program as book entry securities as defined in Art. 973c Code of Obligations.

The book-entry securities are created by registration in the securities book which the Zircher Kantonalbank maintains
for the Derivatives issued by it as well as for those of Zlrcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited. The book-entry
securities are thereupon registered in the main registry of the SIX SIS AG or another custodian recognized by the SIX
Swiss Exchange (always referred to as "Custodian") and credited to the account of one or more participants of the
Custodian as book-entry securities as defined in the Federal Law on Book-Entry Securities of 3 October 2008 ("BEG").

As long as the Derivatives are registered as book-entry securities with the Custodian, their transfer is governed by the
provisions of the BEG. According to Art. 24 BEG, book-entry securities are transferred by an instruction to transfer the
securities from the account Holder to the Custodian and by credit of the book-entry securities to the securities account
of the acquirer. The transfer is completed with the credit. At the same time, the transferring investor loses his or her
rights in the transferred book-entry securities.

The records of the Custodian determine the number of Derivatives held by a participant of the Custodian. The Issuer, as
well as the Paying Agent and the Exercise Agent, are entitled to treat each account Holder in the main register of the
Custodian in whose securities account Derivatives are registered as book-entry securities and the rightful owner of the
Derivatives and to make payments or deliveries to the owner of the securities account in full discharge of its obligations
as defined in Art. 5 lit. ¢ BEG.

G. Notices

a) Notices and other disclosures

All notices concerning the Derivatives for the relevant Derivatives Series will be given with legal effect by the Issuer
under the internet address: http://Awww.zkb.ch/strukturierteprodukte. Official notices concerning Derivatives Series that
are quoted on the SIX Swiss Exchange will, in addition, be published in accordance with the regulations issued by the
SIX Swiss Exchange applicable to the IBL (Internet Based Listing) and IBT (Internet Based Terms).
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b) Notices by investors to the Issuer, the Paying Agent, Exercise Agent and the Calculation Agent

Notices from investors to the Issuer, as well as to the Paying Agent, Exercise Agent and the Calculation Agent are to be
given in writing and sent to:

ZURCHER KANTONALBANK (AS PAYING AGENT, EXERCISE AGENT AND THE CALCULATION AGENT)
Zurcher Kantonalbank
LOAV
Postfach
8010 Zirich
Telephone +41 44 292 76 67, Fax +41 44 292 86 64

ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited
Regency Court, Glategny Esplanade
St. Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 3AP, C.I.
Telephone +44 1481 705288

always with a copy to Ziircher Kantonalbank

H. Limitation on transferability and selling restrictions

To the extent that the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series do not provide otherwise, the Derivatives are only transferable
in units of a single Derivative or an integral multiple thereof.

For sales restrictions, see Section II.D.c).

1. Symbol, securities number and ISIN

All Derivatives issued under this issuance program will be unambiguously identified by a Swiss securities number and an
"International Securities Identification Number" ("ISIN"). The Swiss securities number will be assigned by the business
SIX Telekurs. For Derivatives Series which are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange and traded through SIX Structured Prod-
ucts Exchange AG, SIX Telekurs also assigns a symbol. The symbol, the Swiss securities number and ISIN will be speci-
fied in the Final Terms.

J. Trading period

Derivatives which are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange and traded through Scoach Switzerland may be traded during
the trading times of SIX Structured Products Exchange AG up to the last Trading Day which is specified in the relevant
Final Terms. The last Trading Day may be before the maturity date.

K. Price quotations

In the case of Derivatives with interest components, it will be specified in the relevant Final Terms whether the price of
the Derivatives is stated with accrued interest ("Dirty Price") or if accrued interest is stated separately ("Clean Price").

L. Severability clause, amendments of the terms

If any provision of the Derivatives Terms is or becomes wholly or partially invalid, incomplete or impossible of perfor-
mance, or in event of omitted terms, then the application of the remaining provisions of the Derivatives Terms will not
be affected thereby.

A provision that is consistent with the meaning and purpose of the Derivatives Terms should replace the provision that
is invalid, incomplete or impossible of performance or should address any omission.

The relevant Issuer is entitled to improve, correct or supplement any provision of the Derivatives Terms for purposes of
clarity and accuracy in the event of ambiguity or uncertainty. The Issuer may also in such a situation correct, supple-
ment or amend the Derivatives Terms in such respect and in such a manner as it considers necessary or desirable, so
long as investors do not suffer significant financial losses as a result.
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M. Representative

Zurcher Kantonalbank, as a recognized representative under Art. 43 Listing Rules, represents Zurcher Kantonalbank
Finance (Guernsey) Limited before the SIX Swiss Exchange.

IV. INFORMATION ABOUT THE UNDERLYINGS
A. General Information

a) Nature of the Underlyings

Various Underlyings may be the basis for the Derivatives issued under this issuance program (in relation to which the
value of the Derivatives changes, as described in Section Ill.C.b) or fluctuates), although the specific Underlying or Un-
derlyings for a specific Derivatives Series are to be found in the Final Terms which alone are controlling.

Potential Underlyings are generally the permitted derivatives under Art. 12 of the Additional Rules for the Listing of
Derivatives (Additional Rules for Derivatives, ARD) of 21 July 2010. Among these are included, but not limited to, par-
ticipating securities (Beteiligungsrechte) such as shares (Aktien), participating certificates (Partizipationsscheine) and
(profit participating securities (Genussscheine) that are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange or a foreign securities exchange
subject to equivalent regulation. In addition, all derivatives listed or traded on the SIX Swiss Exchange, as well as stand-
ardized options and futures contracts which are quoted on a regulated futures exchange, such as Eurex or the Chicago
Mercantile Exchange (CME) are also Underlyings. Various indexes, regardless of whether they are published and main-
tained by the Issuer or by third parties, and reference rates, such as, freely convertible currencies, customary market
interest and swap rates, such as 3-month LIBOR or EURIBOR, precious metals, specifically gold, silver, platinum and
palladium and also commodities which are traded and/or published on an exchange recognized by the Regulatory
Board of SIX Swiss Exchange and their reported spot-market prices or for which the Issuer ensures that the rules and
the composition were made transparent for the investor, are permitted as Underlyings. Further, baskets of the forego-
ing Underlyings may constitute the Derivatives described here. Baskets may be "static", i.e., generally without change
during the term of the Derivatives, or also "dynamic".

b) Information about price changes of Underlyings

Information about historical or current price changes of Underlyings as well as their volatility may be obtained from the
issuer of the Underlying or a component of an Underlying, an index sponsor or the Relevant Exchange for the Underly-
ing or a component of an Underlying. Investors should note that historical price changes provide no assurance that the
Underlying or the component of the Underlying will change in the same or similar way in the future.

Q) Market disruptions

aa) Events

The following events, as well as all others identified as such in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series, constitute a
"Market Disruption”, if such an event is significant in the determination of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent; provid-
ed that the Issuer or the Calculation Agent shall make its determination on the basis of the circumstances it considers,
in its reasonable judgment, relevant, including, among other things, taking into account the hedging measures of the
Issuer in respect of the Derivatives. There may be a Market Disruption if:

(i) Derivatives based on shares or a basket of shares

(a) trading in the Underlying or a component of the Underlying is suspended or significantly limited on the principal
exchange on which it is traded, (b) the trading of options or futures on the Underlying or a component of the Underly-
ing is suspended, or significantly limited on the principal exchange on which they are traded or (c) there are no current
reports of Exchange Rates which are required for a calculation in connection with the Derivatives.

(ii) Derivatives based on an index or a basket of indexes

(a) the calculation of the level of the index is suspended by the index sponsor, (b) the trading of options or futures on
the Underlying or a component of the Underlying is suspended or significantly limited on the principal exchange on
which they are traded or (c) there are no current reports of Exchange Rates which are required for a calculation in con-
nection with the Derivatives.
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(iii) Derivatives based on a futures contract or a basket of futures

(a) trading in the Underlying or a component of the Underlying is suspended or significantly limited on the principal
exchange on which it is traded, (b) the trading of options or futures on the Underlying or a component of the Underly-
ing is suspended, or significantly limited on the principal exchange on which they are traded or (c) there are no current
reports of Exchange Rates which are required for a calculation in connection with the Derivatives.

(iv) Derivatives based on a collective capital investment or a basket of collective capital investments

(a) trading in the Underlying or a component of the Underlying is suspended or significantly limited on the principal
exchange on which it is traded, (b) the net asset value is not calculated or reported within the usual time periods (c) the
trading of options or futures on the Underlying or a component of the Underlying is suspended, or significantly limited
on the principal exchange on which they are traded or (d) there are no current reports of Exchange Rates which are
required for a calculation in connection with the Derivatives.

(v) Derivatives based on Exchange Rates

(a) trading in at least one of the currencies of an Underlying is suspended or significantly limited, (b) the convertibility of
the relevant currency is limited or () it is impossible to obtain an Exchange Rate.

(vi) Derivatives based on an interest rate

the reference rate on which the derivative is based becomes a value lower than zero ("0").

(vii) Derivatives based on other Underlyings

If the Underlying is a bond, a precious metal, a commodity or a Structured Product, or if the Underlying is composed of
the foregoing: (a) trading in the Underlying or a component of the Underlying is suspended or significantly limited on
the principal exchange on which it is traded, (b) the trading of options or futures on the Underlying or a component of
the Underlying is suspended, or significantly limited on the principal exchange on which they are traded, (c) the lack or
market prices which are required for a calculation in connection with the Underlying or components of the Underlying
or (d) the lack of current reports of Exchange Rates which are required for a calculation in connection with Derivatives.

bb) Effects of a Market Disruption

(i) Effects on the value of a Derivative during the term

If a Market Disruption occurs and continues before the maturity date of a Derivative in respect of an Underlying or a
component of an Underlying and therefore a market price cannot be determined, the Issuer or the Calculation Agent
shall determine the market price of the relevant Underlying or components of the Underlying before the Market Disrup-
tion in its unfettered discretion and subject to general market conditions and the last market price of determined be-
fore the Market Disruption for the Underlying or component of the Underlying affected by the Market Disruption. In
determining the market price, the Issuer or the Calculation Agent may, if options and futures contracts on the Underly-
ing or the components of the Underlying are traded on an exchange, take into account the rules of the Relevant Ex-
change for the termination of the market price. If the Underlying is an index, the Calculation Agent may, in addition, in
determining the level of the index, use the concept of the index sponsor or refer to determinations of the indexes by
persons who have calculated the level of the index in accordance with the concept of the index sponsor. The Issuer or
the Calculation Agent is not required to do so. The determination of the market price is binding on the Holders of the
Derivatives to the extent that an obvious error has not been made. This provision applies equally to the determination
of the value of the Derivative whose Underlying or Underlying components has been affected by a Market Disruption.

(ii) Effects on the maturity date of the Derivatives

If a Market Disruption occurs and continues before the maturity date of a Derivative in respect of an Underlying or a
component of an Underlying and therefore a market price cannot be determined, the maturity date will be postponed
to the first Trading Day on which the Market Disruption no longer prevails. If a Market Disruption continues for a peri-
od of eight Business Days after the maturity date, the eighth Business Day after the maturity date shall be deemed the
new maturity date (New Maturity Date". In this case, the Issuer or the Calculation Agent shall determine the closing
market price of the Underlying which is affected by the Market Disruption or the components of the Underlying affect-
ed by the Market Disruption on the New Maturity Date in its unfettered judgment, subject to general market conditions
and the last price of the Underlying or component of the Underlying which is affected by the Market Disruption deter-
mined before the Market Disruption. The determination of the closing price is binding on the Holders of the Derivatives
to the extent that an obvious error has not been made. The closing price of an Underlying or components of an Under-
lying which have not been affected by the Market Disruption will be determined as of the original maturity date.
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If the maturity date is postponed, the new settlement date is the eighth day after the date of the New Maturity Date
(the "New Settlement Date"). If this day is not a Business Day, then the immediately next succeeding Business Day is
the New Settlement Date.

The Issuer and the Calculation Agent are not liable to the Holder of a Derivative for any losses which result from a Mar-
ket Disruption.

(iii) Effects on the exercise of warrants

If the Issuer or the Calculation Agent determine on the Exercise Date that a Market Disruption has occurred and is con-
tinuing, the Exercise Date the will be postponed to the next Trading Day on which, in the opinion of the Issuer or the
Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption is no longer occurring. The Issuer or the Calculation Agent shall determine in
their unfettered discretion whether a Market Disruption is occurring and the Exercise Date is to be postponed.

cc) Notices

The Issuer or the Calculation Agent shall notify investors in accordance with Section Ill.G as soon as practicable whether
a Market Disruption has occurred on a day on which the Issuer or the Calculation Agent, in the absence of a Market
Disruption, would have had to determine the price or value of an Underlying and what consequences the Market Dis-
ruption had on the affected Derivative.

B. Additional Provisions for Derivatives based on Participation Rights (Beteiligungsrechte)

a) Market price of the Underlying

The "market price" is the price of the Participation Rights determined and published by the Relevant Exchange. The
Relevant Exchange is the securities exchange for the Primary Listing of the Participation Rights, subject to any contrary
provision in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series. If during the term of a Derivative, the Relevant Exchange does not
determine and publish the market price for the Participation Rights on a particular day, the Issuer or the Calculation
Agent, in its unfettered discretion, shall determine whether another securities exchange on which the Participation
Rights are listed and which such securities exchange should be the Relevant Exchange on this date.

The "closing price" is the official closing price of the Participation Rights on a specific date determined and published
on the Relevant Exchange.

For the determination of whether any barrier has been reached or breached (upwards or downwards) by the Participa-
tion Rights, each market price of the Participation Rights determined on the Relevant Exchange during the Observation
Period shall be authoritative.

For the determination of whether any trigger level has been reached or breached (upwards or downwards) by the Par-
ticipation Rights, the price during the trigger period shall be authoritative.

b) Rights related to the Underlyings

The Underlyings actually acquired upon redemption have the rights to all dividends or other rights and claims linked to
the Underlying payable after the Settlement Date or at the time of the exercise. If the Settlement Date or the Exercise
Date and payment date for the dividend or the date for the loss of the claim occur on the same date, the Underlying
will be delivered without the dividend or the claim.

) Change of the Underlying

The following events, among others, constitute extraordinary events and may, in the discretion of the Issuer or the
Calculation Agent, lead to a change in the share which is the Underlying: (a) Corporate Actions (as defined in the glos-
sary), (b) the exchange of shares for other shares or cash settlements following a merger or acquisition, (c) the delisting
or (e) the final termination of trading in the share on the Relevant Exchange.

aa) Corporate Actions

Corporate Actions which have a dilution or concentration effect on an Underlying or a component of an Underlying
entitle the Issuer to amend the Derivatives Terms in accordance with Section IIl.E.a)qq).
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bb) Exchange offers

If the shareholders of an Underlying or a component of an Underlying are offered an exchange of shares in connection
with the acquisition of a business or a merger, then this leads to an amendment of the terms of the Derivatives to the
extent the transaction has closed. A transaction is considered closed with its registration in the relevant commercial
register or an equivalent foreign register or with the announcement of the irrevocable making of an offer by the acquir-
ing company ("Merger Closing") The amendment of the terms of the Derivatives occurs with effect on the date on
which the exchange to be delivered to the shareholders as specified in the exchange offer are available.

An amendment of the terms as a result of the exchange of the affected Underlying or component of the Underlying
only occurs if the exchange to be made by the acquiring company specified in the exchange offer can be delivered
through a central custodian or delivery agent recognized by SIX SIS AG, Derivatives linked to this Underlying can be
traded, as well as if the trading of the offered shares or other rights on a securities exchange acceptable to the Issuer is
possible (" Prerequisites for an Exchange").

To the extent that the exchange is exclusively in shares or shares plus a cash payment, the value of which is not greater
than 67 percent of the entire exchange, the Underlyings or the components of the Underlying which are replaced by
the securities offered by the exchange offer will be substituted, subject to the relevant exchange ratio. The Issuer shall,
if necessary, amend the other terms of the Derivatives, in its unfettered discretion, so that the economic value of the
Derivative equals, to the fullest extent possible, the economic value of the Derivative before the exchange of the shares.

To the extent that an exchange is made in cash in excess of 67 percent of the total exchange, or if the Prerequisites for
an Exchange have not been fulfilled, then the Issuer must either substitute the affected Underlying or the affected
components of the Underlying with another, as described above, or terminate the Derivative with effect on the Closing
of the Merger. If the Issuer chooses to terminate the Derivative, then it must pay the holder of the Derivatives a cash
amount in the currency of the Derivative which will be determined in the unfettered discretion of the Issuer or the Cal-
culation Agent as the economic value of the Derivative at the time of early termination, taking into account, if applica-
ble, the then relevant market price of the Underlying and the costs incurred by the Issuer as a result of the early termi-
nation. The cash amount is to be paid for credit five Business Days after the early termination.

cc) Delisting or termination of trading

If an Underlying or a component of an Underlying is delisted on the Relevant Exchange or trading is finally terminated
and at this point in time a listing or trading exists on another securities exchange, the Issuer is entitled to designate this
exchange as the relevant exchange pursuant to a notice in accordance with Section Ill.G.a). In the event of such a sub-
stitution, each of the references to the reference exchange in the Derivatives Terms is deemed a reference to the substi-
tute exchange. If the Issuer decides, in its unfettered discretion, against a substitution or if a substitute exchange does
not exist, then the Issuer shall amend the terms of the Derivatives, in its unfettered discretion, so that the economic
value of the Derivatives after the delisting equals, to the fullest extent possible, the economic value of the Derivative
before the relevant event.

C. Additional Provisions for Derivatives Based on Bonds

a) Market value of the Underlying

The "market price" is price of the bond determined by the Relevant Exchange. The Relevant Exchange is the securities
exchange for the Primary Listing of the bond, subject to any contrary provision in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Se-
ries. If during the term of a Derivative, the Relevant Exchange does not determine and publish the market price for the
bond on a particular day, the Issuer or the Calculation Agent, in its unfettered discretion, shall determine whether there
is another securities exchange on which the Underlying is listed and which such securities exchange should be the Rele-
vant Exchange on this date.

The "closing price" is the official closing price of the bond on a specific date determined and published on the Relevant
Exchange.

For the determination of whether any barrier has been reached or breached (upwards or downwards), each market
price of the bond determined on the Relevant Exchange during the Observation Period shall be authoritative.

For the determination of whether any trigger level has been reached or breached (upwards or downwards) by the

bond, the closing price or, depending on the structure of the product, the Intraday price on each day during the trigger
period shall be authoritative.
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b) Change of the Underlying

The following events constitute extraordinary events in respect of a bond which is an Underlying or a component of an
Underlying issued under this issuance program: (a) the bond is partially or fully repaid early (b) the rating of the issuer
of the bond is reduced, (c) the issuer of the bond is liquidated, becomes subject to bankruptcy proceedings or threatens
to enter into bankruptcy proceedings or announces that it is unable to pay its debts when due, (d) another event in
respect of the issuer of the bond is threatened which may result in a payment default, (e) the issuer is restructured,

(f) any suspension, termination or other restriction on trading in the bond, (g) any change in the tax treatment in re-
spect of coupon payments on the bond, (h) the trading currency of the bond is discontinued, (i) any other event which
has or could have material adverse effects on the ability of the Issuer to fulfill its obligations in respect of the Derivative
or to hedge its market risks in respect of the Derivative.

The Issuer may, in its unfettered discretion, designate one or more bonds as substitutes for the affected bonds (" Substi-
tute Bonds"). If the Issuer designates a Substitute Bond, the Issuer or the Calculation Agent must make all necessary
amendments to the terms of the Derivatives which result of the substitution of the bond. The occurrence of extraordi-
nary events the amendments and the day on which the amendments are effected (" Amendment Date") are to be noti-
fied in accordance with Section Ill.G.a). Every reference in the Derivatives Terms to the bond affected by the substitu-
tion is deemed, after the Amendment Date, a reference to the Substitute Bond.

D. Additional Provisions for Derivatives Based on Collective Capital Investments

a) Market price for collective capital investments

The "NAV" of a collective capital investment is the net asset value of the collective capital investment per unit, as it is
published on a specific day by the administrator of the collective capital investment.

"Initial Net Asset Value" is the amount which a hypothetical investor (in the same position as the Issuer) would have to
pay per unit of collective capital investment if he or she would subscribe for such a unit on the pricing date.

"Final Net Asset Value" is the amount that a hypothetical investor (in the same position as the Issuer) would receive per
unit of collective capital investment, if he or she would redeem such a unit on the maturity date.

b) Change of the Underlying

The following events are exceptional events in respect of a collective capital investment which [serve] as an Underlying
or component of an Underlying of a Derivative under this issuance program: (a) the dissolution, termination, liquida-
tion, suspension, merger, division of the collective capital investment or the revocation of any license or registration of
the collective capital investment (b) a change in the currency in which the net asset value of the collective capital in-
vestment is reported, (c) a material change in the investment objectives, the investment guidelines, the investment pro-
cess, the management or organization of the collective capital investment is reported, provided that non-material
changes are considered those that are formal or technical in nature, as well as those of marginal significance, (d) a
material change in the type of the assets in which the collective capital investment invests, directly or indirectly, (e) the
collective capital investment introduces a sales fee or a redemption fee or increases one of these, (f) the net asset value
of the collective capital investment is not calculated or reported or other information in respect of the collective capital
investment which, according to the documentation for the collective capital investment is to be reported, is not report-
ed, (g) the net investment value audited by an accounting firm deviates from the reported net asset value or the ac-
counting firm issues a qualified audit report or declines to provide an unqualified audit report, (h) each suspension,
termination or restriction of trading in units of a collective capital investment, (i) each suspension, termination or re-
striction of repayments or subscriptions of units of the collective capital investment, (j) the collective capital investment
requires that a holder of units in the collective capital investment redeems them in whole or in part, (k) each change in
the tax or supervisory treatment in respect of the collective capital investment, the management company, the invest-
ment manager, the investment adviser or the Issuer, (I) the resignation or termination of the management company,
the investment adviser or its staff, provided that non-material changes are considered those of a technical nature, as
well a those with limited significance, (m) winding up, dissolution, liquidation or the loss of a license or registration of
the management company, the investment manager or the investment adviser, (n) the collective capital investment, the
management company, the investment manager or the investment adviser become parties to a dispute whether before
a court or not, (o) any of the collective capital investment, the management company, the investment manager or the
investment adviser or its employees is subject to a regulatory or criminal investigation, a criminal charge or a regulatory
disciplinary measure, (p) any change or termination or any agreement between the Issuer and the collective capital
investment, the management company or the investment adviser, including such agreements which have an adverse
effect on the subscription or redemption of units of the collective capital investment and (g) any other event which has
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or could have material adverse effects on the ability of the Issuer to fulfill its obligations in respect of the Derivative or
to hedge its market risks in respect of the Derivative

E. Additional Provisions for Derivatives Based on Indexes

a) Types of indexes

Indexes represent the performance of selected financial instruments. The particular index regulations, which may be
obtained from the particular index sponsor, indicate which financial instruments are part of a particular index and ac-
cording to which criteria these instruments were selected. In this regard, the criteria for composition of an index may
either be subject to fixed rules or the index sponsor may determine the composition of the index in its discretion. For
indexes with the Zlrcher Kantonalbank as index sponsor, the general index regulations may be obtained from
https://zkb-finance.mdgms.com/products/stp/classes/zkbmeinindex/index.html. Specific information on the individual
indexes with the Zlrcher Kantonalbank as index sponsor may be obtained from https:/zkb-
finance.mdgms.com/products/stp/service/documents/index.html.

b) Level of the index

"Index Level" is the level of the index as it has been calculated and reported by the index sponsor, converted into the
currency of the Derivative. In this regard, an index point equals the amount of a unit of the relevant currency.

"Closing Level" is official closing level of the index as it has been calculated and reported by the index sponsor, con-
verted into the currency of the Derivative. In this regard, an index point equals the amount of a unit of the relevant
currency.

For the determination of whether any barrier has been reached or breached (upwards or downwards) by the index,
every reported level of the index during the term is dispositive.

For the determination of whether a trigger level has been reached or breached (upwards or downwards) by the index,
the closing level of the index on each day during the trigger period is dispositive.

) Change in the Underlying

If the Issuer determines in its unfettered discretion that the concept or calculation of the index is no longer comparable
to the concept or calculation at the time of the issue of a Derivatives Series, the Issuer may amend the terms of the
Derivatives in its unfettered discretion so that the value of the Derivative after the change in the index is, to the fullest
extent possible equal to the value of the Derivative before the change.

In determining to what extent such a change is to be taken into account, the Issuer may, if options and future contracts
on the index are traded on a an exchange, take into account amendments to the contract terms of the relevant options
and futures made or announced by the Relevant Exchange. The Issuer is, however, not required to do so.

F. Additional Provisions for Derivatives based on Exchange Rates

a) Exchange rate

The "Exchange Rate" (also identified as "Spot Price Currency 1/Currency 2") is the relevant Exchange Rate derived
from the global foreign exchange market which, for this purpose is considered continuously open each week during
the time period from Monday, 05:00 Sydney time until Friday, 17:00 New York time.

For the determination of whether any barrier has been reached or breached (upwards or downwards) by an Exchange
Rate, every reported level of the Exchange Rate during the term is dispositive.

V. MODEL FINAL TERMS (FINAL TERMS)

For each Derivatives Series issued under this issuance program, the specific economic and legal terms will be specified
in the Final Terms, which supplement the issuance program and together with the issuance program constitute the
complete issue and listing prospectus for the individual Derivatives Series.

In Annex 4, a model is presented for the Final Terms for warrants (Annex 4a), for mini-futures (Annex 4b) and for other
Derivatives (Annex 4c).
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The specific Final Terms may include more definitions, terms or parameters than specified in the model.

VL.  DEFINITIONS (GLOSSARY)

The following definitions of individual terms (in alphabetical order) are generally applicable to all categories of Deriva-
tives. Different definitions may be applicable in the general derivatives terms, in the general special terms or in the Final
Terms for a single Derivatives series. In case of any conflicts, the definitions, defined terms and meanings in the general
specific terms take precedence over those in the General Terms and those in the Final Terms take precedence over all. If
for a specific Derivatives Series terms are used which are not defined in the Derivatives Terms, the definition for the
Derivatives Series in question takes the meaning that results from taking into account (i) the specifications of the rele-
vant product type and (ii) from any applicable market practice.

"Settlement" is either cash settlement (" Cash Settlement") or physical delivery of the Underlying or a component of
the Underlying (" Physical Settlement"), as specified in the relevant Final Terms.

"Settlement Date" or "Redemption Date" is the calendar day specified in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series on
which the payment of the Cash Settlement or physical delivery becomes due. It can, in particular for warrants, also be
specified as a number of calendar days following the Exercise Date.

"Settlement Currency" is the currency specified in the Final Terms. If the Final Terms do not specify a specific cur-
rency, it is the currency of the relevant Derivatives Series.

"American Style" or "American" is a warrant which gives the bearer the right, but not the obligation, to buy from
the Issuer ("Call Option") or sell to the Issuer ("Put Option") a specified quantity of a specific Underlying during the
term of the warrant up to a specified time at an agreed price ("Exercise Price"). If Cash Settlement has been agreed,
the closing price of the Underlying on the Exercise Date is relevant for the determination of the Cash Settlement
Amount.

"Initial Fixing Date" is the calendar day specified in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series or, if this day is not a Trad-
ing Day, the next Trading Day, if, in the judgment of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event has
not occurred. If on this day, in the judgment of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event has oc-
curred, the Initial Fixing Date is the next Trading Day on which, in the judgment of the Calculation Agent, a Market
Disruption Event is no longer subsisting. If the next Trading Day without a Market Disruption Event in respect of the
Underlying does not occur by the eighth Trading Day immediately following the date which would have been the Initial
Fixing Date in the absence of the occurrence of the Market Disruption Event, then (1) this eighth Trading Day shall be
the Initial Fixing Date regardless of the Market Disruption Event and (2) the Issuer or the Calculation Agent shall deter-
mine the Reference Value for the Initial Fixing Day by determining the reference price as of the Initial Fixing Date by
specifying the price or level that the Underlying would have had on this eighth Trading Day in the absence of the occur-
rence of a Market Disruption, taking into account the market conditions prevailing at this point in time, the last report-
ed, published or recorded level or price of the Underlying and, if applicable, each individual security included in the
Underlying, as well as, in its opinion, other significant factors.

"Initial Fixing Level" or "Initial Fixing Value" is, subject to potential adjustments pursuant to the Derivatives Terms
and the provisions in the definition of "Initial Fixing Date, an amount as calculated by the Issuer or the Calculation
Agent from the Reference Value determined on the Initial Fixing Date, subject to any corrections published later.

"Issue Date" is the calendar day specified in the relevant Final Terms or if this day is not a Business Day, the next Busi-
ness Day.

"Exercise Date" is, in the case of Derivatives, the Business Day on which the Exercise Notice to the Issuer pursuant to
I1.E.b)aa)(ii) and Ill.E.b)bb)(i) of this issuance program is effective; in the case of Derivatives with automatic exercise, the
maturity date.

"Exercise Notice" is the exercise notice described in Sections Ill.E.b)aa)(ii) and IlIl.E.b)bb)(i) of this issuance program.

"Cash Settlement Amount" is the amount defined as such in the Final Terms, expressed as fixed amount, as percent-
age of the Nominal Value or par value or as an amount to be determined by the Issuer or the Calculation Agent on the
basis of a formula. The Cash Settlement Amount will be converted into the Settlement Currency at the Exchange Rate
on the Business Day immediately after the Final Fixing Date or, if this day is not a Business Day, the immediately follow-
ing date that is a Business Day. The Cash Settlement Amount will be rounded to two decimal places, provided that
0.005 is rounded down.
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"Underlying" is the reference asset specified in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series.
"Observation Times" are the points in time specified in the Final Terms.

"Observation Period" is, in relation to any Derivatives Series, the period of time from (and including) the Issue Date
until (and excluding) the first Observation Time, as well as, if several Coupons are paid, each period of time from (and
including) the relevant interest payment date until (and excluding) the next following interest payment date and, if
interest must be calculated for a period of time which does not end on the relevant interest payment date (and does
not include it), then the period of time from an including the immediately preceding interest payment date (or if none,
from the Issue Date) until (and excluding) the relevant payment date.

"Calculation Agent" is, subject to a contrary provision in the relevant Final Terms, Zircher Kantonalbank.

"Clearing System" is SIX SIS AG, and any other clearing system approved by the Issuer and disclosed (each a “Clear-
ing System" and together the "Clearing Systems").

"Composite" identifies a Derivative for which the currency of the Derivative and the currency of the Underlying or a
component of the Underlying are not the same and the investor is not hedged against the risk resulting from this fact.
Any conversions of market prices for an Underlying into the currency of the Derivative are made at current Exchange
Rates. To the extent that the description of the Derivative does not expressly use the term "Quanto" or "Quanto-
Derivative", all Derivatives issued under this issuance program for which the currency of the Derivative and the cur-
rency of the Underlying or a component of the Underlying are not the same, are not hedged against exchange rate
risk, even if the relevant Derivatives Series is not identified as "Composite".

"Corporate Actions" are events which have a dilution or concentration effect on the value of a share, such as, e.g.,
(a) distributions of unusually high dividends, bonuses or other cash distributions, as well as dividends, which are not
paid in accordance with the regular dividend policy or which are not declared as regular dividends by the Issuer of the
shares (e.g., special dividends or anniversary bonuses), (b) the granting of subscription rights, (c) capital increases from
company funds, (d) capital reductions through the reduction of the par value of the shares for purposes of returning
share capital to the shareholders, (e) a split or reverse split of the share, (f) the spin-off of a part of the company in a
manner that creates an independent entity or if that part of the business is acquired by a third-party business or

(g) another event with similar effect on the value of a share.

"Coupon" is interest, payable on the Nominal Value of the Derivative. The Coupon provides a maximum return per
Derivative for the time period from the Issue Date until the Settlement Date. The Coupon may have interest and capital
gains components.

"Minimum Coupon" means a minimum interest, payable on the Nominal Value of the Derivative. The Minimum Cou-
pon provides a minimum return per Derivative for the period between the Issue Date and the Settlement Date.

"Coupon Date" is the calendar date or dates specified in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series or, if one of these
days is not a Business Day, the next following Business Day.

"Day Count Fraction" means the day count fraction 30/360. This means that a year with 360 days and 12 months of
30 days each will be applied. The 315 day of a month is treated as the 30™. February also counts with 30 days, unless
the last day of the Determination Period is the last day of February.

"Derivatives" means the book-entry securities of linked to Underlyings issued under this issuance program by an Issu-
er, the relevant issued Derivatives of a series, the "Derivatives Series" and the individual book-entry security, a "De-

rivative". The term "Structured Product” is used in this issuance program or in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series
as a synonym for a derivative.

A "Digital Option" or "Binary Option" may have exactly two payout profiles. In the case of a “Cash-or-Nothing
Warrant”, a fixed amount will be paid if the Underlying at the end of the term (in the case of an "American Style"
warrant, during the term) is above (Digital Call) or below (Digital Put) a predefined exercise price, otherwise it expires
worthless. An "Asset-or-Nothing Warrant" differs in that instead of the payment of a fixed amount, the delivery of the
Underlying or the payment of the price of the Underlying is made. In the case of a "One-touch Warrant", it depends
on whether it is "in-the-money" at specified points in time during the term of the product.
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"Final Fixing Level" or "Final Fixing Value" is, subject to any amendments in accordance with the Derivatives Terms
and the provisions in the definition of Final Fixing Date, an amount in the amount of the Reference Value determined
by the Calculation Agent on the Final Fixing Date, regardless of any later reported corrections.

"Final Fixing Date" means the calendar day specified in the Final Terms of a Derivatives Series or, if this day is not a
Business Day, the next Business Day, if in the judgment of the Calculation Agent a Market Disruption Event has not
occurred. If on this day a Market Disruption Event has occurred, the Final Fixing Day is the next Trading Day, on which a
Market Disruption Event is no longer continuing. If the next Trading Day without a Market Disruption Event does not
occur by the eighth Trading Day immediately following the day which would have been the Final Fixing Day in the ab-
sence of a Market Disruption Event having occurred, then (a) this eighth Trading Day shall be the Final Fixing Date re-
gardless of the Market Disruption Event and (b) the Issuer or the Calculation Agent shall determine the Reference Value
for the Final Fixing Day by determining the reference price as of the Final Fixing Date by specifying the price or level
that the Underlying would have had on this eighth Trading Day in the absence of the occurrence of a Market Disrup-
tion, taking into account the market conditions prevailing at this point in time, the last reported, published or recorded
level or price of the Underlying and, if applicable, each individual security included in the Underlying, as well as, in its
opinion, other significant factors.

"European Style" or "European" is a warrant which gives the Holder of a specified number of warrants the right,
but not the obligation, to buy from (" Call-Option") or sell to ("Put-Option") the Issuer a specified quantity of specified
Underlying at the end of the term of the warrant (Exercise Date = maturity) for an agreed price ("Exercise Price"). If
Cash Settlement has been agreed, the closing price of the Underlying on the Exercise Date is relevant for the determi-
nation of the Cash Settlement Amount.

"Business Day" or "Bank Working Day" means a day (except for Saturday and Sunday), on which business banks
and currency markets in Zurich settle payments and are open for business (including the trading of currencies and for-
eign currency deposits) and on which all clearing systems are open for business and, if applicable, for purposes of pay-
ment transactions in Euro, a day, on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Trans-
fer (TARGET2) System is operating.

"Creditor" or "Holder" of a Derivative means the person who is the creditor of the right to claim payment from the
Issuer under the Derivative under Swiss law.

"Creditor Expenses" means all taxes, charges and or/costs, including if applicable custody charges, transaction or
exercise costs, stamp duties, turnover tax, issue, admission, transfer taxes or charges and/or other taxes or charges or
charges in connection with (i) the exercise of the relevant Derivative and/or (ii) a payment or the delivery of Underlyings
which will become due upon the exercise of the Derivative or otherwise.

"Trading Day" is a day on which the Relevant Exchange for an Underlying or of a component of the Underlying, to

the extent this is an exchange or a trading system which is open for trading during regular trading hours; and, to the

extent the Relevant Exchange is not a securities exchange or trading system, a Business Day, except for days on which
business banks and currency markets in the country in which the Relevant Exchange is located, are closed.

"Highest Amount" or "Cap" is, if applicable, the maximum Cash Settlement Amount specified in the relevant Final
Terms, which is owed in respect of the relevant Derivative on the Settlement Date (increased, if applicable, by a bonus
amount).

"Highest Amount Factor" is, if applicable, the amount in the Final Terms specified as a percentage of the nominal
amount of the relevant Derivative which on the Settlement Date is the maximum Cash Settlement Amount which is
owed (increased, if applicable, by a bonus amount).

«CISA” is the abbreviation for the Federal Law on Collective Capital Investments of 23 June 2006 (Kollektivanlagege-
setz, CISA) (as per 1 March 2013), SR 951.31.

"Knock-in Level" is the value specified in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series which must be reached during the
Observation Period in order for the exercise rights under a down-and-in option component or an up-and-in option
component of certain categories of Derivatives can be exercised.

"Knock-Out Level" is the value specified in the Final Terms for a Derivatives Series which must be reached during the

Observation Period in order for the exercise rights under a down-and-out option component or an up-and-out option
component of certain categories of Derivatives can be exercised.
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"Market Disruption" is any event which is identified in Section IV.A.c) or in the relevant Final Terms as a Market Dis-
ruption Event.

"Minimum Redemption Amount" or "Floor" is, if applicable, the minimum Cash Settlement Amount specified in
the Final Terms which on the Settlement Date is owed in respect of the relevant Derivative (increased, if applicable, by a
bonus amount).

"Minimum Repayment Factor" is, if applicable, the amount in the Final Terms specified as a percentage of the nom-
inal amount of the relevant Derivative which on the Settlement Date is the minimum Cash Settlement Amount which is
owed (increased, if applicable, by a bonus amount).

"Nominal Value" means, subject to possible amendments in accordance with the Derivatives Terms, the nominal val-
ue of a Derivative of a Derivatives Series.

"Primary Listing" means the first listing of a participating security, a bond or a Derivative on an official exchange.

"Quanto" is used in the product name if the currency of a Derivative and the currency of the Underlying or a compo-
nent of the Underlying are not the same and the investor is hedged against the resulting Exchange Rate risk. Such a
Derivative is also identified as a “Quanto Derivative”. The redemption methods are modified in such a way that a
change in the Exchange Rate between the relevant currencies does not have any influence on the redemption, but just
on the relative performance of the Underlying in its reference currency. It should be noted that the difference between
the two currencies during the term of the Derivative influence the fair value of the Derivative. If the interest level of the
currency of the Underlying or components of the Underlying is lower than the interest level of the currency of the De-
rivative, the fair value of the Derivative decreases.

"Reference Exchange" means with respect to the Underlying the reference exchange(s) specified in the Final Terms,
or each successor of such a Reference Exchange, as accepted and specified by the Calculation Agent. To the extent that
a Reference Exchange is not listed in the Final Terms, the Reference Exchanges listed in this issuance program for the
relevant type of Underlying shall apply.

"Reference Currency" is the currency specified in the Final Terms.

"Reference Value" is, with respect to a day, subject to any amendments in accordance with the Derivatives Condi-
tions, an amount (to be considered a monetary equivalent in the Settlement Currency or Reference Currency) in the
amount of the closing price of the Underlying or a component of the Underlying, as reported by the Reference Ex-
change and determined by the Calculation Agent.

"SIX SIS AG" is the clearing system, which is located at Baslerstrasse 100, 4600 Olten, Switzerland.

"Symbol" means the symbol that corresponds to the relevant Swiss securities number for listed Derivatives. The Sym-
bol is generated by the Issuer or the Lead Manager and agreed with Telekurs.

"TER" is the abbreviation for the Total Expense Ratio (TER). The TER specifies the production and distribution costs that
have been charged in the product. One-off costs are spread over the entire term when calculating the TER. If the effec-
tive holding period of the structured product differs from the actual product term, the TER may differ. Zircher Kanton-
albank does not indicate the cost as a range, but instead states the specific cost for the product in question.

" Associated Entity " means a legal entity under direct or indirect control of the Zlrcher Kantonalbank or which direct-
ly or indirectly controls the Zircher Kantonalbank or which is under common control together with the Zarcher Kan-
tonalbank. The determining factor for the interpretation of the terms " Control" and "to control" is a majority of the
voting rights in the legal entity or the Zircher Kantonalbank.

"Exchange Rate" means, with respect to the Underlying and any relevant date, the Exchange Rate at the specified
time on that date and for each currency pair (or at a time as close as possible as fixed by the calculation) between the
Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency (indicated as a number of units or fractions of units of the Reference
Currency which show the corresponding value of a unit of the Settlement Currency), which will be determined at this
time by the Calculation Agent in accordance with sources which it considers, in its reasonable judgment, to be appro-
priate.

"Paying and Exercise Agent" is, subject to any contrary provisions in the relevant Final Terms, Zircher Kantonalbank.
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VIl. RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ISSUANCE PROGRAM

Zurcher Kantonalbank accepts responsibility for the content of this issuance program and hereby states that to its
knowledge the statements in this issuance program are accurate and no significant circumstances have been omitted.

Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited accepts responsibility for the content of this issuance program and
hereby states that to its knowledge the statements in this issuance program, to the extent that they relate to Zircher
Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited, are accurate and no significant circumstances have been omitted.

For Zircher Kantonalbank:

René Zangger Regula Berger

Member of the Management Vice President

For Ziircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited:

Felix Oegerli Beat Gabathuler
Chairman Vice Chairman

14 March 2014
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Annex 1A

Annual Report 2012 of Ziircher Kantonalbank

Can be reviewed online with following link:

http://www.zkb.ch/etc/ml/repository/prospekte_und_broschueren/corporate/geschaeftsberich
t/220745_geschaeftsbericht_2012_pdf.File.pdf

/2_Attachment 1A.doc



Annex 1B

Annual Report 2013 of Ziircher Kantonalbank

Can be reviewed online with following link:

http://www.zkb.ch/etc/ml/repository/prospekte_und_broschueren/corporate/geschaeftsberich
t/geschaeftsbericht_2013_gesamtausgabe_pdf.File.pdf

/3_Annex 1B.doc



Annex 2A

Annual financial statement 2012 of Ziircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey)
Limited
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ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors submit their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012

Activities

The principal activity of Zircher Kantonalbank Finance {Guernsey) Limited (“the company”) is to
carry on business as a finance company and to borrow or raise money by the issue of financial
instruments of whatsoever nature.

Results
The results of the company are shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 3.

Dividend
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Directors
The directors of the company are these listed in the Company Information,

Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable
Guernsey Law and generally accepted accounting principles.

Guernsey Company Law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the directors should:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

So far as each of the directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
company's auditor is unaware, and each has taken all the steps he ought to have taken as a director
to make himself aware of any relevant audit information, and to establish that the company's
auditor is aware of that information.

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors will be put to the members at the Annual
General Meeting.

nd on behalf of the Board

O“ ~es’ Lar‘_g// /lt‘slx ﬂ-‘f\lo-

For and on behalf of Butterfield Management Services (Guernsey) Limited
Secretary

G Hacch, 20\

Date




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited for the
year ended 31 December 2012 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related
notes 1 to 17. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 262 of the
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 1, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view, Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors;
and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, we consider
the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of its net
income for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Matters on which we are required to repart by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Guernsey) Law,
2008 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

* proper accounting records have not been kept; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

I:—h'ﬂl 8\ vay Lep

Ernst & Young LLP
Guernsey, Channel kslands

Date |, mw,J,. 101%



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Year ended
Notes 31 December 2012
CHF CHF
Net trading income 4 45,590,261
Other operating income
Bank interest rece:vable 165
Bond interest receivable 28,211
Other income -
Other operating income 28,376
Total income 45,618,637

Operating expenses 5 (15,072,989)

Net comprehensive income/(loss) for the financial year

The notes on pages 7 to 21 form part of these financial statements.

30,545,648

Year ended
31 December 2011
CHF CHF
13,917,680
6,293
472,985
7,500
56,778
13,974,458

(16,169,523)

{2,195,065)



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2012

Notes 31 December 2012 31 December 2011
CHF CHF
Assets
Cash, amounts due from banks, money at call 6 245,114,148 384,630,222
Accrued interest receivable and prepayments 28,438,446 37,027,427
Securities designated at fair value through profit or
loss 7 2,222,411,155 2,591,724,998
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss 8 1,037,689,774 820,770,029
Financial assets held to maturity 9 8,000,000 13,000,000
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss 10, 11b 113,918,939 148,771,798
Total Assets 3,655,5672,462 3,995,924,474
Liabilities
Amounts due to banks 6 78,477,985 73,639,523
Accrued interest payable and accrued expenses 9,181,270 1,051,447
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss 10, 11b 103,315,153 209,122,312
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit
or loss 11a, 11b 3,406,598,288 3,684,657,074
Total Liabilities 3,597.572,696 3,968,470,356
Equity
Share capital 12 1,000,000 1,000,000
Retained earnings 56,999,766 26,454,118
Tatal Equity 57,999,766 27,454,118
Total Liabilities and Equity 3,655,572,462 3,995,924,474
Gabathuler Jﬁﬁ'ﬁ?ﬁouf o

Vite Chairman Director

G MaCTh 2003

Date

The notes on pages 7 to 21 form part of these financial statements.



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Share Retained Total
capital earnings Equity
CHF CHF CHF
At 1 January 2011 1,000,000 28,649,183 29,649,183
Net camprehensive loss for the financial year - (2,195,065) {2,195,065)
Balance at 31 December 2011 1,000,000 26,454,118 27,454 118
CHF CHF CHF
At 1 January 2012 1,000,000 26,454,118 27,454,118
Net comprehensive income for the financial year - 30,545,648 30,545,648
Balance at 31 December 2012 1,000,000 56,999,766 57,999,766

The notes on pages 7 to 21 form part of these financial statements,



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Year ended

Notes 31 December 2012

Operating activities

Net comprehensive income / {loss) for the financial year
Adjustment for changes in working capital:

Accrued interest receivable and prepayments

Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets held to maturity

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss

Accrued interest payable and accrued expenses

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss
Bond payable

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2012

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2012 6

The notes on pages 7 to 21 form part of these financial statements.

CHF

30,545,648

8,588,981
369,313,843
(216,919,745)

5,000,000

34,852,859

8,129,823

(105,807,159}

{278,058,786)

Year ended

31 December 2011

CHF

(2,195,065)

(16,916,402)
(1,646,948,723)

1,477,434,815

1,035,588,931

699,632

37,543,556
(572,529,350)

(13,000,000)

{144,354,536) 299,677,394
310,990,699 11,313,305
166,636,163 310,990,699




ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

1 Corporate information
Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Lumited {"the company®) 1= a finance company and borrows or rases money by the issue of financial
instruments of whatsoever nature. The company was incorporated and is registered in Guernsey with the registered office being at Regency
Court, Glategny Esplanade, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 3AP.

2 Principal accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relatton to the financial
statements of the company.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation to fair value through profit or
loss of derivative financial ‘nstruments, over-the-counter (QTC) options, securities, term deposits with banks and financial liabilities and in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {*IFR5"} as adopted by the European Union.

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union.

Standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant standards and interpretations, which have not been applied,
wizre in issue but not yet effective:-

IAS 1; Presentation of ltem: of Other Comprehensive Income - Amendments to 1AS 1. The amendments change the grouping of items presented
in other comprehensive income. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 july 2012, The company expects no impact
from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or performance.

IFRS 7: Financial Instruments. Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities {Amendment). The amendments require an entity
to disclose information about rights of set-off and related arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosure: would provide usters with
information that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The company expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or
performance.

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement. The standard reflects the first phase of the replacement of 1AS 39 and applies to
classification and measurement of financial assets and finanaal liabilites as defined in 1AS 39. The standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015. In subsequent phases, !ASB will address hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets, The
company expects na impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or performance.

IFR5 10: Consolidated Financial Statements {Amendment). The standard pravides an exception to consolidation requirements for entities that
meet the definition of an investment entity. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or before 1 January 2014. At present
no assessment has been made by the company of the impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or performance.
IFRS 11: Joint Arrangement:. The standard provides a more realistic reflection of joint arrangements by focusing on the rights and obligations of
the arrangement rather than its legal form. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The company
expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or performance,

{FR5 12: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. The standard includes disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles. The standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, The company expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or
performance.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The standard improves consistency and reduces complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRS. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. The company expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or performance.

There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a
significant impact on the company’s financial position or performance. The directors have adopted a policy of applying new standards and
interpretations when they become effective,

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. Amendments to IFRS resulting fram the following new
and amended standards and interpretations did not have any impact on the accounting policies, financial position, or performance of the
company:

IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets {Amendment) - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2011,
1AS 12: Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendment) - effective for annuat periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent:, as referred to in the statement of cash flows, comprises of cash in hand, current accounts with banks and amounts
due from banks on demand or with an original maturity of three months or less.

Reverse repurchase {reverse repo) agreements

The company has entered into secured reverse repurchase (reverse repo) agreement: which are recognised in the statement of financial position
as financial asset: designated at fair value through profit or loss. The deposits are backed by collateral in the farm of securities which are held
with a third party, and are not shown on the statement of financial position. This accurately reflects the financial nature of the transactions.

Foreign exchange

Assets and liabilities denominated in fore'gn currencies are transiated into Swiss franc: based on the rates of exchange ruling at the statement
of financial position date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the
transactions, Foreign exchange gains and !osses are included in the statement of comprehensive income,

The Swiss franc is the functional and presentational currency of the company, as it is of Zurcher Kantonalbank, the parent company. Also, a
significant proportion of the company’s transactions is done in Swiss francs.



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Principal accounting policies {continued)

investment income
Investment incame comprises of interest receivable on the maturity of the company's term deposits with banks. Interest income is recognised as
it accrues,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss - initial recognition, derecognition and subsequent measurement

The company recognises a financial asset or a financial liabihty when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument, Purchases and sales of financial instruments, over-the-counter options, securities and term deposits with banks are recognised on
the trade date and are initially designated and measured at fair value through profit or loss consistent with the company's documented rizk
management strategy.

Financial instruments, aver-the-counter aptians, tecurities and term depaosits with banks are derecognised when the maturity date or final fixing
date has expired and the rights to receive cashflows or meet obligations has passed. Gains and loises on maturity are recognised in net trading
income in the statement of comprehensive income,

The financia! instruments, over-the-counter optians, securities, revesse repurchase agreements and term deposits with banks are subsequently
valued according to the fair value principle. Changes in fair value are recorded in net gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss,

The accrued interest receivable and payable, prepayments and accrued expenses at the year end are vaiued according to the fair value principle.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets at stat=ment of financial position date is based on their quoted market price
{offer price for share options and bid price for other financial instruments). Where the fair values of financial assets and liabilities recorded in
the statement of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that
include the use of mathematical models.

The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where postible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required
in establishing fair values. The judgements include cansiderations of liquidity and model inputs such as credit risk (both own and
counterparty’s), correlation and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factor: could affect the reported value of financial instruments.
The models are calibrated regularly and tested for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument
{without modification or repackaging) or based on any available chservable market data,

Dffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are off:et and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there 15 an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the refated assets and liabilities are presented gross
in the statement of financial position.

Financial assets held to maturity and bonds payable

After initial recognition at fair value plus attributable transaction costs, financial assets held to maturity and bonds payable are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
when either the assets and liabilities are derecognised or through the amortisation process.

Amortised cost is computed using the effective interest rate method less any allowance far impairment and principal repayment or reduction.
The calculation takes inte account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of
the effective rate.

Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event' or "events’)
which has an impact on the estimated future cash fiows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Taxation
With effect from 1 January 2008, Guernsey abolished the exempt company regime, The company is taxed at the company standard rate (0%}

fram that date,

Net trading income Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2012 2011
CHF CHF

Investment income 1,711,745 9,049,435
Bond interest 66,379,225 41,158,081
Net realised gains/(losses) on maturity of investments (62,281,176} 16,267,569
Net ga'ns/(losies} an foreign exchange revaluations 338,034 1.010,585
Net gains/{losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss 39,442,433 {53,567,990)
45,590,261 13,917,580




ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

5 Operating expenses Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
CHF CHF
Administration fees 889,974 B46,916
Audit fees 89,118 89,013
Directors’ {ees 10,445 10,067
Zurcher Kantonalbank service costs
Development costs 1,541,667 2,000,000
Praduct issuing costs 2,083,333 3,000,000
Distribution costs 6,065,398 6,784,715
Risk management fee 1,541,667 2,000,000
Keep-well agreement charges 720,061 769,665
IT project costs 1,000,000 -
Employee expenses:
Salaries 692,167 412,336
Income tax 78,166 57,766
Social security 47,438 20,912
Health insurance 12,824 4,000
Other staff expenses 15,081 -
Other expenses 285,650 174,133

15,072,989 16,169,523

6 Cash, current accounts with banks, money at call 31 December 31 December
2012 2011

CHF CHF

Due from banks, European Un on - short term deposits 174,623,925 352,329,736
Due from banks, Guernsey 717,834 16,308
Due from banks, Zurcher Kantonalbank 69,772,389 32,283,678

245,114,148 384,630,222

Due to banks, Zarcher Kantonalbank (78,477,985) (73,639,523)
(78,477,985) {73,639,523)
Total net cash, current accounts with banks, money at call 166,636,163 310,990,699

fhe amaunts due from banks in the European Union accrue interest income at fixed market rates. The amounts due from banks in Guernsey
accrue interest \ncome at variable market rates. The amounts due to and from Zurcher Kantonalbank do not accrue interest.

7 Securities held for trading, designated at fair value through profit or loss 31 December 31 December
2012 2011
CHF CHF
Bonds receivable 2,223,589,751  2,625,947,582
Unrealised loss (1,178,596) (34,222,584}
At fair value 2'222i41 1,155  2,591,724,998
By maturity:
Up to one year 554,839,543 352,504,555
From one year to two years 444,078,542 720,405,794
From two years to three years 535,269,610 492,333,742
From three years to four years 290,312,568 524,423,763
Fram four years to five years 171,926,436 252,053,462
From five years and over 225,984,456 250,003,682
2222417155 2,581,724,998
The bonds receivable accrue interest income at fixed rates between 0.90% and §1.75%, and floating market rates,
8 Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 31 December 31 December
2012 2011
CHF CHF
Term deposits due from banks, European Union 287,272,632 568,252,417
Reverse repurchase agreements, European Union 750,000,000 250,000,000
Fair value gains 417,142 2,517,612
At fair value 1,037,689.774_ 820,770,029
By maturity:
Up to one year 537,607,995 570,734,198
From one year to two years - 250,035,831
From twa years to three years 300,048,411 -
From three years to four years 200,033,368 -

1,037,689,774 820,770,029

All term deposits accrue interest income at fixed market rates between 0.00% and 3.90%. The reverse repurchase agreements accrue interest
income at floating market rates linked to CHF LIBOR.
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%  Financial assets held to maturity
Securities 31 December 31 December
2012 2011
CHF CHF
Bonds receivable 8,600,000 13,000,000
At fair value 8,000,000 13,000,000
By maturity.
Up to one year 8,000,000 5,000,000
From one year to two years - 8,000,000
8,000,000 13,000,000
The bonds accrue interest income at floating market rates.
10 Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2012 2012
Long Short Net position
CHF CHF CHF
Over-the-counter options
Premium paid / {received) 145,892,326  (214,679,352) (68,787,026)
Unrealisad gain / {loss) (31,973,387) 111,364,189 79,390,812
At fair value 113,918,939  (103,315,153) 10,603,786
31 December 31 December 31 Pecember
2011 2011 2011
Lang Short Net position
CHF CHF CHF
Over-the-counter ortions
Premium paid / {received) 190,598,678 (238,001,245} (47,402,567)
Unrealised ga n [/ (loss) (41,826,880) 28,878,933 {12,947,947)
At fair value 148,771,798 _ (209,122,312 {60,350,514)
11 Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 31 December 31 Decemher 31 December
2012 2012 2012
Unrealised
Cost gain / (loss) At fair value
11a Financial labilities - structured products by underlying assets CHF CHF CHF
Interest instruments 955,396,208 33,786,596 921,609,612
Foreign exchange 158,385,298 7,491,741 150,893,557
Pracious metals 62,070,081 {7,532,389) 69,602,470
Equities / securities 2,113,070,447 {75,178,520) 2,188,248,967
Commoadities 40,557,977 298,973 40,259,004
Mixed derivatives 37,429,653 1,444,975 35,884,678
3,366,909,664 (39,688 624) 3,406,598, 288
31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2011 2011
Unrealised
Cost gain / {loss) At fair value
CHF CHF CHF
interest instruments 1,301,211,979 102,410,334  1,198,801,645
Foreign exchange 163,038,542 7,799,133 155,239,409
Precious metals 54,441,779 (1,278,839) 55,720,618
Equities / securities 2,296,258,750 35,506,544  2,260,752,206
Commaodities 9,179,744 4,365,042 4,814,702
Real estates 2,020,000 47,995 1,972,005
Mixed derivatives 7,998,463 641,974 7,356,489
3.834,149,257 149,492,183  3,684,657,074

10




ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11 Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

11b Fair value by maturity

2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 31 December
Upto From one year From two years From three years Fram four years Fram five years 2012
one year  totwo years to three years to four years to five years and over Total
CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF
Positive replacement values
OTCoptions - fong 33,739,601 24,707,187 46,265,514 4,780,755 2,491,379 1,934,503 113,918,939
Negative replacement values
Interest instruments 459,407,537 155,213,679 164,278,432 67,659,957 4,874,606 40,175,402 921,609,613
Foreign exchange 69,113,802 76,582,118 2,175,956 3,021,680 - - 150,893,556
Precious metals 35,777,699 20,256,859 13,567,913 - - - 69,602,471
EqQuities / securities 708,569,7M 752,911,048 412,588,544 179,165.015 50,145,093 84,869,565 2,188,248,966
Commod:tres 29,794,050 10,464,354 - - . - 40,259,004
Mixed derivatives 185,028 3,531,751 658,539 2,874,290 28,148,648 586,422 35,984,678
1,332,847,817 1,018,960,409 593,269,384 252,720,942 83,168,347 125,631,289 3,406,598,285
OTC options - short 29,008,153 24,376,026 21,495,508 6,235,433 5,713,030 16,486,003 103,315,153
At fair value 1,361,855970 1,043 336,435 614,765,892 258,956,375 88,881,377 142,117,392 3,509,913,441
2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 201 31 December

Up to From one year From two years From three years From four years From five years 201
one year  to twoyears to three years to four years to five years and over Total
CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF
Pasitive replacement values

OTC options - long 41,342,361 29,148,712 24,211,952 45,243,247 5,839,864 2,985,662 148,771,798

Negative replacement values
Interest instruments 388,441,018 362,311,924 220,460,830 91,166,080 47,265,647 89,156,146 1,198,E01,645
Foreign exchange - 92,907,375 59,507,235 - 2,824,799 - 155,239,409
Precious metals 13,491,090 25,526,906 9,099,798 7,602,824 - - 55,720,618
Equities / securities 776,688,411 339,124,004 572,185,279 120,485,076 165,782,966 86,466,470  2,260,752,206
Commodities 4,814,702 - - - - - 4,814,702
Real estates 1,972,005 - - - - - 1,972,005
Mixed derivatives - 171,015 3,612,915 630,639 2,941,920 - 7,356,489
1,185,407,226 820,041,224 864,866,057 419,884,619 218,815,332 175,042,616 3,684,657,074
OTC options - short 94,498,670 40,466,612 41,224,362 12,079,617 3,418,704 17,434,347 209,122,312
At fair value 1,279,905,896 860,507,836 906,090,419 431,964,236 222,234,036 193,076,963  3,893,779,386

All contracts are with Ziircher Kantonalbank (see note 16).
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12

13

Share capital

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
CHF CHF
Authorized:
1,000 Ordinary shares of CHF1,000 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1,000 Ordinary shares of CHF1,000 each 1,000,000 1,00:0,600

Fair value of financial instruments

The following tables show financial instruments reconnised at fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on.-
- Quoted prices (unadjusted} in active market: for identical assets or habilities (Level 1),
- Those ‘nvolving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are abservable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or

‘ndirectly {derived from prices) (Leve! 2). and

- Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on abservable market data {(unohservable inputs) {Level 3).

Fair value of financial instruments at 31 December 2012: Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
CHF CHF CHF CHF

Assets

Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 2,222,411,155  2,222,411,155 -

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,037,689,774 1,037,689,774

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 113,918,939 113,918,939

Liabilities

Derivative financial ‘nstruments held at fair value through profit or loss (103,315,153} (103,315,153)

Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss {3,406,798,288) (3,406,598,288)

Fair value of financial instruments at 31 December 2011: Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
CHF CHF CHF CHF

Assets

Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss

2,591,724,998

2,991,724,998 -

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or lass 820,770,023 = 820,770,029 -
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 148,771,798 - 148,771,798 -
Liabilities

Dervative financal instruments held at fair value through profit or loss {209,122,312) - (209,122,312)

Financ:al hab hities held at fair value through profit or loss

(3.684,657,074)

- (3,684,657,074)

The fair values of securities are based on market prices which are available in active markets. The far vaiue of such securities is included within
Level 1.

The fair values of term deposits with banks are calculated using a bank discount rate on an interest curve interpolated irom market data. The
fair value of such term deposits with hanks is included within Level 2,

The fair value: of over-the-counter options are calculated using an aption pricing model based on d rect market data, e.c., bond or share prices,
and indirect market data, e.g., interest, implied volatility and dividend estimates. The fair value of such over-the-counter options 1 included
within Level 2.

The fair values of 'nterest rate swaps are calculated using a bank discount rate on an interest curve interpolated from market data. The fair
value of such interest rate swaps (s included within Level 2.

The fair values of structured products, which are set up as combinations of the components of the respective strurtured product, are calculated
based on the sum of the valuations of its components, As the fair values of the components of the structured products are either Level 1
(securities) or Leve! 2 {term deposits with banks, over-the-counter options and interest rate swaps), the fair value of such structured products is
included within Level 2.
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14 Risk management and policies
The company's financal products comprise of term deposits, money market assets, securities, options and various types of derivative
instruments, cash and hquid resources and various other items that arise directly from its operations.

14.1 Risk management framework

The directars have included information in the notes to the financial statements which discloses the market risk sensitivity analysis which is
performed by the parent company Ziircher Kantonalbank, and is appropriate to the nature af the company's business and the market risks to
which 1t is subject. in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 7. The company's directors and the company's management use sensitivity
analysiz as described in note 14 of this report to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments.

The main risks arising from the company’'s financial products are credit risk, liquidity risk and market nisk. The directors review and agree policies
for managing each of these ricks and they are summarised below. The directors approved new risk management guidelines for the company on
17 June 2011. The document sets out guidelines for identifying, managing and monitoring default, liquidity and market risks to which the
company is exposed.

In particuiar, the document:

i} defines the rules and procedures for managing defauft, liguidity and market risks;

i} sets out the applicable long-term risk policies of the company and Zircher Kantonalbank:

iii) defines the entity to which duties and responsibilities in relation to risk management are assigned;
iv} defines the entity to which duties and responsibilities in refation to risk monitoring are assigned;
v} provides an overview of relevant powers and responsibilities.

The general guideline: are:

i) Default, ligquidity and market risks shall be managed in accordance with the rules and policies laid down in the Guidelines an Risk
Management at Zircher Kantonalbank, and Group risk policies.

ii) Subject to the canstraints of the applicable Group risk policies, the company shall define appropriate kmits with a view to mitigating default

and market risks.

ili) Zarcher Kantanathank shall be responsible for managing risks subject to approved limits.

iv) Zurcher Kantonalbank shall be responsible for quantifying risk, preparing reports on risk monitoring conducted, and reporting on risks.
v) The directors of the company shall be entitled to limit the level of risk exposure and the list of approved products at any time.

The management of risks within the limits in sections 14.7 a), b), ¢}, and d), has been delegated to Zurcher Kantonalbank.

With regard to risk monitoring, the Chief Executive Officer {CEO) of the company is responsible for:

i} monitoring liquidity and solvency of the company and informing the directors of any issues arising or exceptional events;
i) monitoring adherence to risk limits and informing the directors in the event of a limit breach;

iii) defining actions 1o be taken in case of limit breaches;

iv} informing the directors of actions defined, and

v} documenting limits, limit breaches and actions defined.

Risk measurement, preparation of risk monitoring reports and risk reporting have been delegated to Zurcher Kantonalbank. To en:ure a
constant monitoring of risk by the company's management, a risk report is prepared by Ziircher Kantonalbank on a daily basis and is sent to the
management of the company.

One of the major changes made in 2011 was the replacement of the Value-at-Risk methodology, with sensitivity limits, volume limits, credit
spread limits and loss limits as described in the risk management guidelines. The following sections detail the limit types, methods used far
exposure calculation and expaosures as per year end.

14.1 a) Sensitivity limits ("Delta limits")
The directors of the company define sensitivity limits for interest rate, foreign currency and default risks, which are calculated on a daily or
weekly basis.

interest rate

An interest rate sensitivity limit of +/- CHF 100,000 means that the current Rho exposure must not exceed CHF 100,000 per basis point. Rho is the
derivative of the option value with respect to the risk free interest rate for the relevant outstanding term, and is expres:ed a: the amount of
money, per share of the underlying, that the value of the option will gain or lose as the risk free interest rate rises or falls by one basis point.

Limit Lirit status Value 31,1212 Value 31.12.11
Additional information on interest rate risk: table 14.4 a) +/- CHF 100,000 ok (29,773) 16,421
sensitivity limit per
CHE 0.07

The foreign exchange sensitivity limit of +/~ CHF 1,000,000 means that the effect of our foreign exchange expasure must not cause a profit or
loss of greater than CHF 1,000,000. The calculation of foreign exchange sensitivity is performed by Ziircher Kantonaibank (Risk Control
Department). The amount disclosed means the effect on profit or loss when the Swiss Franc FX-rates move by 1%.

Limit Limit status  Value 31.12.12  Value 31,1211

Additional information on foreign exchange rate risk: table 4.4 b) +/- CHF 1,000,000 ok 1,790 1,591

eI pi11.8
sensitivity  fimits:

Credit risk money

markets

Credit risk money markets relates to the daily change of synthetic portfolio hedging, i.e. a portfolio of credit default swaps (CDS) with referenca
to named money market counterparties. The sensitivity limit defines the maximum profit and loss daily change limit permitted on the
theoretical hedging costs on the Guernsey Risk Manager portfolo.

The credit risk maney markets limit of +/- CHF 1,000,000 means that the current credit deita exposure on money market investments must not
exceed CHF 1,000,000 per credit point.

Limit L'mat status Value 31.12.12  Value 31.12.11
Additional information on money market exposure: table 14,2 c) +/- CHF 1,000,000 ok (244,000) (2,615,000)
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14 Risk management and policies {continued)

14.1 a) Sensitivity limits {*Delta limits*) (continued)

Default risk
Credit risk others refer to bond: and reverse repurchase agreements, and is related to daily changes of the Z-Spread. The sensitivity limit defines

the maximum profit and loss daily change limit permitted on the theoretical hedging costs on the Guernsey Risk Manager portfolio.
The credit risk others limit of +/- CHF 5,000,000 means that the current credit delta exposure on bonds and reverse repurchase agreements must
not exceed CHF 5,000,000 per credit point.

Limit Limit status ~ Value 31,12,12  Vaiue 31.12.11
Additional infarmation on the company's expasure: tables 14.2 d) +/- CHF 5,000,000 ok 366,514 467,102

14.1 b) Entity volume limits for funds invested with third parties
The directors define maximum volumes for each counterparty with a view to mitigating the risk of default on investments with third parties
{money market investments and reverse repurchase agreements). The directors may lower the limit: defined for the company at any time.

Exposure of term deposits and money market assets with corresponding counterparty limits are disclosed in table 14,2 ¢),

14.1 ¢) Entity volume limits and counterparty limit monitaring for securities investments
The directors have defined minimum credit ratings and maximum permitted volumes per issuer for each rating category with a view to
mitigating the default risk associated with securities (bands, Pfandbriefe, etc).

Valume limits per counterparty must not exceed Group policy. Counterparty volume limits for securities investments are:

Limit CHF Limit Status
Total Limit 1,500,000,000 ok
Counterparty Limits AAA 100,000,000 ok
Counterparty Limits AA 50,000,000 ok
Counterparty Limits A 30,000,000 ok
Counterparty Limits BBB or lower - ok

Additional information on the company's exposure: table 14.2 d) i)

14.1 d) Credit spread limit {DV01) and loss Emit
The directors have defined the maximum credit spread sensitivity {DVO?) per issuer with a view to mitigating the credit risk associated with
securities and a maximum daily loss limit. DV01 is the sensitivity of a contract to a 1 basis point fluctuation in the credit spread curve.

The DVO1 limit is CHF 35,000 per issuer. At 31 December 2012, the potential loss per issuer was within the prescribed limit.
The maximum daily loss limit is CHF 5,000,000. At 31 December 2012, the potential daily loss was CHF 366,514, and within the prescribed limit,

14.2 Credit risk

Definition: Credit risk i5 the risk that a counterparty will be unable or unwiliing to meet a commutment that it has entered into with the
company.

Zurcher Kantonalbank manages counterparty credit risk at a group level to optimise the use of eredit availability and to avoid excessive risk
concentration, The company's policy is that all eredit facilities are entered into with group approved banks with an appropnate credit rating.
The Standard & Poor's long term deposits ratings at 31 December 2012 are shown in the note bejow,

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the company, which comprise of term deposits, money market assets, reverse
repurchase agreements, securities, debtors and various types of derivative instruments, the company's exposure to credit risk arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments,

The company's management team and directors receive regular reports on any credit exposure.

14.2 a) Financial assets held to maturity

Value at 31
As at 31 December 2012: December 2012 fating %
Bonds receivable 8,000,000 AAN 100.00%
Total SEOOO‘OOD 100.00%
Value at 31
As at 31 December 2011: December 2011 Rating %
Bends receivable 13,000,000 AAA 100.00%
Total 13,000,000 —_____100.00%

14.2 b) Reverse repurchase (reverse repo) agreements
The company has entered into secured reverse repurchase (reverse repo) agreements. The securities held as collateral are held by a third party

agent.
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
CHF CHF
Book value of cash collateral due for securities borrowed in connection with reverse repurchase agreements 750,000,000 250,000,000
fair value gains 181,192 35,831
At fair value 750,181,192 250,035 831
Fair value of securities with unrestricted right to resell or repledge, held by third parties as collateral in
connection with reverse repurchase agreements 818,035,712 260,314,409
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14 Risk management and policies {continued)

14.2 c) Term depaosits and money market assets
Total internal  Deposits at 31

As at 31 December 2012: limit December 2012 Rating %

Term deposits - - AAA 0.00%
Term deposits 350,000,000 . AA 0.00%
Term depasits 1,350,000,000 326,906,332 A 70.77%
Term depasits 165,000,000 134,990,225 BEB 29.23%
Total 1 8655000!000 46158955557 100.00%

Total internal  Deposits at 31

As at 31 December 2011: limit December 2011 Rating %

Term deposits 200,000,000 12,139,000 AAA 1.32%
Term deposits 1,500,000,000 726,557,783 AA 78,92%
Term deposits 900,000,000 181,885,370 A 19.76%
Term deposits 65,000,000 - BBB 0.00%
Total ,___2,665,000,000 920,582,153 100.00%

If the limit for a counterparty is amended by resolution of the directors, and the counterparty usage is higher than the new limit at that time,
the company brings their exposure to that counterparty within the new limit in due course, by not renewing term deposits with that
counterparty upon their maturity.

14.2 d) i) Securities held far trading - Guernsey Risk Management

The securities listed above are held as direct hedging instruments and are not subject to the limits outlined in 14.1 ¢).

Value at 31
As at 31 December 2012: December 2012 Rating Yo
Bonds receivable 1,212,871,059 AAA BB.B1%
Bonds receivable 30,025,750 AA+ 2.20%
Bonds receivable 48,760,275 AA 3.57%
Bonds receivable 63,723,490 AA- 4.67%
Bonds receivable 10,307,500 A 0.75%
Total 1365688074 100.00%
Value at 31
As at 31 December 2011: December 2011 Rating e
Bonds receivable 1,090,604,753 AAA 88.60%
Bonds receivable 26,282,500 Al+ 2.13%
Bonds receivable 43,775,787 AA 3.56%
Bonds receivable 70,254,996 AA- 5.11%
Total 1,230,918.036 — 00.00%
14.2 d} ii} Securities held for trading - as direct hedging instruments
Value at 31
As at 31 December 2012: December 2012 Rating %
Bonds receivable 166,119,058 AAA 19.39%
Bonds receivable 164,412,343 AN 19.19%
Bonds receivable 333,483,651 A 38.93%
Bonds receivable 140,849,316 BBB 16.44%
Bonds receivable 40,288,869 BB 4.70%
Bands receivable 4,327,183 i 0.51%
Bonds receivabie 1,060,209 ccC 0.12%
8onds receivabie 6,159,999 Na rating 0.72%
Stocks held 22,453 No rating 0.00%
Total 856,723,081 100.00%
Value at 31
As at 31 December 2011: December 2011 Rating %
Bonds receivable 586,735,969 AAA 43.12%
Bonds receivable 239,987,421 AA 17.64%
Bonds receivable 351,475,515 A 25.83%
Bonds receivable 164,575,889 8BR 12.09%
Bonds receivable 8.196,103 BB 0.60%
Bonds receivable 42,967 B 0.00%
Bonds receivable 221,511 cC 0.02%
Bands receivable 37,024 C 0.00%
Bonds receivable 7,060,785 Mo rating 0.52%
Stocks held 2,473,778 No rating 0.18%
Total o LD L I [
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14 Risk management and policies (continued)

14.3 Liquidity risk

Definition: Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficully in realising assels or othenwise raising funds to meet
cammitments.

The palicy throughout the year has been to ensure liquidity by maintaining at alt times sufficent cash deposits. The company’s liquidity risk 15
constantly monitored as an important part of the risk management process. For shart term liquidity management, cash inflow: and outflows are
forecasted and monitored in detai for each of the upcoming 40 warking days for each currency, This daily analysis is complemented by a long
term liquidity analysis (forecast on 3 months basis).

2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 31 December

Up to
one year
CHF

from one year
to two years
CHF

From two years Fram three years

to three years
CHF

to four years
CHF

Fram four years
to five years
CHF

Fram five years
and over
CHF

1014
Total
CHF

Assets

Cash, amounts due
from banks, money

at call 245,114,148 - - - - - 245,114,148

Accrued interest
receivable and

prepayments 28,438 446 - - 28,418,446

Securities
designated at fair
vaiue through profit

or loss 554,839,543 444,078,542 535,269,610 290,312,568 171,926,436 215,984,456  2,222,411,155

Financial assets
designated at fair
value through profit

or loss 537,607,495 - 300,048,411 200,033,368 - . 1.037,689,774

Financial assets held

to maturity 8,000,000 - - - . - 8,000,000

Dervative financial
instrumentis held at
fair value through

profit or loss 33,739,601 24,707,187 46,265,514 4,780,755 2,491,379 1,934,503 113,918,939

Liabilities
Amounts due to
banks

(78,477,985) - - - . = (78,477,985)

Accrued interest
payahle and
accrued expenses

(9,181,270} e S = - - (9.181,270)

Derivative financial
instruments held at
fair value through

profit or {oss (29,008,153) (24,376,026) {21,496,508) (6,235,433) (3,713,030) (16,486,003) (103,315,153)

Financial liahilities
held at fair value
through profit or

loss {1,332,847,817}  (1,018,960,410) (593,269,384) (252,720,941} (83,168,347) {125,631,389) (3,406,598,288)
Net Liquidity (41,775,492) {574,550,707) 266,817,643 236,170,317 85,536,438 85,801,567 57,999,766
The contractual liabilities of the company at 31 December 2012 are as foliows:

Financial fiabilities

held at fair value

through profit or

loss (1,243,876,827) (962,933,135) (567,328,575) (245,663,946) (66,779,224} {56,958,531) 53!1435540,238)

The liquidity risk profile shows a net deficit in the periods up to one year and from one to two years. However, the bond portfolio 1s considered
to be held for trading, and while bonds are dassitied according to their final maturity date, the portfolia is sufficiently liquid that the bonds
could be sold at any time to meet liquidity requirements.
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14 Risk management and policies (cantinued)
14.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011
Upto From one year From two years From three years Fram four years From five years
one year to two years  to three years to four years to five years and aver
CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF
Assets

Ca:h, amounts due
from banks, maney
at calt 384,630,222 - . -

Accrued interest
receivable and
prepayments 37,027,427 - . = -

Secunties

designated at fair

value through profit

or loss 352,504,555 720,405,794 492,333,742 524,423,763 252,053,462 250,003,682

Financial assets

designated at fair

value through profit

or loss 570,734,198 250,035,831 - - -

Financial assets hald
to maturity 5,000,000 8,000.000 - -

Derivative financial

instruments: held at

fair value through

profit or loss 41,342,361 29,148,712 24,211,952 45,243,247 5,839,864 2,985,662

Liabilities

Amounts due to
banks (73,639,523) . = . . -

Accrued interest
payable and
accrued expenses (1,051,447) - S 5 5 -

Derivative financial

instruments held at

fair value through

profit or loss (94,498,670) (40,1466,612) {41,224,363) (12,079,617) {1,418,704) {17,434,347)

Financial liabilities

held at fair value

through profit or

loss {1,185,407,225) (820,041,222) (864,866,059} {419,884,619) {218,815,332) (175,642,617)

31 December
2011

Total

CHF

384,630,222

37,027,427

2,591,724,998

820,770,029

13,000,000

148,771,798

(73,639,523)

(1,051,447}

(209,122,312)

(3,684,657,074)

Net Liquidity 36,641,895 147,082,503 (389,544,727) 137,702,774 35,659,290 59,912,380

27,454,118

The contractual liabilities of the company at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

Financial liabilities

held at fair value

through profit or

loss (1,145,731,175) (753,684,179) (856,482,946) (419,744,223) 5212i880i221z (113,837,511)

{3,502,362,255)
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ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

14 Risk management and policies (continued)

14.4 Market risk

Defmnition: Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
variables such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates, and sensitivity to changes in market pricing.

As in previous years, the company's exposure to changes in market pricing is limited, as all fair value adjustments on the individual instruments
which comprize of each of the company's products will reverse on the maturity of that product

14.4 a) Interest rate risk

Defintion: Exposure to interest rate risk is the risk that arises when there is an imbalance between rate and non-rate sensitive assets and
fiabilities.

The assets (see notes 6 to 9) of the company are exposed to interest rate risk, the liabilities are not exposed to interest rate risk. At 31 December
2012, the amount of interest rate risk exposure to the assets of the company was 94.20% (2011: 94,48%).

As at 31 December 2012, the Delta Position calculation of exposure to interest rate risk which gives the potential gain or loss for a change in
interest rates showed that an increase of the interest rate curve by one basis point would result in a loss of CHF 29,773 (2011: gain of CHF

16,421}, within the prescribed iimit of +/- CHF 100,000.

No interest

The interest rate profile of the company at 31 December 2012: Total Variable rate Fixed rate  received/paid
CHF CHF CHF CHF

Assets

Cash, amounts due from banks, money at call 245,114,148 717,827 174,623,932 69,772,389

Accrued interest receivable and prepayments 28,438,446 - - 28,438,446

Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 2,222,411,155 578,355,512 1,644,013,158 22,485

Financial as:ets designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,037,689,774 750,181,192 287,508,582

Financial assets held to matunty

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss

8,000,000
113,918,939

8,000,000

113,918,939

Total Assets 3,655,572,457 1,325,254,531 2,114,165,672 212,152,259
Liabilities and Shareholder's funds
Amounts due to banks 78,477,985 - 78,477,985
Accrued interest payable and accrued expenses 9,181,270 - - 9,181,270
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 103,315,153 - 103,315,153
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss 3,406,598,288 - - 3,406,598,288
Share capital 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Retained earnings 56,999,766 - - 56,999,766
Total Liabilities and Shareholder's Funds 3,655,572,462 - - 3,655,572,462
No interest
The interest rate profile of the company at 31 December 2011: Total Variable rate Fixed rate  received/paid
CHF CHF CHF CHF
Assets
Cash, amounts due from banks, money at call 384,630,222 16,808 352,329,736 32,283,678
Accrued interest receivable and prepayments 37,027,427 - - 37,027,427
Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 2,591,724,998 568,746,500  2,020,504,689 2,473,809
Financial assets designated at fair vaiue through profit ar loss 820,770,029 250,035,831 570,734,198 -
Financial assets held to maturity 13,000,000 - 13,000,000 -
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or ioss 148,771,798 - - 148,771,798
Total Assets 3,995,924,474 818,799,139  2,956,568,623 220,556,712
Liabilities and Shareholder's funds
Amounts due to banks 73,639,523 - - 73,639,523
Accrued interest payable and accrued expenses 1,051,447 - - 1,051,447
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 209,122,312 - - 209,122,312
Financial liabtlities held at fair value through profit or loss 3,684,657,074 - - 3,684,657,074
Share capital 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Retained earnings 26,454,118 - - 26,454,118

Total Liabilities and Shareholder's Funds
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ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

14 Risk management and policies {continued)

14.4 b) Foreign currency risk
Definition: Foreign currency risk is the risk that the velue of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The company's foreign exchange exposure arises from the issuance of the company's products. The company does not enter into foreign
exchange transactions for speculative purposes.

31 December

2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Total CHF EUR usb NOK Others
Cash, amounts due from banks,
money at call 245,114,148 179,755,414 44,514,430 10,526,525 287,310 10,030,469
Accrued interest receivable and
prepayrments 28,438,446 28,392,953 - 22,820 - 22,675
Securities designated at fair va'ue
through profit or loss 2,222,411,155 1,173,800,084 852,299,794 81,893,756 78,250,192 36,167,329
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 1,037,689,774 983,240,372 26,595,653 13,309,896 13,357,837 1,186,016
Financial assets held to maturity 8,000,000 8,000,000 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss 113,918,939 79,134,791 27,190,079 1,327,614 5,694,598 571,857
Total Assets 3,655,572 462 2,452,323,612 950,599,956 107,080,611 97,589,937 47,978,346
100.00% 67.09% 26.00% 2.93% 2.67% 1.31%

31 December

2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Total CHF EUR usp NOK Others
Amounts due to banks 78,477,985 71,918,657 - 1,546,326 - 5,013,002
Accrued interest payable and accrued
expenses 9,181,270 720,061 8,141,027 - - 320,182
Derivative financial instruments held
at fair value through profit or foss 103,315,153 66,121,329 32,521,016 4,122,786 317,630 232,392
Financial tiabilities held at fair value
through profit or loss 3,406,598,288  2,246,732,189 926,424,660 99,684,368 84,922,359 48,834,712
Total Liabilities 3,597,572,696 2!3855492 236 967,086,703 105,353,480 85,239,989 54,400,288

100.00% 66.31% 26.88% 2.93% 2.37% 1.51%

19



fr, LY

ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE {(GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

14 Risk management and policies (continued)

14.4 b) Foreign currency risk {continued)

31 December

2011 2011 201 2011 2011 2011
Total CHF EUR usD NOK Others
Cash, amounts due from banks,
money at call 384,670,222 326,403,919 35,203,181 18,279,321 - 4,743,821
Accrued interest receivable and
prepayments 17,027,427 36,954,461 70,116 2,33 - 457
Securities designated at fair value
through profit or loss 2,591,724,998 1,320,297,706 1,045,613.760 102,391,762 75,007,638 48,414,132
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 820,770,029 735,874,952 37,034,043 32,139,913 5,512,021 10,209,100
Financial assets held to maturity 13,0000,000 13,000,000 - - - -
Derivative financ al instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss 148,771,798 103,151,990 24,684,279 13,712,330 6,727,557 495,642
Total Assets 3,995,924,474 2,535,683,030 1,142,605,359 166,525,717 87,247,216 63,863,152
100.00% 63.46% 28.59% 4.17% 2.18% 1.60%
31 December
20m 2011 2011 201 2011 2011
Total CHF EUR usD NOK Others
Amounts due to banks 73,638,523 71,512,501 361,439 - 351N 1,730,412
Accrued interest payable and accrued
expenses 1,051,447 769,665 - - - 281,782
Derivative financial instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss 209,122,312 152,327,185 44,751,818 5,157,230 542,621 1,343,458
Financial liabilities held at fair vatlue
through profit or loss 3,684,657,074 2,240,685,373 1,133,024,909 162,189,901 86,938,668 61,818,223
Total Liabilities 3,968,470,356 2,455,294,724 1,1583,138,166 167,347,131 H/,5%16,460 65,173,875
100.00% 62.12% 29.81% 4.22% 2.21% 1.64%

The following table discloses the sensitivity {(effect on the company's P&L) to a change in the EUR/CHF exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives. The
company's exposure ta foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Change in ELUR Effect on net
versus CHF rate income / equity

% CHF
2012 +- 1% +/- 1,790
2011 +-1% +/- 1,581

14.5 Internal control framework

In 2012, the company started an initiative to improve its internal contrals and its documentation. The aim of the project is the identif cation of
key risks and the documentation of cantrols to mitigate these risks. Experts from Zircher Kantonalbank assisted to ensure that the methodology

used is in accordance with the group's guidelines for internal controls.

14.6 Mitigation of risk

As part of its overall risk management, Ziircher Kantonalbank uses derivatives and other financial instruments to manage exposures resulting
fram changes in foreign currency and interest rates, credit risks and equity risks.



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012

15 Capital management
The company 15 not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and has no restrictions on the isue or repurchase of ordinary shares.
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The company’s objectives for managing capital are;
- Ta achieve consiztent returns while safeguarding capital,

- To maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the company and to meet its liabilities as they arise.

To achteve the above objectives, the company invests in term deposits with group approved banks and bonds with an appropriate credit rating

(see note 14).

Related party disclosures

The immediate and ultimate parent undertaking is Zircher Kantonalbank, a company incorporated in Switzerland.

Mr PDH Hodgson is a director of Butterfield Trust {Guernsey) Limited, who act as administrators for Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance {Guernsey)
Limited. Butterfie d Trust (Guernsey) Limited are owed GBP 150,000 (CHF 223,185) [2011: GBP 150,461 (CHF 218,655)] for services rendered.

Remuneration of key management during the year

A non-executive d'rector, and chairman of the audit committee, was paid an amount of GBP 7,000 (CHF 10,445) |2011: GBP 7,000 (CHF 10,067)]

for services rendered.

Transactions for the year

Parent
Zarcher Kantonatbank
Bank accounts held with parent company

Key management
Nan - executive director
Chief executive officer

Other related parties
Butterfield Trust {(Guernsey) Limited

Parent
Zurcher Kantonalbank
Bank accounts held with parent company

Key management
Non - executive director
Chief executive officer

Other related parties
Butterfiald Trust (Guernsey) Limited

Remuneration Income Expenses
Year ended Year ended Year ended Due to Due from
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF
45,590,261 12,952,126 720,061 .
- 78,471,984 £9,772,389
10,445 10,445
311,667 311,667
- - 889,974 223,185 -
322,112 45,590,261 14,164,212 79,421,231 69,7725389
Remuneration Income Expenses
Year ended Year ended Year ended Due to Due from
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 201N 201 2011 2011
CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF
- 13,917,680 14,554,380 769,665 14,516
- . - 73,639,523 32,283,678
10,067 - 10,067 - -
121,500 - 121,500 - -
- - 846,916 218,655 -
131,567 13,917,680 15,532,863 74,627,843 32,298,194

All related party transactions are considered to have been made an terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

Events after the statement of financial position date

There were no events after the statement of financial position date that affect the amounts reported or require disclosure.
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ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors submit their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Activities

The principal activity of Zurcher Kantonaibank Finance (Guernsey) Limited (“the company") is to
carry on business as a finance company and to borrow or raise money by the issue of financial
instruments of whatsoever nature.

Results
The results of the company are shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 3.

Dividend
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Directors
The directors of the company are those listed in the Company Information.

Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable
Guernsey Law and generally accepted accounting principles.

Guernsey Company Law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the directors should:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

So far as each of the directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
company's auditor is unaware, and each has taken all the steps he ought to have taken as a director
to make himself aware of any relevant audit information, and to establish that the company's
auditor is aware of that information.

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors will be put to the members at the Annual
General Meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board

For and on behalf of Butterfield Management Services (Guernsey) Limited
Secretary

j2 Macd 2004

Date




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited for the
year ended 31 December 2013 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related
notes 1 to 18. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 262 of the
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 1, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors;
and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, we consider the implications
for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its net
income for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Guernsey) Law,
2008 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e proper accounting records have not been kept; or
» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

é‘fus\' } jos.—m-) LL(O

Ernst & Young LLP
Guernsey, Channel Islands

Date 12 Marcl 2014



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Notes

Net trading income 4
Other operating income

Bank interest receivable

Bond interest receivable

Other operating income

Total income

Operating expenses 5

Net comprehensive income for the financial year

Year ended
31 December 2013

CHF CHF
25,645,642
400
18,673
19,073
~ 25,664,715

(13,306,598)

12,358,117

The notes on pages 7 to 22 form part of these financial statements.

Year ended
31 December 2012
Restated*
CHF CHF
47,133,418
165
28,211
28,376
47,161,794

(15,072,989)

* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 financial statements and reflect

adjustments made, refer note 18.



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2013

Notes

Assets

Cash, amounts due from banks, money at call 6
Accrued interest receivable and prepayments

Securities designated at fair value through profit or

loss 7
Financial assets designated at fair value through

profit or loss 8
Financial assets held to maturity 9

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value

through profit or loss 10, 11b

Total Assets

Liabilities

Amounts due to banks 6
Accrued interest payable and accrued expenses
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit
or oss

10, 11b
11a, 11b
Total Liabilities

Equity

Share capital 12
Retained earnings

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

31 December 2013

CHF

231,988,557
27,256,431

1,726,161,613

948,141,546
10,293,375

96,295,388

31 December 2012

Restated*
CHF

245,114,148
29,981,603

2,222,411,155

1,037,689,774
8,000,000

113,918,939

3,040,136,910

3,657,115,619

70,269,363
956,707

76,686,829

2,820,322,971

78,477,985
9,181,270

103,315,153

3,406,598,288

2,968,235,870

3,597,572,696

1,000,000 1,000,000
70,901,040 58,542,923
71,901,040 59,542,923

3,040,136,910

3,657,115,619

The financial statements on pages 3 to 21 were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2014

and are signed on its behalf by:

™~ (Y
[aamy
Gabathuler F } W Renouf
e Chairman Director

fe el 204

Date

The notes on pages 7 to 22 form part of these financial statements.

* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 financial statements and reflect
adjustments made, refer note 18.



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Share Retained Total

capital earnings Equity

CHF CHF CHF
At 1 January 2012 1,000,000 26,454,118 27,454,118
Net comprehensive income for the financial year (restated*) - 32,088,805 32,088,805
Balance at 31 December 2012 1,000,000 58,542,923 59,542,923

CHF CHF CHF
At 1 January 2013 1,000,000 58,542,923 59,542,923
Net comprehensive income for the financial year - 12,358,117 12,358,117
Balance at 31 December 2013 1,000,000 70,901,040 71,901,040

The notes on pages 7 to 22 form part of these financial statements.

* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 financial statements and reflect

adjustments made, refer note 18.



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Notes 31 December 2013

Operating activities

Net comprehensive income for the financial year

Adjustment for changes in working capital:

Accrued interest receivable and prepayments

Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held to maturity

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss

Accrued interest payable and accrued expenses

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss
Net cash outflows from operating activities
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2013

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2013 6

The notes on pages 7 to 22 form part of these financial statements.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2012

Restated*

CHF CHF
12,358,117 32,088,805
2,725,172 7,045,824
496,249,542 369,313,843
89,548,228 (216,919,745)
(2,293,375) 5,000,000
17,623,551 34,852,859
(8,224,563) 8,129,823
(26,628,324) (105,807,159)
(586,275,317) (278,058,786)
(4,916,969) (144,354,536)
166,636,163 310,990,699
161,719,194 166,636,163

* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 financial statements and reflect

adjustments made, refer note 18.



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1 Corporate information
Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited (*the company") is a finance company and borrows or raises money by the issue of financial
instruments of whatsoever nature. The company was incorporated and is registered in Guernsey with the registered office being at Regency
Court, Glategny Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 3AP.

2 Principal accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the financial
statements of the company.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation to fair value through profit or
loss of derivative financial instruments, over-the-counter (OTC) options, securities, term deposits with banks and financial liabilities and in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union.

Going concern

The Company's financial position, its cash flows and liquidity position are set out in the financial statements. In addition, notes 14 to the
financial statements include the company’s risk management and policies, details of its financial instruments, its exposures to credit risk and
liquidity risk and its objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital. Based on the review for the 2014 and 2015 financial forecast, the
Directors consider that the Company has adequate financial resources and believe that the Company is well placed to manage its business risks
successfully and to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. As such the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis.

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union.

Standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant standards and interpretations, which have not been applied,
were in issue but not yet effective:-

IFRS 7: Financial Instruments - Disclosures. Amendments resulting from the deferral of mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 and amendments to
transition disclosures, and additional hedge accounting disclosures resulting from amendments to IFRS 9. The standard was effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015, but this date has been removed (see IFRS 9). The company expects no impact from the adoption
of the amendments on its financial position or performance.

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement. The standard has been reissued to incorporate a hedge accounting chapter and
permit the early application of the requirements for presenting in other comprehensive income the '‘own credit' gains or losses on financial
liabilities designated under the fair value option without early applying the other requirements of IFRS 9. There is currently no mandatory
effective date but it will be no earlier than annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. At present no assessment has been made by
the company of the impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or performance.

IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements. The standard provides an exception to consolidation requirements for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The company expects
no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or performance.

IFRS 12: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. Amendments in relation to investment entities. The standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The company expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or

IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement. Amendments resulting from the Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle in relation to the scope of portfolio
exception. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. The company expects no impact from the adoption of
the amendments on its financial position or performance.

IAS 32: Financial Instruments - Presentation. Amendments relating to the offsetting of assets and liabilities. The standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The company expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position
or performance.

IAS 39: Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement. Amendments for novations of derivatives. The standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The company expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position
or performance.

IAS 39: Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement. Amendments to permit an entity to elect to continue to apply the hedge
accounting requirements in 1AS 39 for a fair value hedge of the interest rate exposure of a portion of a portfolio of financial assets or financial
liabilities when IFRS 9 is applied, and to extend the fair value option to certain contracts that meet the 'own use’ scope exception. The standard
is effective when IFRS 9 is applied. At present no assessment has been made by the company of the impact from the adoption of the
amendments on its financial position or performance.

There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a
significant impact on the company’s financial position or performance. The directors have adopted a policy of applying new standards and
interpretations when they become effective.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. Amendments to IFRS resulting from the following new
and amended standards and interpretations did not have any impact on the accounting policies, financial position, or performance of the
company:

JAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive income (Amendment) - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012,

IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendment) - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 11: Joint Arrangements - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 12: Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2013.

Cash and cash equivaients
Cash and cash equivalents, as referred to in the statement of cash flows, comprises of cash in hand, current accounts with banks and amounts
due from banks on demand or with an original maturity of three months or less.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

Reverse repurchase (reverse repo) agreements

The company has entered into secured reverse repurchase (reverse repo) agreements which are recognised in the statement of financial position
as financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss. The deposits are backed by collateral in the form of securities which are held
with a third party, and are not shown on the statement of financial position. This accurately refiects the financial nature of the transactions.

Foreign exchange

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Swiss francs based on the rates of exchange ruling at the statement
of financial position date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Swiss franc is the functional and presentational currency of the company, as it is of Zircher Kantonalbank, the parent company. Also, a
significant proportion of the company's transactions is done in Swiss francs.

Investment income
Investment income comprises of interest receivable on the maturity of the company's term deposits with banks. Interest income is recognised as
it accrues.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss - initial recognition, derecognition and subsequent measurement

The company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Purchases and sales of financial instruments, over-the-counter options, securities and term deposits with banks are recognised on
the trade date and are initially designated and measured at fair value through profit or loss consistent with the company's documented risk
management strategy.

Financial instruments, over-the-counter options, securities and term deposits with banks are derecognised when the maturity date or final fixing
date has expired and the rights to receive cashflows or meet obligations has passed. Gains and losses on maturity are recognised in net trading
income in the statement of comprehensive income.

The financial instruments, over-the-counter options, securities, reverse repurchase agreements and term deposits with banks are subsequently
valued according to the fair value principle. Changes in fair value are recorded in net gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss.

The accrued interest receivable and payable, prepayments and accrued expenses at the year end are valued according to the fair value principle.

Fair value of financial instruments
The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to
use fair value, but provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS. IFRS 13 defines fair value as an exit price. As a result of the
guidance in IFRS 13, the company re-assessed its policies for measuring fair values, in particular, its valuation inputs such as non-performance
risk for fair value measurement of liabilities. Application of IFRS 13 has not materially impacted the fair value measurements of the company. All
assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as
described in note 13.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company determines whether transfers have
occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. There have been no transfers between Levels during the year.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross
in the statement of financial position.

Financial assets held to maturity and bonds payable

After initial recognition at fair value plus attributable transaction costs, financial assets held to maturity and bonds payable are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
when either the assets and liabilities are derecognised or through the amortisation process.

Amortised cost is computed using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment and principal repayment or reduction.
The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of
the effective rate.

Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event' or 'events’)
which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

3 Taxation
With effect from 1 January 2008, Guernsey abolished the exempt company regime. The company is taxed at the company standard rate (0%)
from that date.
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Net trading income Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2013 2012

Restated*

CHF CHF

Investment income (restated*) 2,589,937 3,254,902
Bond interest 52,307,968 66,520,909
Withholding tax on bond interest (242,265) (141,684)
Net realised gains/(losses) on maturity of investments (35,397,146) (62,281,176)
Net gains/(losses) on foreign exchange revaluations (4,417,138) 338,034
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss 10,804,286 39,442,433

25,645,642 47,133,418

* Investment income does not correspond to the 2012 financial statements and reflects adjustments made, refer note 18.

Operating expenses Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
CHF CHF
Administration fees 766,960 889,974
Audit fees 84,149 89,118
Directors' fees 10,202 10,445
Zurcher Kantonalbank service costs:
Development costs 1,500,000 1,541,667
Product issuing costs 1,500,000 1,541,667
Distribution costs 5,821,363 6,065,398
Risk management fee 2,000,000 2,083,333
Keep-well agreement charges 658,714 720,061
IT project costs - 1,000,000
Employee expenses:
Salaries 711,350 692,167
Income tax 40,875 78,166
Social security 42,922 47,438
Health insurance 14,687 12,824
Other staff expenses 12,347 15,081
Other expenses 143,029 285,650
13,306,598 15,072,989
Cash, current accounts with banks, money at call 31 December 31 December
2013 2012
CHF CHF
Due from banks, European Union - short term deposits 161,455,400 174,623,925
Due from banks, Guernsey 665,963 717,834
Due from banks, Zurcher Kantonalbank 69,867,194 69,772,389

231,988,557 245,114,148

Due to banks, Zurcher Kantonalbank (70,269,363) (78,477,985)
(70,269,363) (78,477,985)

Total net cash, current accounts with banks, money at call 161,719,194 166,636,163

The amounts due from banks in the European Union accrue interest income at fixed market rates. The amounts due from banks in Guernsey
accrue interest income at variable market rates. The amounts due to and from Zircher Kantonalbank do not accrue interest.

Securities held for trading, designated at fair value through profit or loss 31 December 31 December
2013 2012
CHF CHF
Bonds receivable 1,761,740,119  2,223,589,751
Unrealised loss (35,578,506) (1,178,596)
At fair value 1,726,161,613  2,222,411,155
T sm T
By maturity:
Up to one year 384,501,068 554,839,543
From one to two years 538,045,289 444,078,542
From two to three years 297,282,102 535,269,610
From three to four years 198,679,716 290,312,568
From four to five years 170,647,875 171,926,436
From five years and over 137,005,563 225,984,456

1,726,161,613  2,222,411,155

The bonds receivable accrue interest income at fixed rates between 0.875% and 11.75%, and floating market rates.
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Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Term deposits due from banks, European Union
Reverse repurchase agreements, European Union

Fair value gains
At fair value

By maturity:

Up to one year

From one to two years
From two to three years
From three to four years

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
CHF CHF
247,907,390 287,272,632
700,000,000 750,000,000
234,156 417,142
948,141,546 1,037,689,774
247,856,480 537,607,995
500,109,914

200,175,152

948,141,546

300,048,411
200,033,368

1,037,689,774

All term deposits accrue interest income at fixed market rates between 0.01% and 0.65%. The reverse repurchase agreements accrue interest

income at floating market rates linked to CHF LIBOR.

Financial assets held to maturity

Bonds receivable
At fair value

By maturity:

Up to one year

From one to two years
From two to three years

All term deposits accrue interest income at fixed market rates between 1.625% and 2.375%.

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss

Over-the-counter options
Premium paid / (received)
Unrealised gain / (loss)

At fair value

Over-the-counter options
Premium paid / (received)
Unrealised gain / (loss)

At fair value

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities - structured products by underlying assets

Commodities
Equities / securities
Foreign exchange
Interest instruments
Mixed derivatives
Precious metals

Commodities
Equities / securities
Foreign exchange
Interest instruments
Mixed derivatives
Precious metals

31 December

31 December

31 December

2013 2012

CHF CHF
10,293,375 8,000,000
10,293,375 8,000,000
- 8,000,000
8,194,553 -
2,098,822 -
10,293,375 8,000,000

31 December

31 December

2013 2013 2013

Long Short  Net position

CHF CHF CHF
73,708,196 (114,610,468) (40,902,271)
22,587,191 37,923,639 60,510,830
96,295,387 (76,686,829) 19,608,559

31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2012 2012

Long Short Net position

CHF CHF CHF
145,892,326 (214,679,352) (68,787,026)
(31,973,387) 111,364,199 79,390,812
113,918,939 (103,315,153) 10,603,786

31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2013 2013

Unrealised

Cost gain / (loss) At fair value

CHF CHF CHF
11,664,974 (519,803) 12,184,777
1,898,598,028 (37,741,793) 1,936,339,821
89,882,174 4,507,227 85,374,947
662,111,115 (2,926,913) 665,038,028
62,463,664 384,805 62,078,859
69,557,538 10,251,000 59,306,538

2,794,277,493

(26,045,477)

2,820,322,971

31 December
2012

Cost
CHF

40,557,977
2,113,070,447
158,385,298
955,396,208
37,429,653
62,070,081

3,366,909,664

31 December
2012
Unrealised
gain / (loss)
CHF

298,973
(75,178,520)
7,491,741
33,786,596
1,444,975
(7,532,389)

(39,688,624)

31 December
2012

At fair value
CHF

40,259,004
2,188,248,967
150,893,557
921,609,612
35,984,678
69,602,470

3,406,598,288
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11 Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

11b Fair value by maturity

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 31 December
Up to From one year From two years From three years From four years From five years 2013
oneyear totwo years to three years to four years to five years and over Total
CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF
Positive replacement values
OTC options - long 21,476,958 47,773,657 5,400,054 8,357,745 1,994,811 11,292,163 96,295,388
Negative replacement values
Interest instruments 411,482,556 129,436,106 53,288,652 45,173,737 12,241,111 13,415,866 665,038,028
Foreign exchange 80,023,915 3,473,092 1,877,941 - - - 85,374,948
Precious metals 27,641,081 20,598,011 11,067,446 - - - 59,306,538
Equities / securities 1,152,499,660 396,490,773 320,933,783 39,551,027 10,709,146 16,155,432  1,936,339,821
Commodities 12,184,777 - - - - - 12,184,777
Mixed derivatives 4,427,862 1,876,999 3,533,659 18,409,789 16,839,995 16,990,555 62,078,859
1,688,259,851 551,874,981 390,701,481 103,134,553 39,790,252 46,561,853  2,820,322,971
OTC options - short 26,366,189 17,916,160 16,895,221 3,991,526 3,178,731 8,339,002 76,686,829
At fair value 1,714,626,040 569,791,141 407,596,702 107,126,079 42,968,983 54,900,855  2,897,009,800
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 31 December
Up to From one year From two years From three years From four years From five years 2012
one year  to two years to three years to four years to five years and over Total
CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF
Positive replacement values
OTC options - long 33,739,601 24,707,187 46,265,514 4,780,755 2,491,379 1,934,503 113,918,939
Negative replacement values
Interest instruments 489,407,537 155,213,679 164,278,432 67,659,957 4,874,606 40,175,402 921,609,613
Foreign exchange 69,113,802 76,582,118 2,175,956 3,021,680 - - 150,893,556
Precious metals 35,777,699 20,256,859 13,567,913 - - - 69,602,471
Equities / securities 708,569,701 752,911,048 412,588,544 179,165,015 50,145,093 84,869,565 2,188,248,966
Commodities 29,794,050 10,464,954 - - - - 40,259,004
Mixed derivatives 185,028 3,531,751 658,539 2,874,290 28,148,648 586,422 35,984,678
1,332,847,817 1,018,960,409 593,269,384 252,720,942 83,168,347 125,631,389  3,406,598,288
OTC options - short 29,008,153 24,376,026 21,496,508 6,235,433 5,713,030 16,486,003 103,315,153
At fair value 1.361,855,970 _1,043,336,435 614,765,892 258,956,375 88,881,377 142,117,392 3,509,913,441

All contracts are with Zircher Kantonalbank (see note 16).

1"
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12 Share capital 31 December 31 December
2013 2012
CHF CHF

Authorised:
1,000 Ordinary shares of CHF1,000 each 1,000,000 1,000,000

13

Allotted, called up and fully paid:
1,000 Ordinary shares of CHF1,000 each 1,000,000 1,000,000

Fair value of financial instruments

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

- Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Fair value of financial instruments at 31 December 2013: Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
CHF CHF CHF CHF

Assets

Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,726,161,613  1,726,161,613 - -

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 948,141,546 - 948,141,546 -

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 96,295,388 - 96,295,388 -

Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss (76,686,829) - (76,686,829) -

Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss (2,820,322,971) - (2,820,322,971) -

Fair value of financial instruments at 31 December 2012: Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
CHF CHF CHF CHF

Assets

Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 2,222,411,155  2,222,411,155 - -

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,037,689,774 - 1,037,689,774 -

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 113,918,939 - 113,918,939 -

Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss (103,315,153) - (103,315,153) -

Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss (3,406,598,288) - (3,406,598,288) -

The fair values of securities are based on market prices which are available in active markets. The fair value of such securities is included within
Level 1.

The fair values of term deposits with banks are calculated using a bank discount rate on an interest curve interpolated from market data. The
fair value of such term deposits with banks is included within Level 2.

The fair values of over-the-counter options are calculated using an option pricing model based on direct market data, e.g., bond or share prices,
and indirect market data, e.g., interest, implied volatility and dividend estimates. The fair value of such over-the-counter options is included
within Level 2.

The fair values of interest rate swaps are calculated using a bank discount rate on an interest curve interpolated from market data. The fair
value of such interest rate swaps is included within Level 2.

The fair values of structured products, which are set up as combinations of the components of the respective structured product, are calculated
based on the sum of the valuations of its components. As the fair values of the components of the structured products are either Level 1
(securities) or Level 2 (term deposits with banks, over-the-counter options and interest rate swaps), the fair value of such structured products is
included within Level 2.
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14 Risk management and policies
The company's financial products comprise of term deposits, money market assets, securities, options and various types of derivative
instruments, cash and liquid resources and various other items that arise directly from its operations.

14.1 Risk management framework

The directors have included information in the notes to the financial statements which discloses the market risk sensitivity analysis which is
performed by the parent company Zarcher Kantonalbank, and is appropriate to the nature of the company's business and the market risks to
which it is subject, in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 7. The company's directors and the company’s management use sensitivity
analysis as described in note 14 of this report to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments.

The main risks arising from the company's financial products are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The directors reguiarly review and
agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. The risk management guidelines for the company set out
guidelines for identifying, managing and monitoring default, liquidity and market risks to which the company is exposed.

In particular, the document:

i) defines the rules and procedures for managing default, liquidity and market risks;

i) sets out the applicable long-term risk policies of the company and Zircher Kantonalbank;

iii) defines the entity to which duties and responsibilities in relation to risk management are assigned;
iv) defines the entity to which duties and responsibilities in relation to risk monitoring are assigned;
v) provides an overview of relevant powers and responsibilities.

The general guidelines are:

i) Default, liquidity and market risks shall be managed in accordance with the rules and policies laid down in the Guidelines on Risk
Management at Zurcher Kantonalbank, and Group risk policies.

ii) Subject to the constraints of the applicable Group risk policies, the company shall define appropriate limits with a view to mitigating default
and market risks.

iii) Zircher Kantonalbank shall be responsible for managing risks subject to approved limits.

iv) Zircher Kantonalbank shall be responsible for quantifying risk, preparing reports on risk monitoring conducted, and reporting on risks.

v) The directors of the company shall be entitled to limit the level of risk exposure and the list of approved products at any time.

The management of risks within the limits in sections 14.1 a), b), ¢), and d), has been delegated to Zircher Kantonalbank.

With regard to risk monitoring, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the company is responsible for:

i) monitoring liquidity and solvency of the company and informing the directors of any issues arising or exceptional events;
ii) monitoring adherence to risk limits and informing the directors in the event of a limit breach;

iii) defining actions to be taken in case of limit breaches;

iv) informing the directors of actions defined; and

v) documenting limits, limit breaches and actions defined.

Risk measurement, preparation of risk monitoring reports and risk reporting have been delegated to Zircher Kantonalbank. To ensure a
constant monitoring of risk by the company's management, a risk report is prepared by Zurcher Kantonalbank on a daily basis and is sent to the
management of the company.

One of the major changes made in 2011 was the replacement of the Value-at-Risk methodology, with sensitivity limits, volume limits, credit
spread limits and loss limits as described in the risk management guidelines. The following sections detail the limit types, methods used for
exposure calculation and exposures as per year end.

14.1 a) Sensitivity limits ("Delta limits")
The directors of the company define sensitivity limits for interest rate, foreign currency and default risks, which are calculated on a daily or
weekly basis.

Interest rate sensitivity limit per basis point (Rho exposure)

An interest rate sensitivity limit of +/- CHF 100,000 means that the current Rho exposure must not exceed CHF 100,000 per basis point. Rho is the

derivative of the option value with respect to the risk free interest rate for the relevant outstanding term, and is expressed as the amount of

money, per share of the underlying, that the value of the option will gain or lose as the risk free interest rate rises or falls by one basis point.
Limit Limit status  Value 31.12.13  Value 31.12.12

Additional information on interest rate risk: table 14.4 a) +/- CHF 100,000 ok (12,171) (29,773)

Foreign exchange sensitivity limit per CHF 0.01
The foreign exchange sensitivity limit of +/- CHF 1,000,000 means that the effect of our foreign exchange exposure must not cause a profit or
loss of greater than CHF 1,000,000. The calculation of foreign exchange sensitivity is performed by Zircher Kantonalbank (Risk Control
Department). The amount disclosed means the effect on profit or loss when the Swiss Franc FX-rates move by 1%.

Limit Limit status  Value 31.12.13  Value 31.12.12

Additional information on foreign exchange rate risk: table 14.4 b) +/- CHF 1,000,000 ok 170 1,790

Default risk sensitivity limits: Credit risk money markets

Credit risk money markets refates to the daily change of synthetic portfolio hedging, i.e. a portfolio of credit default swaps (CDS) with reference
to named money market counterparties. The sensitivity limit defines the maximum profit and loss daily change limit permitted on the
theoretical hedging costs on the Guernsey Risk Manager portfolio.

The credit risk money markets limit of +/- CHF 1,000,000 means that the current credit delta exposure on money market investments must not
exceed CHF 1,000,000 per credit point.

Limit Limit status  Value 31.12.13  Value 31.12.12
Additional information on money market exposure: table 14.2 ¢) +/- CHF 1,000,000 ok (111,000) (244,000)
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14 Risk management and policies (continued)
14.1 a) Sensitivity limits ("Delta limits") (continued)

Default risk sensitivity limits: Credit risk others

Credit risk others refer to bonds and reverse repurchase agreements, and is related to daily changes of the Z-Spread. The sensitivity limit defines
the maximum profit and loss daily change limit permitted on the theoretical hedging costs on the Guernsey Risk Manager portfolio.

The credit risk others limit of +/- CHF 5,000,000 means that the current credit deita exposure on bonds and reverse repurchase agreements must
not exceed CHF 5,000,000 per credit point.

Limit Limitstatus  Value 31.12.13  Value 31.12.12
Additional information on the company's exposure: tables 14.2 d) +/- CHF 5,000,000 ok 272,380 366,514

14.1 b) Entity volume limits for funds invested with third parties
The directors define maximum volumes for each counterparty with a view to mitigating the risk of defauit on investments with third parties
{money market investments and reverse repurchase agreements). The directors may lower the limits defined for the company at any time.

Exposure of term deposits and money market assets with corresponding counterparty limits are disclosed in table 14.2 ¢).

14.1 ¢) Entity volume limits and counterparty limit monitoring for securities investments
The directors have defined minimum credit ratings and maximum permitted volumes per issuer for each rating category with a view to
mitigating the default risk associated with securities (bonds, Pfandbriefe, etc).

Volume limits per counterparty must not exceed Group policy. Counterparty volume limits for securities investments are:

Limit CHF Limit Status
Total Limit 1,500,000,000 ok
Counterparty Limits AAA 100,000,000 ok
Counterparty Limits AA 50,000,000 ok
Counterparty Limits A 30,000,000 ok
Counterparty Limits BBB or lower - ok

Additional information on the company's exposure: table 14.2 d) i)

14.1 d) Credit spread limit (DV01) and loss limit
The directors have defined the maximum credit spread sensitivity (DV01) per issuer with a view to mitigating the credit risk associated with
securities and a maximum daily loss limit. DVO1 is the sensitivity of a contract to a 1 basis point fluctuation in the credit spread curve.

The DV01 limit is CHF 35,000 per issuer. At 31 December 2013, the potential loss per issuer was within the prescribed limit.

The maximum daily loss limit is CHF 5,000,000. At 31 December 2013 the potential daily loss was CHF 272,380 (2012: 366,514), and within the
prescribed limit.

14.2 Credit risk

Definition: Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment that it has entered into with the
company.

Zircher Kantonalbank manages counterparty credit risk at a group level to optimise the use of credit availability and to avoid excessive risk
concentration. The company's policy is that all credit facilities are entered into with group approved banks with an appropriate credit rating.
The Standard & Poor’s long term deposits ratings at 31 December 2013 are shown in the note below.

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the company, which comprise of term deposits, money market assets, reverse
repurchase agreements, securities, debtors and various types of derivative instruments, the company's exposure to credit risk arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

The company's management team and directors receive regular reports on any credit exposure.

14.2 a) Financial assets held to maturity

Value at 31
As at 31 December 2013: December 2013 Rating %
Bonds receivable 8,210,803 AAA 79.77%
Bonds receivable 2,082,572 AA 20.23%
Total 10,293,375 100.00%
Value at 31
As at 31 December 2012: December 2012 Rating %
Bonds receivable 8,000,000 AAA 100.00%

Total 8,000,000 100.00%

14.2 b) Reverse repurchase (reverse repo) agreements
The company has entered into secured reverse repurchase (reverse repo) agreements. The securities held as collateral are held by a third party

agent.
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
CHF CHF
Book value of cash collateral due for securities borrowed in connection with reverse repurchase agreements 700,000,000 750,000,000
Fair value gains 285,066 181,192
At fair value 700,285,066 750,181,192

Fair value of securities with unrestricted right to resell or repledge, held by third parties as coliateral in
connection with reverse repurchase agreements 769,823,924 818,035,712

769,823,924 818,035,712
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ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

14 Risk management and policies (continued)

14.2 ¢) Term deposits and money market assets
Total internal

Deposits at 31

As at 31 December 2013: limit December 2013
Term deposits - -
Term deposits 200,000,000 -
Term deposits 1,290,000,000 314,362,790
Term deposits 115,000,000 95,000,000
Total 1,605,000,000 409,362,790

Total internal  Deposits at 31
As at 31 December 2012: limit December 2012
Term deposits - -
Term deposits 350,000,000 -
Term deposits 1,350,000,000 326,906,332
Term deposits 165,000,000 134,990,225
Total 1,865,000,000 461,896,557

Rating

%

0.00%
0.00%
76.79%
23.21%

100.00%

%

0.00%
0.00%
70.77%
29.23%

100.00%

If the limit for a counterparty is amended by resolution of the directors, and the counterparty usage is higher than the new limit at that time,
the company brings their exposure to that counterparty within the new limit in due course, by not renewing term deposits with that

counterparty upon their maturity.

14.2 d) i) Securities held for trading - Guernsey Risk Management

As at 31 December 2013:

Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable

Total

As at 31 December 2012:

Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable

Total

14.2 d} ii) Securities held for trading - as direct hedging instruments

As at 31 December 2013:

Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable

Total

As at 31 December 2012:

Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Bonds receivable
Stocks held

Total

Value at 31
December 2013

821,842,341
81,384,875
27,620,432

197,870,524
38,067,899

1,166,786,071

Value at 31
December 2012

1,212,871,059
30,025,750
48,760,275
63,723,490
10,307,500

1,365,688,074

Value at 31
December 2013

46,064,144
63,370,224
192,691,601
153,912,143
50,755,639
42,574,518
10,007,274

559,375,543

Value at 31
December 2012

166,119,058
164,412,343
333,483,651
140,849,316
40,288,869
4,327,183
1,060,209
6,159,999
22,453

856,723,081

Rating

AAA
AA
A
BBB
BB
B
No rating

Rating

AAA
AA
A
BBB
BB
B
ccc
No rating
No rating

The securities listed above are held as direct hedging instruments and are not subject to the limits outlined in 14.1 ¢).
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%

70.44%
6.97%
2.37%

16.96%
3.26%

100.00%

%

88.81%
2.20%
3.57%
4.67%
0.75%

100.00%

%

8.23%
11.33%
34.45%
27.52%

9.07%

7.61%

1.79%

100.00%

%

19.39%
19.19%
38.93%
16.44%
4.70%
0.51%
0.12%
0.72%
0.00%

100.00%



ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

14 Risk management and policies (continued)

14.3 Liquidity risk

Definition: Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in realising assets or otherwise raising funds to meet
commitments.

The policy throughout the year has been to ensure liquidity by maintaining at all times sufficient cash deposits. The company’s liquidity risk is
constantly monitored as an important part of the risk management process. For short term liquidity management, cash inflows and outflows are
forecasted and monitored in detail for each of the upcoming 40 working days for each currency. This daily analysis is complemented by a long
term liquidity analysis (forecast on 3 months basis).

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 31 December
Upto Fromoneyear From two years From three years From four years From five years 2013
one year to two years  to three years to four years to five years and over Total
CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF
Assets

Cash, amounts due
from banks, money
at call 231,988,557 - - - - - 231,988,557

Accrued interest
receivable and
prepayments 27,256,431 - - - - - 27,256,431

Securities

designated at fair

value through profit

or loss 384,501,068 538,045,289 297,282,102 198,679,716 170,647,875 137,005,563 1,726,161,613

Financial assets

designated at fair

value through profit

or foss 247,856,480 500,109,914 200,175,152 - - - 948,141,546

Financial assets held
to maturity - 8,194,553 2,098,822 - - - 10,293,375

Derivative financial

instruments held at

fair value through

profit or loss 21,476,958 47,773,657 5,400,054 8,357,745 1,994,811 11,292,163 96,295,388

Liabilities

Amounts due to
banks (70,269,363) - - - - - (70,269,363)

Accrued interest
payable and
accrued expenses (956,707) - - - - - (956,707)

Derivative financial

instruments held at

fair value through

profit or loss (26,366,189) (17,916,160) (16,895,221) (3,991,526) (3,178,731) (8,339,002) (76,686,829)

Financial liabilities

held at fair value

through profit or

loss (1,688,259,850) (551,874,981) (390,701,481) (103,134,553) (39,790,253) (46,561,853) (2,820,322,971)

Net Liquidity (872,772,615) 524,332,272 97,359,428 99,911,382 129,673,702 93,396,871 71,901,040

The contractual liabilities of the company at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

Financial liabilities

held at fair value

through profit or

loss (1,610,455,271) (573,445,718) (387,262,341) (110,163,945) (42,917,851) (47,756,243) (2,772,001,369)

The liquidity risk profile shows a net deficit in the period up to one year. However, the bond portfolio is considered to be held for trading, and
while bonds are classified according to their final maturity date, the portfolio is sufficiently liquid that the bonds could be sold at any time to
meet liquidity requirements.
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ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013

14 Risk management and policies (continued)
14.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

Assets

Cash, amounts due
from banks, money
at call

Accrued interest
receivable and
prepayments
(restated*)

Securities
designated at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets
designated at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets held
to maturity

Derivative financial
instruments held at
fair value through
profit or loss

Liabilities

Amounts due to
banks

Accrued interest
payable and
accrued expenses

Derivative financial
instruments held at
fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities
held at fair value
through profit or
loss

Net Liquidity

The contractual liabilities of the company at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

Financial liabilities
held at fair value
through profit or
loss

2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 31 December
Upto From oneyear From two years From three years From four years From five years 2012
one year to two years  to three years to four years to five years and over Total
CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF
245,114,148 - - - - - 245,114,148
29,981,603 - - - - - 29,981,603
554,839,543 444,078,542 535,269,610 290,312,568 171,926,436 225,984,456  2,222,411,155
537,607,995 - 300,048,411 200,033,368 - - 1,037,689,774
8,000,000 - - - - - 8,000,000
33,739,601 24,707,187 46,265,514 4,780,755 2,491,379 1,934,503 113,918,939
(78,477,985) - - - - - (78,477,985)
(9,181,270) - - - - - (9,181,270)
(29,008,153) (24,376,026) (21,496,508) (6,235,433) (5,713,030) (16,486,003) (103,315,153)
(1,332,847,817) (1,018,960,410) (593,269,384) (252,720,941) (83,168,347) (125,631,389) (3,406,598,288)
(40,232,335) (574,550,707) 266,817,643 236,170,317 85,536,438 85,801,567 59,542,923

(1,243,876,827)

(962,933,135)

(567,328,575)

(245,663,946)

(66,779,224)

(56,958,531) _ (3,143,540,238)

* Accrued interest receivable and prepayments do not correspond to the 2012 financial statements and reflects adjustments made, refer note 18.
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ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

14 Risk management and policies (continued)

14.4 Market risk

Definition: Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
variables such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates, and sensitivity to changes in market pricing.

As in previous years, the company's exposure to changes in market pricing is limited, as all fair value adjustments on the individual instruments
which comprise of each of the company's products will reverse on the maturity of that product.

14.4 a) Interest rate risk

Definition: Exposure to interest rate risk is the risk that arises when there is an imbalance between rate and non-rate sensitive assets and
liabilities.

The assets (see notes 6 to 9) of the company are exposed to interest rate risk, the liabilities are not exposed to interest rate risk. At 31 December
2013, the amount of interest rate risk exposure to the assets of the company was 93.74% (2012: 94.20%).

As at 31 December 2013, the Delta Position calculation of exposure to interest rate risk which gives the potential gain or loss for a change in
interest rates showed that an increase of the interest rate curve by one basis point would result in a loss of CHF 12,171 (2012: loss of CHF 29,773),

within the prescribed limit of +/- CHF 100,000.

The interest rate profile of the company at 31 December 2013: Total Variable rate Fixed rate rec':?v;r:/e;:is;
CHF CHF CHF CHF
Assets
Cash, amounts due from banks, money at call 231,988,557 665,963 161,455,400 69,867,194
Accrued interest receivable and prepayments 27,256,431 3,152,034 - 24,104,397
Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,726,161,613 327,403,906 1,398,757,707 -
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 948,141,546 700,285,066 247,856,480 -
Financial assets held to maturity 10,293,375 - 10,293,375 -
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or foss 96,295,388 - - 96,295,388
Total Assets 3,040,136,910 1,031,506,969 1,818,362,962 190,266,979
Liabilities and Shareholder's funds
Amounts due to banks 70,269,363 - - 70,269,363
Accrued interest payable and accrued expenses 956,707 - - 956,707
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 76,686,829 - - 76,686,829
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss 2,820,322,971 - - 2,820,322,971
Share capital 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Retained earnings 70,901,040 - - 70,901,040
Total Liabilities and Shareholder's Funds 3,040,136,910 - - 3,040,136,910
No interest
The interest rate profile of the company at 31 December 2012: Total Variable rate Fixed rate received/paid
CHF CHF CHF CHF
Assets
Cash, amounts due from banks, money at call 245,114,148 717,827 174,623,932 69,772,389
Accrued interest receivable and prepayments (restated*) 29,981,603 1,543,157 - 28,438,446
Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 2,222,411,155 578,355,512 1,644,033,158 22,485
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,037,689,774 750,181,192 287,508,582 -
Financial assets held to maturity 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 -
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 113,918,939 - - 113,918,939

Total Assets
Liabilities and Shareholder's funds

3,657,115,619

1,330,797,688

2,114,165,672

212,152,259

Amounts due to banks 78,477,985 - - 78,477,985
Accrued interest payable and accrued expenses 9,181,270 - - 9,181,270
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 103,315,153 - - 103,315,153
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss 3,406,598,288 - - 3,406,598,288
Share capital 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Retained earnings (restated*) 58,542,923 - - 58,542,923

Total Liabilities and Shareholder's Funds

* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 financial statements and reflect adjustments made, refer note 18.
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ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

14 Risk management and policies (continued)

14.4 b) Foreign currency risk

Definition: Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange

rates.

The company's foreign exchange exposure arises from the issuance of the company's products. The company does not enter into foreign
exchange transactions for speculative purposes.

31 December
2013

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
Total CHF EUR usop NOK Others
Cash, amounts due from banks,
money at call 231,988,557 193,892,086 36,455,461 - 165,322 1,475,688
Accrued interest receivable and
prepayments 27,256,431 10,214,627 14,125,044 342,145 1,109,919 1,464,696
Securities designated at fair value
through profit or loss 1,726,161,613 799,349,670 752,917,836 48,566,677 61,728,110 63,599,320
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 948,141,546 915,443,049 20,892,398 - - 11,806,099
Financial assets held to maturity 10,293,375 10,293,375 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss 96,295,388 68,117,505 19,640,696 1,752,496 4,524,377 2,260,314
Total Assets 3,040,136,910 1,997,310,312 844,031,435 50,661,318 67,527,728 80,606,117
100.00% 65.70% 27.76% 1.67% 2.22% 2.65%
31 December
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
Total CHF EUR usbD NOK Others
Amounts due to banks 70,269,363 50,559,618 11,201,333 5,110,692 - 3,397,720
Accrued interest payable and accrued
expenses 956,707 680,160 - - - 276,547
Derivative financial instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss 76,686,829 50,791,704 21,483,495 3,674,228 409,458 327,944
Financial liabilities held at fair value
through profit or loss 2,820,322,971 1,948,323,887 736,069,470 37,282,381 62,030,613 36,616,620
Total Liabilities 2,968,235,870 2,050,355,369 768,754,298 46,067,301 62,440,071 40,618,831
100.00% 69.08% 25.90% 1.55% 2.10% 1.37%




ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

14 Risk management and policies (continued)

14.4 b) Foreign currency risk (continued)

2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Total CHF EUR usD NOK Others
Cash, amounts due from banks,
money at call 245,114,148 179,755,414 44,514,430 10,526,525 287,310 10,030,469
Accrued interest receivable and
prepayments (restated*) 29,981,603 29,936,108 - 22,820 - 22,675
Securities designated at fair value
through profit or foss 2,222,411,155 1,173,800,084 852,299,794 81,893,756 78,250,192 36,167,329
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 1,037,689,774 983,240,372 26,595,653 13,309,896 13,357,837 1,186,016
Financial assets held to maturity 8,000,000 8,000,000 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss 113,918,939 79,134,791 27,190,079 1,327,614 5,694,598 571,857
Total Assets 3,657,115,619 2,453,866,769 950,599,956 107,080,611 97,589,937 47,978,346
100.00% 67.10% 25.99% 2.93% 2.67% 1.31%
31 December
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Total CHF EUR usbD NOK Others
Amounts due to banks 78,477,985 71,918,657 - 1,546,326 - 5,013,002
Accrued interest payable and accrued
expenses 9,181,270 720,061 8,141,027 - - 320,182
Derivative financial instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss 103,315,153 66,121,329 32,521,016 4,122,786 317,630 232,392
Financial liabilities held at fair value
through profit or loss 3,406,598,288 2,246,732,189 926,424,660 99,684,368 84,922,359 48,834,712
Total Liabilities 3,597,572,696 2,385,492,236 967,086,703 105,353,480 85,239,989 54,400,288
100.00% 66.31% 26.88% 2.93% 2.37% 1.51%

31 December

* Accrued interest receivable and prepayments do not correspond to the 2012 financial statements and reflects adjustments made, refer note 18.

The following table discloses the sensitivity (effect on the company's P&L) to a change in the EUR/CHF exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives. The
company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Change in EUR
versus CHF rate

Effect on net
income / equity

% CHF
2013 +-1% +/-170
2012 +- 1% +/- 1,790

14.5 internal control framework

The company's internal controls which were revised in 2012 according to the methodology applied at group level were further improved in 2013
with a special focus on accounting controls due to the introduction of a new accounting system. Furthermore, a standardised reporting to the

parent company was introduced.

14.6 Mitigation of risk

As part of its overall risk management, Zurcher Kantonalbank uses derivatives and other financial instruments to manage exposures resulting
from changes in foreign currency and interest rates, credit risks and equity risks.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

15 Capital management
The company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and has no restrictions on the issue or repurchase of ordinary shares.

16
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The company's objectives for managing capital are:
- To achieve consistent returns while safeguarding capital.

- To maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the company and to meet its liabilities as they arise.

To achieve the above objectives, the company invests in term deposits with group approved banks and bonds with an appropriate credit rating

(see note 14).

Related party disclosures

The immediate and ultimate parent undertaking is Zircher Kantonalbank, a company incorporated in Switzerland.

Mr PDH Hodgson is a director of Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, who act as administrators for Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey)
Limited. Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited are owed GBP 125,000 (CHF 185,028) [2012: GBP 150,000 (CHF 223,185)] for services rendered.

Remuneration of key management during the year

A non-executive director, and chairman of the audit committee, was paid an amount of GBP 7,000 (CHF 10,202} [2012: GBP 7,000 (CHF 10,445)]

for services rendered.

Transactions for the year

Parent
Ziarcher Kantonalbank
Bank accounts held with parent company

Key management
Non - executive director
Chief executive officer

Other related parties
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited

Parent
Zurcher Kantonalbank
Bank accounts held with parent company

Key management
Non - executive director
Chief executive officer

Other related parties
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited

Remuneration Income Expenses

Year ended Year ended Year ended Due to Due from
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF

- 25,645,642 11,480,077 658,714 -

- - - 70,269,363 69,867,194

10,202 - 10,202 - -

354,500 - 354,500 - -

- - 766,960 185,028 -

364,702 25,645,642 12,611,739 71,113,105 69,867,194

Remuneration Income Expenses
Year ended Year ended Year ended Due to Due from
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Restated*

CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF

47,133,418 12,952,126 720,061 -

- - 78,477,985 69,772,389

10,445 - 10,445
311,667 - 311,667
- 889,974 223,185
322,112 47,133,418 14,164,212 79,421,231 69,772,389

All related party transactions are considered to have been made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 financial statements and reflect adjustments made, refer note 18.

Events after the statement of financial position date

There were no events after the statement of financial position date that affect the amounts reported or require disclosure.
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ZURCHER KANTONALBANK FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

18 Prior year adjustment
Interest income on reverse repurchase transactions of CHF 1,543,157 for the year ended 31 December 2012 was not recorded in the financial
statements as at 31 December 2012. The error has been corrected retrospectively and the comparative figures have been appropriately restated.

The impact of the restatement is shown below:

2012 Previously reported Adjustment Restated
CHF CHF CHF
Effect on the statement of comprehensive income
Net trading income 45,590,261 1,543,157 47,133,418
of which: Investment income 1,711,745 1,543,157 3,254,902
Total income 45,618,637 1,543,157 47,161,794
Net comprehensive income for the financial year 30,545,648 1,543,157 32,088,805
Effect on the statement of financial position
Accrued interest receivable and prepayments 28,438,446 1,543,157 29,981,603
Total assets 3,655,572,462 1,543,157  3,657,115,619
Retained earnings 56,999,766 1,543,157 58,542,923
Total equity 57,999,766 1,543,157 59,542,923
Total liabilities and equity 3,655,572,462 1,543,157 3,657,115,619
Effect on the statement of changes in equity
Net comprehensive income for the financial year 30,545,648 1,543,157 32,088,805
Total equity 57,999,766 1,543,157 59,542,923
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Ziircher
Kantonalbank

KEEP-WELL AGREEMENT

Agreement dated: May 31, 2010 (this Agresment shall entirely replace the previous
Agreement dated as of May 2, 2001) between Zircher Kantonalbank {the Parent) and
Ziircher Kantonalbank Finance {Guernsey) Limited (the Subsidiary).

WHEREAS the Parent owns directly dll the capital stock of the Subsidiary and

WHEREAS the Subsidiary plans to incur indebtedness, liabilities and obligations to
third parties from time fo fime for interest rate and currency swap fransactions as well
as for other financial transactions including but not limited to structured produats such
as ,RUNNERs” and “PROTEINs” and others (all such forms of indebtedness, fiabilities
and obligations being herein referred to as ,Debt*).

NOW, THEREFORE the Subsidiary and the Parent agree as follows:

1. Stock ownershi s Subsidiary. As long as there is any Debt outstanding, the
Parent shall direcily or indirectly own and hold the legal title to and beneficial
interest in all the outstanding shares of stock of the Subsidiary having the right to
vote for the election of members of the Board of Directors of the Subsidiary and will
not directly or indirectly pledge or in any other way encumber or otherwise dispose

* of any such shares of stock, unless required to dispose of any or dll such shares of
stock pursuant fo a court decree or order of any governmental authority which, in

. the opinion of counsel fo the Subsidiary, may not be successfully challenged.

2. Mainteriance of a liguidity reserve designated for fulfillment of payment obligations
on Debt jssued under any law other than German law. The Parent agrees that it

shall cause the Subsidiary fo maintain o liquidity reserve designated for payment
obligations on Debt issued under any law other than German law of ot least CHF
1°000'000.00 (Swiss Francs one million) or its equivalent in another currency, at all
times. If the Subsidiary at any time will run short of cash or other liquid assets fo
meet any payment obligation on its Debt issued under any law other than German
law then or subsequently to mature and shall have insufficient unused commitments
then the Subsidiary will promptly notify the Parent of the shortfall and the Parent will
make available to the Subsidiary, before the due date of any such payment

~ obligation, funds sufficient to enable it fo fulfil any such payment obligation in full as
it falls due. The Subsidiary will use the funds made available fo it by the Parent
solely for the payment at maturity of its Debt issuance under any law other than
German law., :
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3. Waiver. The Parent hereby waives any failure or delay on the part of the Subsidiary
in asserting or enforcing any of its rights or in making any claims or demands
hersunder.

4. Not g guarantee. This agreement is not, and nothing herein contained and nothing

done pursuant hereto by the Parent shall be desmed to constitute a guaranies,
direct or indirect, by the Parent of any Debt or other obligation arising out of a
swap or other transaction, indebtedness or liability, of any kind or character
whaisoever, of the Subsidiary.
The Subsidiary has undertaken that, whenever if incurs any Debt, it will in advance
in the documentation for the borrowing directed to noteholders or other lenders
properly refer to this agreement and in particular include information substantially in
accordance with Schedule | herefo.

5. Modiffication _amendment or _termination. This Agreement may be modified,
amended or terminated only by the written agreement of the Parent and the
Subsidiary, provided, however, that no such modification, amendment or
termination shall have any adverse effect upon any holder of any Debt of the
Subsidiary outstanding at the time of such modification, amendment or fermination.
The Parent and the Subsidiary agree that they shall give writien notice fo each
statistical rating agency that has issued a rating in respect of the Subsidiary or any
of its obligations, at least 30 days prior to making any modification, amendment or
termination of this Agreement.

6. Banksuptey, liquidation or moratorium. Any rights and obligations which either of

_the parties has under this Agreement will remain valid and binding notwithstanding
any bankruptey or liquidation of, or moratorium involving, the Subsidiary.

7. Successors. The agreements herein set forth shall be mutually binding upon, and
inure to the mutual benefit of, the Parent and the Subsidiary and their respective
successors.

8. Governing law. This agresment shall be gaverned by the laws of Swiizerland.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be
executed and delivered by their respective officers theraunto duly authorised as of the
day and year first above written,

Ziircher Kantonalbank .
U/\ t

Dr. Philipp Halbherr Christoph Theler
Head Invesiment Banking Deputy Head Investment Banking
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Schedule |
General

The Subsidiary is directly wholly owned Subsidiary of the Parent.

Kg@gﬂgli Agreement

The Subsidiary and the Parent have entered into o keep-well agreement dated as of
May 31, 2010 fthe ,KeepWell Agresment’} and governed by the laws of
Swiizerland. The following is a summary of certain of the ferms of the Keep-Well
Agreement, a copy of which is available for inspection in connection the prospectus of
any issved struciured products and/or Debt.

(i} The Parent will own, directly or indirectly, oll the outstanding capital stock of the
Subsidiary so long as the Subsidiary has any indebtedness, liabilities or obligations
for interest raie or currency swap transactions or for other financial fransoctions
enfered into by the Subsidiary with parties other than the Parent (all such forms of
indebfedness, liabilities and obligations being herein referred to as ,Debt”).

(ii} The Parent agrees that it shall cause the Subsidiary to maintain a liquidity reserve
designated for payment obligations on. Debt issued under any law other than

German law of af least CHF 1'000°000.00 [Swiss Francs one million) or its

equivalent in another currency, at all fimes.

{iii} If the Subsidiary at any time will run short of cash or other liquid assets fo meet any
payment obligation on its Debt issued under any law other than German law then
or subsequently to mature and shall have insufficient unused commitments then the
Subsidiary will promptly notify the Parent of the shortfall and the Parent will make
available to the Subsidiary, before the due date of any such payment obligation,
funds sufficient to enable it to fulfil any such payment obligation in full as it falls due.
The Subsidiary will use the funds made available to it by the Parent solely for the
payment af maturity of its Debt issuance under any law other than German law.

The Keep-Well Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended or terminaied
by the written agreement of the Parent and the Subsidiary at any time, provided,
however, that no such modification, amendment of termination shall have any adverse
effect upon any holder of any Debt of the Subsidiary outstanding at the time of such
modification, amendment or termination.

The Parent and the Subsidiary have agreed that they shall give written nofice fo each
statistical rating agency that has issued a rating in respect of the Subsidiary or any of
ifs obligations, af least 30 days prior fo making any modification, amendment of
termination of the Keep-Well Agreement.
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The Keep-Well Agresment is not a guarantee by the Parent of the payment of any
indebtedness, liability or obligation of the Subsidiary. Holders of notes or other Debt
are not parties fo the Keep-Well Agreement. The only parties to the Keep-Well
Agreement are the Subsidiary and the Parent. Consequently, the Keep-Well Agreement
does not confer fo any note holders or holders of other Debt any rights or claims
against the Parent. The Keep-Well Agreement will not be enforceable against the
Parent. The Keep-Well Agresment will not be enforceable against the Parent by
anyone other than the Subsidiary {and/or its liquidator or administrator in the event of
bankruptey or, as the case may be, moraforium]. In the event of a breach by the
Parent in performing a provision of the Keep-Well Agreement and of the insolvency of
the Subsidiary while any notes or other Debt were outstanding, the remedies of nofe
holders or holders of other Debt could include the acceleration of the Debt (if it has not
already matured) and {if the Debt remained unpaid and unless such a praceeding had
already been commenced by another crediter of the Subsidiary) the filing as a credifor
of the Subsidiary of a petition for the winding-up of the Subsidiary, with a view to the
liquidator {appointed by the competent court) pursuing the Subsidiary’s rights under
the Keep-Well Agreement against the Parent. The granting of a winding-up order
would be in the discretion of the court and might be delayed by the grant of a
moratorium order, in which event the Subsidiary’s rights against the Parent would be
exercisable by the courtappointed administrator and the managing directors of the
Subsidiary jointly.

Financial and other information concerning the Parent is provided for background
purposes only in view of the importance to the Subsidiary of the Keep-Well Agreement:
it should not be treated as implying that the Keep-Well Agreement can be viewed as a
guarantese. : :

[fooaso04
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THIS IS A NON-BINDING ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF THE ISSUERS’ “EMISSIONSPROGRAMM” DATED 15 APRIL 2014 AND
PUBLISHED IN GERMAN. THE GERMAN TEXT SHALL BE CONTROLLING AND BINDING. THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE
TRANSLATION IS PROVIDED FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.

ANNEX 4A

Template Final Terms for Warrants

for Warrants (incl. Knock-out Warrants)

NAME OF THE PRODUCT
Terms and Conditions

a) Product Description
Product Category/Name:

Key Features of the Product:

CISA Notification:

Essential Product Attributes

Issuer:

Paying Agent, Exercise Agent and
Calculation Agent:

Rating of the Issuer:

Symbol/Swiss Security Code /ISIN:

Number of Warrants:
Exercise Price:

Expiry Date:

Last Trading Date:

Option Right:

[e]
[o]

These Warrants do not constitute collective
investment schemes in the meaning of the Swiss
Federal Act on Collective Investment Schemes (CISA).
They are not subject to an authorisation or
supervision by the FINMA and investors do not
benefit from protection under the CISA.

Investors can profit from both increasing (Call Warrant) or
falling (Put Warrant) prices and increasing volatility of the
Underlying. Warrants are suitable for investors with a high
risk tolerance, by investing a premium in order to speculate
on the future performance of the Underlying or to hedge a
portfolio against market fluctuations. The potential yield on
the investment amount is disproportional higher than the
direct investment in the Underlying due to the Gearing.

ZUrcher Kantonalbank

ZUrcher Kantonalbank, ZUrich

Standard & Poor’'s AAA, Moody's Aaa, Fitch AAA
[e]

Up to [e] Warrants, with the right to increase

[e] Warrants give the right to [purchase][sell] [e]
Underlyings. [If during the term of the Warrants the value
of the Underlying reaches or exceeds the Knock-Out Price,



Issue Price:

Currency:

Reference Price of Underlying:
Implicit Volatility:

Exercise Style/Type of Option:
Settlement:

[Premium:

Leverage:

Issue Date:

Listing:

Minimum Exercise Amount:
Trading Units:
Underlying:

[Ratio:

[Interest Periods/Interest Fixing:

[Reference page:
[Day Count Fraction:
[Ex-Date:

[Payment Date:
[Knock-out Price:

Clearing house:

[Distribution fees paid by Ziircher

Kantonalbank to distributors:]

Taxes:

Documentation:

any rights under the Warrants elapse.]

[e] %

[American Style][European Style] / [e]
[Cash Settlement] [Physical Delivery]
(o] % ([o] % p.a.)]

[e]

[e]

Application to list on the SIX Swiss Exchange will be filed,
expected first Trading Date on [e]

[e] Warrants or a any multiple thereof

SIX SIS AG

Up to [e] %]

The information above is a summary only of the Issuer’s
understanding of the current Swiss law and practice of the
Swiss Federal Tax Authority relating to the taxation of these
Warrants on the Issue Date. The relevant tax law and
practice may change. The Issuer does not assume any
liability in connection with the above information. Despite
this general information investors should consult with their
own tax advisers on the tax implications of an investment
in these Warrants.

This document is a non-binding English translation of the
Endgultige Bedingungen (Final Terms) published in German



Information on the Underlying:

Notices:

Governing Law/Jurisdiction:

and constituting the Final Terms in accordance to article 21
of the Additional Rules for the Listing of Derivatives of the
SIX Swiss Exchange. The German text shall be controlling
and binding. The English language translation is provided
for convenience only.

The binding German version of these Final Terms
supplement the Issuance Program of the Issuer dated 15
April 2014 and published in German in the currently valid
version. The binding German version Final Terms and the
Issuance Program constitute the complete Issuance and
Listing Prospectus for this issuance (the "Listing
Prospectus").

Except as otherwise defined in these Final Terms,
capitalised terms used in these Final Terms have the
meaning as defined in the Glossar in the Issuance Program.
In case of discrepancies between information or the
provisions in these Final Terms and those in the Issuance
Program, the information and provisions in these Final
Terms shall prevail.

Warrants will be issued as uncertified rights (Wertrechte)
and registered as book entry securities (Bucheffekten) with
SIX SIS AG. No certificates will be issued for the Warrants.

These Final Terms and the Issuance Program can be
ordered free of charge at Zircher Kantonalbank
Bahnhofstrasse 9, 8001 Zurich or by e-mail at
documentation@zkb.ch.

This document is not a prospectus in accordance with
articles 652a or 1156 of the Swiss Code of Obligations.

Information on the performance of the Underlying is
publicly available on www.bloomberg.com. Current annual
reports are published on the website of the respective
business entity. The transfer of the Underlying is conducted
in accordance with their respective statutes.

Any notice by the Issuer in connection with these Warrants,
in particular any notice in connection with modifications of
the terms and conditions will be validly published on the
website https://zkb-
finance.mdgms.com/products/warrants/product_categories/
warrants/index.html under the relevant Warrants. With the
valor search function (Valorensuchfunktion) the relevant
Warrants can be located. If these Warrants are listed on the
SIX Swiss Exchange, the notices will be published in
accordance with the rules issued by the SIX Swiss Exchange
for IBL (Internet Based Listing) on the website
http://Awww.six-swiss-
exchange.com/news/official_notices/search_de.html

Swiss Law / Zurich 1

b) Profit and Loss Expectation at Maturity

Profit and Loss Expectation at

Warrants offer the opportunity to participate on a
leveraged basis to price movements in the Underlying. The


http://www.bloomberg.com/
https://zkb-finance.mdgms.com/products/warrants/product_categories/warrants/index.html
https://zkb-finance.mdgms.com/products/warrants/product_categories/warrants/index.html
https://zkb-finance.mdgms.com/products/warrants/product_categories/warrants/index.html

Maturity:

Q) Material Risks for Investors

Credit Risk relating to Issuer:

Specific Product Risiks:

d) Additional Terms
Modifications:

Market Disruptions:

value of Put-Warrants generally deteriorates, if the value of
the Underlying increases. Due to the leverage effect, the
value of the Warrants will deteriorate faster than the value
of the Underlying. The value of Warrants may decrease
even if the value of the Underlying does not change,
because the time value decreases or the demand for
warrants deteriorates.

Obligations under these Warrants constitute direct,
unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and
rank pari passu with other direct, unconditional and
unsecured obligations of the Issuer. The value of the
Warrants does not only depend on the performance of the
Underlying and other developments in the financial
markets, but also on the solvency of the Issuer, which may
change during the term of these Warrants.

Warrants entail the risk to loose the entire initially paid
Premium (Issue Price). They are only suitable for investors
who have the requisite knowledge and experience and
understand thoroughly the risks connected with an
investment in these Warrants and are capable of bearing
the economic risks.

If an Extraordinary Event as described in Section IV of the
Issuance Programme occurs in relation to the Underlying /
a component of the Underlying or if any other
extraordinary event (force majeure) occurs, which makes it
impossible or particularly cumbersome for the Issuer, to
fulfil its obligations under the Warrants or to calculate the
value of the Warrants, the Issuer shall at its free discretion
take all the necessary actions and, if necessary may modify
the terms and conditions of these Warrants at its free
discretion in such way, that the economic value of the
Warrants after occurrence of the extraordinary event
corresponds, to the extent possible, to the economic value
of the Warrants prior to the occurrence of the
extraordinary event. Specific modification rules for certain
types of Underlying stated in Section IV of the Issuance
Programme shall prevail. If the Issuer determines, for
whatever reason, that a adequate modification is not
possible, the Issuer has the right to redeem the Warrants
early.

If, due to the occurrence of a Market Disruption in relation
to the Underlying / a component of the Underlying no
market price can be determined, the Issuer or the
Calculation Agent shall determine the market price of the
Underlying / the component of the Underlying at its free
discretion, considering the general market conditions and
the last market price of relevant Underlying / component
of the Underlying affected by the Market Disruption and
has the right, if the Market Disruption persists on the
Redemption Date, to postpone the Redemption Date to
the first Banking Day on which the Market Disruption has



Selling Restrictions:

Prudential Supervision:

Sales: 044 293 66 56

Recording of Telephone
conversations:

terminated. The specific provisions in Section IV.A.c) of the
Issuance Program shall prevail.

This provision shall apply accordingly for the determination
of the value of the Warrants, if its Underlying / a
component of the Underlying is affected by a Market
Disruption.

The selling restrictions contained in the Issuance Program
are applicable (EEA, U.S.A. / U.S. persons, United
Kingdom, [Guernsey]).

The Issuer has not undertaken any actions to permit the
public offering of the Warrants or the possession or the
distribution of any document produced in connection with
the issuance of the Warrants in any jurisdiction other than
Switzerland. The distribution of these Final Terms or other
documents produced in connection with the issuance of
the Warrants and the offering, sale and delivery of the
Warrants in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law.
Persons, which have received these Final Terms or any
other documents produced in connection with the
issuance of the Warrants, such as the Issuance Program,
Term Sheets, marketing or other selling material, are
required by the Issuer to inform themselves about and to
observe any such restrictions.

Zurcher Kantonalbank is a bank according to the Swiss
Federal Act on Banks and Saving Institutions (BankG; SR
952.0) and a securities dealer according to the Swiss
Federal Act on Securities Exchanges and Securities Trading
(BEHG; SR 954.1) and subject to the prudential supervision
of the FINMA, Einsteinstrasse 2, CH-3003 Bern,
http://www.finma.ch

SIX Telekurs:  85,ZKB Reuters: ZKBWTS
Internet: www.zkb.ch/aktienprodukte
Bloomberg:  ZKBW <go>

Investors are reminded, that telephone conversations with
trading or sales units of the Zlrcher Kantonalbank are
recorded. Investors, who have telephone conversations
with these units consent tacitly to the recording.


http://www.zkb.ch/aktienprodukte

No Material Change

Since the date of the Issuance Program there have not been any material changes in the assets, financial
standing or revenue of the Issuer.

Responsibility for the Final Terms

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms and declare, that the
information contained in these Final Terms is, to the best knowledge, in accordance with the facts and
contains no omission likely to affect ist import

On behalf of Ziircher Kantonalbank:

ZUrich, 15. April 2014

Name Name

Function Function
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THIS IS A NON-BINDING ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF THE ISSUERS’ “EMISSIONSPROGRAMM” DATED 15 APRIL 2014 AND
PUBLISHED IN GERMAN. THE GERMAN TEXT SHALL BE CONTROLLING AND BINDING. THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE
TRANSLATION IS PROVIDED FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.

ANNEX 4B

Template Final Terms for Mini-Futures

for Mini-Futures

NAME OF THE PRODUCT

Terms and Conditions

a) Product Description
Product Category/Name:

Key Features of the Product:

CISA Notification:

Issuer:

Paying Agent, Exercise Agent and
Calculation Agent: :

Rating of the Issuer:

Symbol/Swiss Security Code /ISIN:

Number of Structured Products:
Issue Price:

Reference Currency:

Trading and Exercise Units:
Issue Date:

Underlying:

Ratio:

Initial Fixing Value:

Initial Fixing Date:

Initial Financing Level:

[e]

[e]

These Structured Products do not constitute collective
investment schemes in the meaning of the Swiss Federal Act
on Collective Investment Schemes (CISA). They are not
subject to an authorisation or supervision by the FINMA and
investors do not benefit from protection under the CISA.

Zlrcher Kantonalbank

Zlrcher Kantonalbank, Zlrich

Standard&Poor’s AAA, Moody's Aaa, Fitch AAA
[e]

Up to [e] Structured Products, with the right to increase



Initial Financing Spread:

Financing Level:

Financing Dates:

Maximum Financing Spread:

Stop-Loss Niveau am Initial Fixing

Tag:

Stop-Loss Level Fixing Dates:

Stop-Loss Level:

Initial Stop-Loss Premium:

Maximum Stop-Loss Premium:

Stop-Loss Premium:

Stop-Loss Event:

Financing Spread:

Investor Put Option:

Issuer Call Option:

Early Redemption Date:

Early Redemption Fixing Level:

[e] %

[At close on each Financing Date the Financing Level (FL) will be
adjusted. The current Financing Level will be determined according
to the following formula: [e]]

Each Trading Day of the Structured Product [e]]
[e] %

[o]

[Each of the first banking day of the month, each ex-date of the
underlying, as well as in the Issuer's own discretion, each banking
day on which a modification of the stop-loss level is considered
necessary.]

[The current Stop-Loss Level will be calculated by the Calculation
Agent on each Stop-Loss Level Fixing Date according to the
following formula: [e]]

[e] %
[e] %

[Value determined by the Calculation Agent on each Stop-Loss
Level Fixing Date, provided that the Stop Loss Premium shall not be
less than the Initial Stop-Loss Premium and shall not be more than
the Maximum Stop-Loss Premium.] ]

[A Stop-Loss Event is deemed to have occurred, if the price of the
Underlying reaches or [falls below/exceeds] the Stop-Loss Level
during the trading hours of the [Underlying]/ [Investment Account].
In such case the Structured Products are deemed as exercised and
expired and they are redeemed in an amount corresponding to the
Early Redemption Amount.]

[Value determined by the Calculation Agent on each Stop-Loss
Level Fixing Date according to the following formula: [e]]

[The investor has the right to request redemption of its Structured
Products on the first Trading Day and each of the following Trading
Days of the Structured Products. The exercise notices must be
received by the Exercise Agent not later than at 11.00 a.m. MEZ.]]

[The Issuer has the right to redeem Structured Products, which
have not been exercised by an Investor Put Option, at any time,
without having to indicate any reason.]]

[The Trading Day, on which a Stop-Loss Event has occurred, the
Issuer has exercised the Issuer Call Option or the Investor has
exercised its Investor Put Option. The occurrence of a Stop-Loss
Event prevails over the exercise of the Issuer Call Option and of the
Investor Put Option.]

[Corresponds, in case of an exercise of the Issuer Call Option and
of the Investor Put Option, to the Closing Price of the Underlying
on the Reference Exchange on the Trading Day, on which the
exercise of the Issuer Call Option or of an Investor Put Option



Redemption Amount:

Settlement Date:
Listing:

Last Trading Day:
Clearing house:

Sales: 044 293 66 56

Subscription Period:

[Minimum Subscription Amount
for investors:]

[Distribution fees paid by Ziircher
Kantonalbank to distributors:]

Taxes:

Documentation:

becomes effective.

Upon occurrence of a Stop-Loss Event to the price of the
Underlying as determined by the Calculation Agent during trading
hours, within 60 minutes upon occurrence of the Stop-Loss Event.
If the 60 minutes are interrupted by the close of the relevant
Trading Day, they continue to run on the next Trading Day.]]

[Upon occurrence of a Stop-Loss Event, the exercise of the Issuer
Call Option or of an Investor Put Option, an amount in the
Reference Currency determined in accordance with the following
formula: [e]]

[5 Business Days after occurrence of an Early Redemption Date]

Application to list on the SIX Swiss Exchange will be filed [e]

[e]

SIX SIS AG

SIX Telekurs:  85,ZKB Reuters:ZKBWTS
Internet: www.zkb.ch/aktienprodukte

Bloomberg:  ZKBW <go>

Subscriptions for these Structured Products can be made from [e]
to [e]. The Issuer has the right, to reduce the Number of Structured
Products issued or to withdraw the issuance of the Derivatives for
any reason. Furthermore, the Issuer has the right to close the
subscription prior to the last date of the Subscription Period.]

[o]

[Up to [e] %]

[e]

The information above is a summary only of the Issuer’s
understanding of the current Swiss law and practice of the Swiss
Federal Tax Authority relating to the taxation of this Series of
Structured Products on the Issue Date. The relevant tax laws and
practice may change. The Issuer does not assume any liability in
connection with the above information. Despite this general
information investors should consult with their own tax advisers on
the tax implications of an investment in these Structured Products.

This document is a non-binding English translation of the
Endgdltige Bedingungen (Final Terms) published in German and
constituting the Final Terms in accordance to article 21 of the
Additional Rules for the Listing of Derivatives of the SIX Swiss
Exchange. The German text shall be controlling and binding. The
English language translation is provided for convenience only.

The binding German version of these Final Terms supplement the
Issuance Program of the Issuer dated 15 April 2014 and published
in German in the currently valid version. The binding German
version Final Terms and the Issuance Program constitute the
complete Issuance and Listing Prospectus for this issuance (the


http://www.zkb.ch/aktienprodukte

Information on the Underlying:

Notices:

Governing Law/Jurisdiction:

"Listing Prospectus").

Except as otherwise defined in these Final Terms, capitalised terms
used in these Final Terms have the meaning as defined in the
Glossar in the Issuance Program. In case of discrepancies between
information or the provisions in these Final Terms and those in the
Issuance Program, the information and provisions in these Final
Terms shall prevail.

Structured Products will be issued as uncertified rights (Wertrechte)
and registered as book entry securities (Bucheffekten) with SIX SIS
AG. No certificates will be issued for the Structured Products.

These Final Terms and the Issuance Program can be ordered free of
charge at Zlrcher Kantonalbank Bahnhofstrasse 9, 8001 Zurich or
by e-mail at documentation@zkb.ch.

This document is not a prospectus in accordance with articles 652a
or 1156 of the Swiss Code of Obligations.

Information on the performance of the Underlying is publicly
available on www.bloomberg.com. Current annual reports are
published on the website of the respective business entity. The
transfer of the Underlying is conducted in accordance with their
respective statutes.

Any notice by the Issuer in connection with this Series of Structured
Products, in particular any notice in connection with modifications
of the terms and conditions will be validly published on the website
https.//zkb-finance.mdgms.com/products/stp/index.html under the
relevant Series of Structured Products. With the valor search
function (Valorensuchfunktion) the relevant Series of Structured
Products can be located. If this Series of Structured Products is
listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the notices will be published in
accordance with the rules issued by the SIX Swiss Exchange for IBL
(Internet Based Listing) on the website http:/Avww.six-swiss-
exchange.com/news/official_notices/search_de.html

Swiss Law / Zurich 1

b)  Profit and Loss Expectation at Maturity

Profit and Loss Expectation at

Maturity::

c) Material Risks for Investors

Credit Risk relating to Issuer:

Mini-Futures are structured products, which risk is higher than the
risk of investing in the relevant underlying due to the leverage
effect. Upon occurrence of a Stop-Loss Event, the actual price for
the close-out of the Mini-Futures may, particularly in volatile
markets, deviate considerably from the current Stop-Loss Level,
which is to be considered as the trigger for a Stop-Loss Event only,
but not an indication for the Redemption Amount. The potential
maximum loss of Mini-Futures is limited to the amount invested in
the product.]

Obligations under these Structured Products constitute direct,
unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank pari
passu with other direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of
the Issuer. The value of the Structured Products does not only
depend on the performance of the Underlying and other


http://www.bloomberg.com/

Specific Product Risks:

d) Additional Terms

Modifications:

Market Disruptions:

Selling Restrictions:

developments in the financial markets, but also on the solvency of
the Issuer, which may change during the term of this Series of
Structured Products.]

Mini-Futures bear the risk of loosing the entire invested capital
(Issuance Price). They are suitable for experienced investors, who
understand the risks involved in an investment and are capable of
bearing such loss.

[o]

If an Extraordinary Event as described in Section IV of the Issuance
Programme occurs in relation to the Underlying / a component of
the Underlying or if any other extraordinary event (force majeure)
occurs, which makes it impossible or particularly cumbersome for
the Issuer, to fulfil its obligations under the Structured Products or
to calculate the value of the Structured Products, the Issuer shall at
its free discretion take all the necessary actions and, if necessary
may modify the terms and conditions of these Structured Products
at its free discretion in such way, that the economic value of the
Structured Products after occurrence of the extraordinary event
corresponds, to the extent possible, to the economic value of the
Structured Products prior to the occurrence of the extraordinary
event. Specific modification rules for certain types of Underlying
stated in Section IV of the Issuance Programme shall prevail. If the
Issuer determines, for whatever reason, that an adequate
modification is not possible, the Issuer has the right to redeem the
Structured Products early.

If, due to the occurrence of a Market Disruption in relation to the
Underlying / a component of the Underlying no market price can
be determined, the Issuer or the Calculation Agent shall determine
the market price of the Underlying / the component of the
Underlying at its free discretion, considering the general market
conditions and the last market price of relevant Underlying /
component of the Underlying affected by the Market Disruption
and has the right, if the Market Disruption persists on the
Redemption Date, to postpone the Redemption Date to the first
Banking Day on which the Market Disruption has terminated. The
specific provisions in Section IV.A.c) of the Issuance Program shall
prevail.

This provision shall apply accordingly for the determination of the
value of the Structured Products, if its Underlying / a component of
the Underlying is affected by a Market Disruption.

The selling restrictions contained in the Issuance Program are
applicable (EEA, U.S.A. / U.S. persons, United Kingdom,
[Guernsey]).

The Issuer has not undertaken any actions to permit the public
offering of the Structured Products or the possession or the
distribution of any document produced in connection with the
issuance of the Structured Products in any jurisdiction other than
Switzerland. The distribution of these Final Terms or other
documents produced in connection with the issuance of the
Structured Products and the offering, sale and delivery of the
Structured Products in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law.



Persons, which have received these Final Terms or any other
documents produced in connection with the issuance of the
Structured Products, such as the Issuance Program, Term Sheets,
marketing or other selling material, are required by the Issuer to
inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions.

Prudential Supervision: ZUrcher Kantonalbank is a bank according to the Swiss Federal Act
on Banks and Saving Institutions (BankG; SR 952.0) and a securities
dealer according to the Swiss Federal Act on Securities Exchanges
and Securities Trading (BEHG; SR 954.1) and subject to the
prudential supervision of the FINMA, Einsteinstrasse 2, CH-3003
Bern, http://www.finma.ch

Recording of Telephone Investors are reminded, that telephone conversations with trading

conversations: or sales units of the Ziircher Kantonalbank are recorded. Investors,
who have telephone conversations with these units consent tacitly
to the recording.

No Material Change

Since the date of the Issuance Program there have not been any material changes in the assets, financial
standing or revenue of the Issuer.

Responsibility for the Final Terms

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms and declare, that the
information contained in these Final Terms is, to the best knowledge, in accordance with the facts and
contains no omission likely to affect ist import

On behalf of Ziircher Kantonalbank:

ZUrich, 15. April 2014

Name Name
Function Function
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THIS IS AN NON-BINDING ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF THE ISSUERS’ “EMISSIONSPROGRAMM” DATED 15 APRIL 2014 AND
PUBLISHED IN GERMAN. THE GERMAN TEXT SHALL BE CONTROLLING AND BINDING. THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE
TRANSLATION IS PROVIDED FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.

ANNEX 4C

Template of the Final Terms

For Derivatives (excl. Warrants und Mini-Futures)

NAME OF THE PRODUCT

Terms and Conditions

a) Product Description

Product Category/Name:

CISA Notification:

Issuer:

[Keep-Well Agreement:

Lead Manager, Paying Agent,
Exercise Agent and Calculation

Agent:

[Rating of the Issuer:
Symbol/Swiss Security
Code/ISIN:

Notional
Amount/Denomination/

Trading Units:

[Number of Derivatives:

Issue Price per Derivative:

Currency:
Underlying:

[Coupon:

[o]

[e] constitute Structured Products in Switzerland. They do not
constitute collective investment schemes in the meaning of the
Swiss Federal Act on Collective Investment Schemes (CISA). They
are not subject to an authorisation or supervision by the FINMA
and investors do not benefit from protection under the CISA.

[ZUrcher Kantonalbank] [ZUrcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey)
Limited]

With Zircher Kantonalbank (full text in Annex 3 of the Issuance
Program); Zlrcher Kantonalbank obtained the following ratings:
Standard&Poor’s AAA, Moody's Aaa, Fitch AAA]

ZUrcher Kantonalbank, ZUrich

[for Products issued by Zircher Kantonalbank: Standard&Poor’s AAA,
Moody’s Aaa, Fitch AAA]

[o]

Up to [e], with the right to increase/Denomination and Trading Unit [e]
each

Up to [e] Derivates, with the right to increase]

[e of the Notional Amount]

[o]

(o]

[[®] % (Coupon p.a.: [#]%) interest payment [e] / premium payment

[o]]



[Coupon Date(s):

[Day Count Fraction:
[Exercise Price:

[Cap/Cap Level:

Ratio:

[Participation Rate:

[Partizipation Down at

Maturity:

[Issuer Call Option:

[Investor Put Option:

[Multiplicator:
[Knock-in Level:

[Knock-out Level:

[Knock-out Niveau Up:

[Knock-out Niveau Down:

[Initial Fixing Value:

[Maximum Redemption

Amount:
[Maximum Return:
[Minimum Coupon:
[Return Cap:
[Return Floor:

[Coupon Fixing:

[Coupon Calculation:

Initial Fixing Date:

[e]

If several Coupons: The Coupon will be paid in equal parts on each
Coupon Dates.]

[30/360], modified following]
[e]]

[e] / [e] of [Denomination][Closing Price of Underlying on the Initial
Fixing Date]]

[e] Derivates represent [e] Underlyings

[®] %, [enter any restriction]]

[e]]

The Issuer has the right to call the Structured Product for Early
Redemption each year per [dd MMMM yyyy] (Exercise Date) which has
to be announced at least 20 banking days in advance without any
reasons (for the first time per [dd MMMM yyyy], modified following

In addition to the possibility of selling the Structured Products at any
time in the secondary market, the investor has each year per [dd
MMMM] the right to exercise his Structured Products (for the first
time per [dd MMMM vyyyy]), modified following. The according
exercise notice has to be received no later than the day before the
respective exercise date by Zurcher Kantonalbank

[e]]

[e] / [#]% of the Underlying on the Initial Fixing Date]

[e]/ [e]]% of the Underlying on the Initial Fixing Date]

[e] /[®]]% of the Underlying on the Initial Fixing Date]

[e]/ [e]]% of the Underlying on the Initial Fixing Date]

[Closing price of the Underlying, SIX Exchange on [e]]

[o]]

[e]]% /[]% p.a.

[o]]%



Issue Date:

Listing:

Last Trading Date:
Final Fixing Date
[Early Redemption:
Settlement Date:
Clearing house:

Subscription Period:

[Final Fixing Value:
[Redemption Methode:

Sales: 044 293 66 65

[Essential Product Features:

[Distribution fees paid by
Zircher Kantonalbank to
Distributors:

[Expenses / TER:

Taxes:

Documentation:

[e]

Application to list on the SIX Swiss Exchange will be filed, expected
first Trading Date on [e]

SIX'SIS AG

Subscriptions for these Derivatives can be made from [e] to [e]. The
Issuer has the right, to reduce the Number of Derivatives issued or to
withdraw the issuance of the Derivatives for any reason. Furthermore,
the Issuer has the right to close the subscription prior to the last date
of the Subscription Period.

Closing price of the Underlying, SIX Swiss Exchange, on [e]]
[e]]

SIX Telekurs: 85,ZKB Reuters: ZKBSTRUCT

Internet: www.zkb.ch/strukturierteprodukte Bloomberg: ZKBY <go>
[o]]

Up to [e] %]

The information above is a summary only of the Issuer’s understanding
of the current Swiss law and practice of the Swiss Federal Tax
Authority relating to the taxation of this Series of Derivatives on the
Issue Date. The relevant tax law and practice may change. The Issuer
does not assume any liability in connection with the above
information. Despite this general information investors should consult
with their own tax advisers on the tax implications of an investment in
this Derivatives.

This document is a non-binding English translation of the Endgultige
Bedingungen (Final Terms) published in German and constituting the
Final Terms in accordance to article 21 of the Additional Rules for the
Listing of Derivatives of the SIX Swiss Exchange. The German text shall
be controlling and binding. The English language translation is
provided for convenience only.

The binding German version of these Final Terms supplement the
Issuance Program of the Issuer dated 15 April 2014 and published in
German in the currently valid version. The binding German version
Final Terms and the Issuance Program constitute the complete Issuance
and Listing Prospectus for this issuance (the "Listing Prospectus").



Information on the Underlying:

Notices:

Governing Law/Jurisdiction:

b) Profit and Loss Expectation

Profit and Loss Expectation at
Maturity:

c) Material Risks for Investors
Credit Risk relating to Issuer:

Specific Product Risks:

Except as otherwise defined in these Final Terms, capitalised terms
used in these Final Terms have the meaning as defined in the Glossar
in the Issuance Program. In case of discrepancies between information
or the provisions in these Final Terms and those in the Issuance
Program, the information and provisions in these Final Terms shall
prevail.

Derivatives will be issued as uncertified rights (Wertrechte) and
registered as book entry securities (Bucheffekten) with SIX SIS AG. No
certificates will be issued for the Derivatives.

These Final Terms and the Issuance Program can be ordered free of
charge at Zircher Kantonalbank Bahnhofstrasse 9, 8001 Zurich or by
e-mail at documentation@zkb.ch.

Information on the performance of the Underlying is publicly available
on www.bloomberg.com. Current annual reports are published on the
website of the respective business entity. The transfer of the
Underlying is conducted in accordance with their respective statutes.

Any notice by the Issuer in connection with this Series of Structured
Products, in particular any notice in connection with modifications of
the terms and conditions will be validly published on the website
https://zkb-finance.mdgms.com/products/stp/index.html under the
relevant Series of Structured Products. With the valor search function
(Valorensuchfunktion) the relevant Series of Structured Products can be
located. If this Series of Structured Products is listed on the SIX Swiss
Exchange, the notices will be published in accordance with the rules
issued by the SIX Swiss Exchange for IBL (Internet Based Listing) on the
website http://www.six-swiss-
exchange.com/news/official_notices/search_de.html

Swiss law / Zurich 1

at Maturity

[e

This list is valid as of Maturity and is not to be read as a price
indication of the Issuer for the Series of Derivatives during the term of
the product. During the term of the Series of Derivatives additional
risk factors may have a material effect on the value of the Series of
Derivatives. The price quoted on the secondary market may deviate
considerably from the above list.]

Obligations under these Derivatives constitute direct, unconditional
and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank pari passu with
other direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer.
The value of the Derivatives does not only depend on the
performance of the Underlying and other developments in the
financial markets, but also on the solvency of the Issuer, which may
change during the term of this Series of Derivatives. [for Dervatives
issued by Zlircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited: Zlrcher
Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited does not have any rating.]
Derivate are complex financial instruments, which entail considerable
risks and, accordingly, are only suitable for investors who have the


mailto:documentation@zkb.ch
http://www.bloomberg.com/
http://www.six-swiss-exchange.com/news/official_notices/search_de.html
http://www.six-swiss-exchange.com/news/official_notices/search_de.html

d) Additional Terms

Modifications:

Market Disruptions:

requisite knowledge and experience and understand thoroughly the
risks connected with an investment in these Derivatives and are
capable of bearing the economic risks.

[o]

If an Extraordinary Event as described in Section IV of the Issuance
Programme occurs in relation to the Underlying / a component of the
Underlying or if any other extraordinary event (force majeure) occurs,
which makes it impossible or particularly cumbersome for the Issuer,
to fulfil its obligations under the Derivatives or to calculate the value
of the Derivatives, the Issuer shall at its free discretion take all the
necessary actions and, if necessary may modify the terms and
conditions of these Derivatives at its free discretion in such way, that
the economic value of the Derivatives after occurrence of the
extraordinary event corresponds, to the extent possible, to the
economic value of the Derivatives prior to the occurrence of the
extraordinary event. Specific modification rules for certain types of
Underlying stated in Section IV of the Issuance Programme shall
prevail. If the Issuer determines, for whatever reason, that a adequate
modification is not possible, the Issuer has the right to redeem the
Derivatives early.

If, due to the occurrence of a Market Disruption in relation to the
Underlying / a component of the Underlying no market price can be
determined, the Issuer or the Calculation Agent shall determine the
market price of the Underlying / the component of the Underlying at
its free discretion, considering the general market conditions and the
last market price of relevant Underlying / component of the
Underlying affected by the Market Disruption and has the right, if the
Market Disruption persists on the Redemption Date, to postpone the
Redemption Date to the first Banking Day on which the Market
Disruption has terminated.

The specific provisions in Section IV.A.c) of the Issuance Program shall
prevail.

This provision shall apply accordingly for the determination of the
value of the Derivative, if its Underlying / a component of the
Underlying is affected by a Market Disruption.



Change of Obligator:

Selling Restrictions:

Prudential Supervision:

Recording of Telephone
conversations:

No Material Change

The Issuer is entitled at all times and without the consent of the
investors to assign in whole (but not in part) the rights and claims
under individual Derivatives or all of them to a Swiss or foreign
subsidiary, branch or holding company of the Ziircher Kantonalbank
(the "New Issuer") to the extent that (i) the New Issuer assumes all of
the obligations arising out of the assigned Derivatives which the
previous Issuer owed in respect of these Derivatives, (i) the Zircher
Kantonalbank enters into a keep-well agreement with the New Issuer
with terms equivalent to the one between the Zircher Kantonalbank
and Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited, (iii) the New
Issuer has received from the supervisory authorities of the country in
which it is domiciled all necessary approvals for the issue of
Derivatives and the assumption of the obligations under the assigned
Derivatives.

The selling restrictions contained in the Issuance Program are
applicable (EEA, U.S.A. / U.S. persons, United Kingdom, [Guernsey]).

The Issuer has not undertaken any actions to permit the public
offering of the Derivatives or the possession or the distribution of any
document produced in connection with the issuance of the
Derivatives in any jurisdiction other than Switzerland. The distribution
of these Final Terms or other documents produced in connection with
the issuance of the Derivatives and the offering, sale and delivery of
the Derivatives in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law.
Persons, which have received these Final Terms or any other
documents produced in connection with the issuance of the
Derivatives, such as the Issuance Program, Term Sheets, marketing or
other selling material, are required by the Issuer to inform themselves
about and to observe any such restrictions.

Zurcher Kantonalbank is a bank according to the Swiss Federal Act on
Banks and Saving Institutions (BankG; SR 952.0) and a securities
dealer according to the Swiss Federal Act on Securities Exchanges and
Securities Trading (BEHG; SR 954.1) and subject to the prudential
supervision of the FINMA, Einsteinstrasse 2, CH-3003 Bern,
http://www.finma.ch

Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited is not subject to
any direct prudential supervision neither in Guernsey nor in
Switzerland, but is a fully owned and fully consolidated subsidiary of
Zurcher Kantonalbank.

Investors are reminded, that telephone conversations with trading or
sales units of the Zlrcher Kantonalbank are recorded. Investors, who
have telephone conversations with these units consent tacitly to the
recording.

Since the date of the Issuance Program there have not been any material changes in the assets, financial
standing or revenue of the Issuer [insert, if the Derivatives are issued by Zurcher Kantonalbank Finance
(Guernsey) Limited: and of Zircher Kantonalbank].


http://www.finma.ch/

Responsibility for the Final Terms

The Issuer [insert, if the Derivatives are issued by Zircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited: and of
Zurcher Kantonalbank] accept[s] responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms and
declare[s], that the information contained in these Final Terms is, to the best knowledge, in accordance
with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import

On behalf of Ziircher Kantonalbank:

Zurich, 15 April 2014

Name Name
Function Function

On behalf of Ziircher Kantonalbank Finance (Guernsey) Limited:

15 April 2014

Name Name

Function Function
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